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The Manager

Dept. of Corporate Services,
Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd.
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers
Dalal Street, Mumbai - 400 001

Scrip Code-530163
Dear Sir,

Subject: Integrated Annual Report of Kerala Ayurveda Limited (‘the Company’) for the
Financial Year 2024-25

This is to inform you that the 33" Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’) of the Company will be held on
Friday, September 26, 2025, at 12.00 noon (IST) through Video Conferencing (“VC”)/Other Audio-
Visual Means (“OAVM?”), in accordance, with the relevant circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs and Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI).

Pursuant to Regulation 34(1) of SEBI Listing Regulations, please find enclosed the Integrated Annual
Report along with the Notice of the 33 AGM and other Statutory Reports of the Company for Financial
Year 2024-25.

The same is being sent through electronic mode today, i.e., Thursday, September 04, 2025, to those
Members whose e-mail addresses are registered with the Company/its Registrar and Transfer Agent
(RTA)/Depository Participants (DPs). Further, in accordance with Regulation 36(1)(b) of the SEBI
Listing Regulations, the Company has also sent a letter to those shareholders whose e-mail addresses are
not registered with Company/RTA/DPs providing the weblink from where the Integrated Annual Report
can be accessed on the Company’s website.

The Integrated Annual Report is also available on the Company's website at
https://keralaayurveda.biz/pages/investors and on websites of stock exchange i.e., www.bseindia.com.
Kindly take the same on your record.

Thanking you,

For Kerala Ayurveda Limited

Priyanka Gangwar oo s o

Priyanka Gangwar
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer
Membership No.: F12378

Encl.: Integrated Annual Report 2024-25

Registered Office : Corporate Office :

Kerala Ayurveda Limited (An ISO 9001:2015 Certified Company) Kerala Ayurveda Ltd, Ground Floor, BKN
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CIN:L24233KL1992PLC006592 No.648/1, 15t Main, Binnamangala, 1! Stage
Ph: +91 484 2476301/2/3/4 Indiranagar, Bengaluru-560038
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Chairman’s Letter

Dear Shareholders,

FY 2024-25 was a defining year for Kerala Ayurveda
Limited (KAL)—a year in which we didn't just measure
success through numbers, but through the strength of
the foundation we laid for the next decade of impact.
While our topline growth of 22% and return to positive
adjusted EBITDA are achievements in themselves, the
real story lies in how we are evolving into a full-
spectrum Ayurvedic wellness powerhouse, rooted in
ancientscience, powered by digital, and ready for global
leadership.

Ayurveda teaches us that true wellness comes from
balance—of the three doshas: Vata, Pitta, and Kapha. At
KAL, this wisdom continues to guide our strategy. We see
technology as Vata—the force of innovation and
connectivity; talent and leadership as Pitta—the fire
driving transformation; and infrastructure and product
depth as Kapha—the stable base from which we scale.

Investing in Strength

To build something enduring, we made conscious, bold
choices:

%13.5 Cr invested in talent, bringing onboard domain
experts across digital commerce, product innovation,
education, science, and clinical services.

%6 Crin digital marketing, delivering 7X growth in reach
and laying the ground for a digitally native Ayurvedic
brand.

%6 Crin capital investment, expanding luxury rooms at
Ayurvedagram, refurbishing our clinics, and installing
modern equipmentin our production plant.

Adoption of Ind AS and prior period restatements,
ensuring transparent, accurate, financials and full
compliance forthe future.

These are not mere operational enhancements—they
are the pillars of KAL 2.0, our next phase of growth where
Ayurveda meets modern science and global
accessibility.

04

Annual Report 2026-25

A Wellness Ecosystem, Not Just a
Business
Kerala Ayurveda today is more than just
a company. We are a living ecosystem of
health, healing, and heritage. Across
products, services, and education, we
are focused on delivering holistic
care—from the soil to the soul.
Products rooted in nature and
science
Our product range now exceeds 400
SKUs, formulated using time-tested
Ayurvedic ingredients:

Ashwagandha to relieve stress and
restore vitality

Turmeric for anti-inflammatory
protection

Brahmi to support cognitive clarity

Triphala for gut health and
detoxification

Guggulu, Neem, and Punarnava for
immunity and

cellular rejuvenation
These ingredients are not just
components—they are the embodiment
of a tradition refined through rigorous
scientific validation. Our premium brand
“Ru by Kerala Ayurveda” launching in
FY26 will bring these ingredients to a
new generation of health-conscious
consumers, combining purity, potency,
and elegance.
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Experiences that heal

Our Ayurvedagram retreats in Bengaluru and Bali offer curated Panchakarma and
rejuvenation therapies in serene environments, with the Bali center growing 71% in FY25
and Bengaluru reaching record 90% occupancy. These are sanctuaries of healing, where
customers receive care personalized to their dosha and cendition.

Experiences that heal

Our Ayurvedagram retreats in Bengaluru and Bali offer curated Panchakarma and
rejuvenation therapies in serene environments, with the Bali center growing 71% in FY25
and Bengaluru reaching record 90% occupancy. These are sanctuaries of healing, where
customers receive care personalized to their dosha and condition.

The Road Ahead: FY 2025-26 and Beyond
The future for Ayurveda is expansive—and we are stepping into it with a bold plan
to double our topline to 185 Cr (+50%) in FY26. Our strategy is anchored around:

- Digital first: 2X growth in India D2C, 3X in the US, powered by personalized
wellnesS journeys and Al-backed recommendation engines

- Premiumization: Launch of “Ru by Kerala Ayurveda” to reach modern consumers
seeking clean, potent alternatives

- Wellness expansion: New Ayurvedagram property launch; scale-up of asset-light
clinics through partnerships

- Global reach: Integration of Om Vedic Singapore and Ayurvedagram Bali Jvs,
projected to add 220 Cr to topline

- Scientific innovation: Our US-patented metabolic formula signals the future of
evidence-backed Ayurveda

A Deeper Purpose

At Kerala Ayurveda, we believe that Ayurveda is not just a healing system—itis a
philosophy of life, aligned with the rhythms of nature, designed for balance and longevity.
We are privileged custodians of this 5,000~-year-old wisdom and are now tasked with its
digitization, democratization, and global scaling.

Qur customers aren't just buyers—they are seekers. And our role is to help them rediscover
health that is not just symptom-free, but truly sattvic—calm, energized, and whole.

Closing Thoughts

We enter FY26 with clarity, commitment, and a collective belief that Ayurveda's time
has come. From the ancient scripts of Charaka and Sushruta to modern clinical
studies and patents, we will blend heritage with innovation.

We are grateful to our shareholders, customers, and partners who walk this journey
with us. With your trust, and the dedication of our teams across India, the US, and
beyond, we are poised to shape a new global narrative of wellness—one that is
authentically Indian, scientifically validated, and deeply human.

Warm regards,

Ramesh Vangal
Chairman

Kerala Ayurveda Limited
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KERALA AYURVEDA LTD
CIN: L24233KL1992PLC006592
Regd, Off: XV/551. Athani, Nedumbassery, Ernakulam, Kerala, 683585
Ph: 0484-2476301(4 lines) Fax: 0484-2474376

Email: infof@keralaaywrveda biz Website: www keralaayurveda biz

NOTICE OF THE 33" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Motice is hereby given that the3 3" Annual General Meeting of the Members of Kerala Ayurveda
Limited (CIN: L24233KL1992PLC006592) will be held on Friday, 26" September 2025 at 12:00
MNoon through Video Conferencing/ Other Audio Visual means to transact the following business in
conformity with the regulatory provisions and the Circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate

Aftairs and Securities and Exchange Board of India:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

ITEM NO [: TO CONSIDER AND ADOPT THE AUDITED STANDALONE AND
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY FOR THE
FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025, TOGETHER WITH THE AUDITORS | AND
BOARDU'S REPORT THEREON,

ITEM NO 2. TO APPOINT A DIRECTOR IN PLACE OF MR. KODIKANNATH
JAYARAJAN (DIN: 10798470) WHO RETIRES BY ROTATION ANDBEING ELIGIBLE,
OFFERS HIMSELF FOR RE-APPOINTMENT.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

ITEM NO 3: RATIFICATION OF REMUNERATION PAYABLE TO M/5. SLR &
ASSOCIATES, KOCHI, COST AUDITORS OF THE COMPANY:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with ar withowt modificationds). the following resolution as an
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Ordinary Resolution:

RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148(3) and all other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Auodit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof. for the time being in force),
as amended from time to time. the company hereby ratifies the remuneration of Rs. 1,50.000/-
{Rupees One Lakh Fifty Thousand Only)plus applicable taxes thereon and reimbursement of out-of-
pocket expenses at actuals, incurred in connection with the cost audit pavable to M/’s, SLR &
Associates, Kochi having Firm Registration No. 0063105 who have been appointed as cost auditors
by the Board of Directors on the recommendation of the Audit Committee on 29" August 2025, to

conduct the audit of cost records of the Company for the financial vear 2025-26.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the directors orthe Chief Financial Officer or the Company
Secretary of the company be andare hereby severally authorized to do such acts, deeds and things as
may be required necessary to give effect to this resolution and to settle any questions, difficulties or

doubts that may aris¢ in this regard,

ITEM NO. 4: APPOINTMENT OF M/S8. 8VIJS & ASSOCIATES. PRACTISING COMPANY
SECRETARY FIRM, AS THE SECRETARIAL AUDITORS FOR A PERIOD OF 5 YEARS:

To consider and, if thowght fit, to pass with or without modificetion, the following resolution as an

Ordinary Resolution:

RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 204, and any other applicable provisions,
if any, of the Compantes Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, (including any statutory modification{s) or re-enactment thereof)
and in terms of Fegulation 24A of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, as amended from time to time, M/, SVIS & Associates (Firm registration No.
PZO0BKE017900), be and are hereby appointed as Secretarial Auditors of the Company for a term of
five (5) consecutive years, commencing from Financial Year 2025-26 till Financial Year 2029-30, for
a remuneration of Rs, 150,000/~ (Rupees One Lakh Fifty Thousand Only}per annum plus applicable
taxes and out-ol-pocket expenses and on such terms and conditions as may be decided by the Board of
Directors in consultation with the Secretarial Auditors of the Company, with authority to the board to

make revision in fees at such intervals as it may deem fit, and to avail any other services, certificates,



or reports as may be permissible under the applicable laws.

RESOLVED FURTHERTHAT any of the Directors or the Chief Financial Officer or Company
Secretary be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts or deeds as may be required necessary lo give

effect to the said resolution.

Registered Office By Order of the Board of Directors
HVI551. Athani, Nedumbassery,

Ernakulam, Kerala, 683585

For Kerala Avurveda Limited

Date: 29/08/2025 Sd/-
Place: Athani Ramesh Vangal
Chairman

{DIN: 000D64018)

Warsda Ayurveds LTD Carporate Ousrdew | &.nanIQIStn:emantsJ
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Notes:

1. In view of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs. Government of India ( (MCA ) General Circular
Nos. 142020, 17/2020, 20/2020. 02/2021, 2172021, 02/2022. 10/2022, 09/2023 and 09/2024
dated April 8, 2020, April 13, 2020, May 5, 2020, January 13, 2021, December 14, 2021, May 5,
2022, December 28, 2022, September 25, 2023 and Seplember 19, 2024, respectively, (- MCA
Circulars| and SEBI vide its circular dated May 12, 2020, January 15, 2021, May 13, 2022,
January 3, 2023, September 19, 2024 and October 3, 2024 (collectively referred to as ' SEBI
Circulars jand all other relevant circulars issued from time to time has allowed to conduct of
Annual General Meetings (( AGM ) by Companies through Video Conferencing/ Other Audio
Visual Means (L VC/ OAVM! ) and physical attendance of the Members at the &M venue is not
required and AGM will be held through video conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means
(OAVM). Hence, Members can attend and participate in the ensuingA GM through VC/OAVM,
The registered office of the Company shall be deemed to be the venue for the AGM.

An Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act. 2013, setting out
material facts concerning the business under Item No. 3 and 4 of the Notice is annexed hereto.
Further, the relevant details with respect to [ Director secking appointment and reappointment
at this AGM!| are also provided as Annexurel. [Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI Listing
Regulations and Secretarial Standard-2 on General Meetimgs issued by the Institute of Company

Secretaries of India)

In view of above MCA Circulars, SEBI wvide its circular SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-
2/PICIR/2024/133 dated October 3, 2024 also relaxed from the requirement of sending hard
copy of annual report 1o shareholders who have not registered their email address. In
compliance of the same the Company has sent notice of AGM only through electronic mode to
those shareholders whose ¢-mail addresses are registered with Company or its RTA. In line with
the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Cireular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 and all
ather relevant circulars issued from time to time, the Notice calling the AGM has been uploaded
on the website of the Company Le., hitps:/keralagyurveda biz/pages/investors , The Notice can
also be accessed from the websites of the Stock Exchange ie¢. BSE Limited at
www.bsemdia.com and the AGM Notice is also available on the website of Integrated Registry

Management Services Pvt. Ltd. i.e. www.integratedindia com



Further, in accordance with Regulation 36(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Company
15 also sending a letter o those sharcholders whose c-mail addresses are not registered with
Company/RTA/DPs providing the weblink from where complete details of the Integrated
Annual Rgport can be accessed on the Company’s website

Pursuant to the MCA Circulars read with SEBI Circular dated 7 Octlober 2023 (“SEBI
Circular”), the facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the members is not available
for this AGM. Hence, the Proxy Form and Attendance Ship including Route Map arc not
annexcd to thas Motice. However. the Body Corporates are entitled to appoint authonzed
representatives to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM and participate thereat and cast their
votes through e-voting, Institutional/Corporate Sharcholders are required 1o send a scanned copy
(PDF/IPG format) of its Board or goveming body resolution/authonsation ¢te., authorising its
representative to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM on its behalf and to vote through remoie
¢-voting. The said resolution/ authorization shall be sent to the Company Secretary by email to
companvsecretanyia keralaavurveda iz with a copy marked to investor@keralanyvurveda.biz

and scrutimizer at info'@ bmpandco.com, at least 48 hours before the commencement of AGM.

The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the
purpose of reckoning the quorum under Seotion 103 of the Companies Act. 2013

The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 munutes before and after the
scheduled time of the commencement of the Mecting by following the procedure mentioned in
the Notice. In terms of applicable provisions. the facility of participation at the AGM through
VC/OAVM is available for 1000 members on first come first served basis. This will not include
large Sharcholders (Sharcholders holding 2% or more sharcholding). Promoters, Institutional
Investors, Directors, Kev Managenal Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Commuittee,
Nomination and Remuncration Commitiee and Stakeholders Relationship Commutice, Auditors
ete. who are allowed to attend the AGM without restnction on account of first come first served
basis.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act. 2013 read with Rule 20 of the
Companies (Management and Admunistration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of
the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requiremenis) Regulations 2015 (as amended),
MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular. the Company is providing facility of emote ¢-Votng to its
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Il

12.

13.

14.

Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the AGM. For this purpose. the Company
has made necessary arrangement with CDSL for facilitating voting through electronic means, as
the authonzed agency, The facility of casting votes by a member using remote ¢-voting svstem
as well as voting on the day of AGM will be provided by CDSL,

AGM 1s to be convened through VC/OAVM n compliance with applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars.

Members whose names are recorded in the Register of Members or in the Register of beneficial
Owners maintained by the Depositones as on the Cut-off date 1.¢. Fnday, 19% September 2025,
shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote ¢-voting as well as e-voting system on the date of
the AGM. Any recipient of the Notice, who has no voting rights ag on the Cut-off date, shall
treat this Notice ag mformation purposcs only,

Members holding shares in dematenalised mode are requested to register/update their ¢-mail
addresses with the relevamt Depository Participants, In case of any quenes/difficultes in

registening the e-mail address, Members may write to csdstd iomieeratedindia in

The members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to AGM may also attend the
AGM but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again,

Members, who would like to express their view/ ask questions during the AGM with regard to
the financial statements or any other matter to be placed at the AGM. need w pre-register
themselves as a speaker by sending a request from their registered email address mentioning
their name. DP 1D and Client 1D number/ folio number and mobile number, to reach the
Company's email address at company seevetary ‘@ heralagy urveda biz latest by 24" September
2025, Those members who have pre-registered themselves as a speaker will be allowed 1w
express their view/ ask questions durng the AGM, depending upon the availability of time.

Any person holding shares m physical form or. who acquires shares of the Company and
becomes a Member of the Company after sending of the Notice and holding shares as of the cut
off, may obtain the login ID and password by sending a request at
helpdesk evoting @ cdshndin com. However, 1if he/she 15 aleady registered with CDSL for
remote e-Voting then he/she can use histher User ID and password for casting the vote.




15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

Members holding shares in single name and physical form are advised to make nomination in
respect of their sharcholding in the Company. The Nomunation Form SH-13 prescribed by the
Government can be obtamed from the Registrar and Transfer Agent or the Secretanal
Department of the Company at its Registered Office.

Members holding shares in physical form are requested to notifv anv change m their address to
the Company's Registrar & Share Transfer Agent Members holding shares m electronic form
are requested to intimate the changes, if any, in their address to respective depository
participants only.

The Company has appointed CS Pramod SM (Membership No.: F7834, COP: 13784) or failing
him CS Biswajit Ghosh (Membership No.: FR750, COP: 8239), partners of M/s. BMP & Co.
LLP, a Pmcticing Company Sceretanes finm, Bengaluru as serutinizer to scrutimize the ¢-voting
process in a fair and transparent manner,

The Scrutimzer shall, 15 minutes after the conclusion of voting at the e-AGM. unblock the votes
cast through remote e-voting and count the same, and count the votes cast during the e- AGM,
and shall wiathin the stipulated time penod after the conclusion of the ¢-AGM, submit a
consolidated Scrutinizer's Report of the total votes cast in favor or against, if any, to the

Chairman or a person authonsed by him in writing, who shall countersign the same.

The Chairman or the person authorized by him in writing shall forthwith on receipt in wrting
shall forthwith on receipt of the consolidated Scrutmizer’s Report, declare the Results of the
voting. The Results declared along with the Serutinizer’s Report(s) will be available on the
website of the Company hitps V/www keralasvurveda biz under Investor Section and CDSL's

website wiww ovotneindia com and the communication will be sent o BSE Limited on their

respective wehsite - viz. www bseindia.com.

As per Regulation 40 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended, sccuntics of histed
compamies can be transferred only m dematenalized form with effect from 1* Apnl 2019,
Request received for transmission or transposition of secunties will also be effected only n
dematenalized form. In view of this and to ¢liminate all risks associated with physical sharcs
and for case of portfolio management. members holding shares m physical form are requested to
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22,

consider converting thewr holdings to dematenrialized form. Members can contact the Company
or Company 's Registrars and Transfer Agents, Inteprated for assistance in this regard.

In view of the "Green Initiatives” introduced by MCA and i terms of the provisions of the
Companies Act. 2013, members who are holding shares of the Company n physical mode. are
required to register their email addresses, so as to enable the Company to send all notices/
reports/ documents! mtimations and other correspondences. ete., through emails in the electrome
mode instead of receiving physical copies of the same. Mcembers holding shares m
dematenalized form, who have not registered their email addresses with Depository
Participant(s), are requested to register/update therr email addresses with their Depository
Participant(s).

In case of joint holders attending the ¢-AGM. the Member whose name appears as the first
holder m the order of names as per the Register of Members as on Frniday, 19" September 2025
{eut-off date) of the Company will be entitled to vote.

. Updation of and other details. SEBI vide its Circulars dated 3 November 2021 and 14

December 2021 mandated furnishing of PAN, KYC details (i.¢. postal address with pin code,
email address, mobile number, bank account details) and Nomnation details by holders of
physical  securities  through Form ISR-1 available  in the website:
hitps://www kemlaavurveda biz/

It may be noted that any service request or complaint can be processed only after the folio 1s
KYC compliant. Accordingly, the Company has sent individual letters to all the Members
holding shares of the Company in physical form for furmishing their PAN, KYC and
Nomination details.

Members holding shares of the Company in physical form are requested to po through the
requirements hosted on the website of the Company at hiips//www kemlaavurveda biz' and
fumish the requisite details,

. All documents referred to in the AGM Notice will be available electronically for inspection by

the members, without pavment of anv fees, from the date of circulation of this Notice upto the
date of AGM, ie¢., Friday, 26" September, 20253, Members secking inspection of the

aforementioned documents can send an email to companysecretan @ keralanvurveda biz,
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In order to strengthen the dispute resolution mechamism for all disputes between a listed
company and/or registrars & transfer agents and its sharcholder(s)/investor(s). SEBI had issued
a Standard Operating Procedure (*SOP’) vide Circular dated May 30, 2022. As per this Circular,
shareholder(s)/investor(s) can opt for Stock Exchange Arbitration Mechanism for resolution of
their disputes against the Company or its RTA. Further, SEBI vide Circular dated July 31, 2023
(updated as on December 20, 2023), introduced the Online Dispute Resolution (ODR) Portal,
Through this ODR pontal, the aggrieved party can mmhate the mechamism, afier exercising the
primary options to resolve its issue, directly with the Company and through the SEBI Complaimnt
Redress System (SCORES) platform. The Company has complied with the above circulars and
the same are available at the wihsite of the Company:

https://keralaayurveda biz/pages/investors.

The Process and Instructions for Remote E-Voting are As Under:

CDSL e-Voting System — For e-voting and Joining Virtual meetings.

As vou are aware, in view of the situation ansing due to COVID-19 global pandemic, the
general meetings of the companies shall be conducted as per the gmdelines issued by the
Mimstry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide Circular No. 14/2020 dated Apnl 8. 2020, Circular
No. 172020 dated Apnl 13, 2020 and Circular No. 2002020 dated May 05, 2020, The
forthcoming AGM/EGM will thus be held through through video conferencing (VC) or other
andio visual means (OAVM). Hence, Members can attend and parbcipate in the ensuing
AGM/EGM through VC/OAVM.

2. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of

the Companies (Management and Admimstration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation
44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended),
and MCA Circulars dated Apnl 08, 2020, Apnl 13, 2020 and May 03, 2020 the Company is
providing facility of remote e-voting to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted
at the AGM/EGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with Central
Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) for facilitating voting through electronic means,
as the authonzed ¢-Voting's agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote
c-voting as well as the e-voting system on the date of the EGM/AGM will be provided by
CDSL.

The Members can join the EGM/AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after
the scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure
mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation at the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM
will be made available to atleast 1000 members on first come first served basis. This will not
include large Sharcholders (Sharcholders holding 2% or more sharcholding), Promoters,
Institutional Investors, Directors. Kev Managenal Personnel. the Charrpersons of the Audit
Commuttee, Nomination and Remung¢raton Committee and Stakcholders Relatonship
Committee, Auditors ete. who are allowed to attend the EGM/AGM without restriction on
account of first come first served basis



4 The attendance of the Members attending the AGM/EGM through VC/OAVM will be

counted for the purpose of ascertaming the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act,
2013,

5. Pursuant to MCA Circular No. 1472020 dated Apnl 08, 2020, , the facility to appoint proxy to

atiend and cast vote for the members is not available for this AGM/EGM. However, in
pursuance of Section 112 and Section 113 of the Companics Act, 2013, representatives of the
members such as the President of India or the Govemor of a State or body corporate can
attend the AGM/EGM through VC/OAVM and cast their votes through esvoting.

6. In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated Apnl 13,

2020, the Notice calling the AGM/AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at
www kemlaavurveda biz. The Notice can also be accessed from the websites of the Stock
Exchanpes 1¢c. BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited at
www bseindia.com and www nseindia.com respectively, The AGM/AGM Notice is also
disseminated on the website of CDSL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility and
¢-voting svstem during the AGM/AGM) 1.¢. www evolingindia com.

7 The AGM/EGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable

provisions of the Companies Act. 2013 read with MCA Circular No, 14/2020 dated Apnl &,
2020 and MCA Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 and MCA Circular No. 20/2020
dated May 03, 2020,

8 In continuation to this Ministry's General Circular No. 20/2020 dated 05052020, General

Circular No, 02/2022 dated 05052022 and General Circular No, 10/2022 dated 28.12.2022
and after duc examination, it has been deaded to allow companies whose AGMs are duc
the Year 2023 or 2024, to conduct their AGMSs through VC or OAVM on or before 30th
September, 2024 1n accordance with the requirements laid down in Para 3 and Para 4 of the
General Circular No. 2042020 dated 05.05 2020

THE INTRUCTIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS FOR E-VOTING AND JOINING VIRTUAL
MEETINGS ARE AS UNDER:

(i)

Step1 @ Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Voting system in case of individual
shareholders holding shares in demat mode.

Step2 @ Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares
in physical mode and non-individual shareholders in demat mode.

The voting penod begms on Tuesday., 23 September, 2025 at 9.00 AM (IST) and ¢nds on
Thursday, 25" September, 2023 ull 3:00 PM (IST). During this peniod sharcholders of the
Company. holding shares cither in physical form or in dematenalized form. as on the cut-off
date (record date) of Friday. 19" September. 2025 mav cast their vote electromcally. The e-
voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.

Sharcholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled 1o vote

at the meeting venue.



(1ii)

(e}

Parsuant to SEBI Circular Mo, SEBVHOICFIVCMIDMCIR/P/20200242 dated 09.12.2020
amd SEBUNO/CFDVPaDZ/CIR/P/MSE November 11, 2024 under Regolation 44 of
Seeuntes and Exchanse Board of India (Lisimg Oblgalions md Dhsclosurne Roguiremens)
Resulations, 2U15. listed ennties are required to provide remwte e-votng facility to i
sharcholders, in respect of all shacholders™ resoluions, Tloweser, it has been observed that
lhe parbcpason by the pubhic nop-mstumoonal sharcholders/roial sharcholdors 15 al a

neghgible level.

Currently. there are multiple e-votng service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facilite to
ligted entitics i India, This noccssitates registration on various TSPs and maintenance of
maltiple user 1Ds and passwords by the shareholders.

In order to incrcase the olMicieney ol the voting process, pursuant fo a public conaultation, 1t
has been decided w enable c-voting Lo all the demat account holders, by way of a single
legin credential. through their demat accounts! websites of Depositories/ Depository
Pacticipants, Demat account halders would be able to cast thair vote without having to
regigter again with the TSPs, thetchy, nol only Rcilitating scamloss authentication but also
enhancing ease and conveniance of parmicipating i &-voring pocess.

Step | Access through Depositones CDSL/NSDL e-Yoting system in case of individual

sharcholders bolding shares 1n domal mode.

In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBVHO/ ' FIVCM VO LR/P 20200242 dated December 9,
2020 and SEBIHO/CFD/PoDXCIR/POLSS November 11, 2024, on c-Volmg faciliy
mrovidad by Listed Compames. Individual shareholders holding secunties m demat mode are
allowed to vore theough their demat secount maimtained with Depositones and Depository
Partiapants. Sharcholders are advised o vpdate ther mebile number and coenl o thewr

demat accounts in arder to access =-Yoring facilit:-

Pursuant to abovesaid SEBI Circular, Losin method for e-Yoting and joming virmal mestings for
Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat mode CDSL/NSDL w5 given bolow:

Type ol Loain Method
shareholders




Individual
Sharcholders
holding
SeCunies in
Demat mode
with CDSL
Depository

1)

Z)

3)

8]

Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their
existing user id and password. Option will be made available to reach ¢-
Voting page without any further authentication. The users to login to Easi /
Easiest are requested to visit cdsl website www cdshindia com and click on
lozin icon & My Easi New (Token) Tab

After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting
option for chgble compames where the evoting 15 in progress as per the
information provided by company. On clicking the evoting option, the user
will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for casting
vour vote during the remote e-Voung penod or joining virtual meeting &
voting dunng the mecting. Addinonally, there is also links provided 1o access
the system of all e-Voting Service Prowiders, so that the user can visit the ¢-
Voung service providers” website directly.

It the user 1s not registered for Easi/Easiest. option to register is available at
cdsl website www cdslindia.com and click on login & My Easi New (Token)
Tab and then chek on registration option

Alternatively, the user can dircetly aceess e-Voting page by providing Demat
Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voung link available on
www cdslindia com home page. The svstem will authenticate the user by
sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded m the Demat
Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to sce the e-Voting
option where the evoting is in progress and also able to directly access the

svstem of all e-Voting Service Providers.

Individual
Sharcholders
holding
sccuritics in
demat mode
with NSDL
Depository

1)

3)

If vou are already registercd for NSDL 1DeAS facility, please visit the e-
Services website of NSDL, Open web browser by typing the following URL:
hitps-Jleservices nadl com ¢ither on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once
the home page of e-Services 15 launched. click on the “Beneficial Owner™ icon
under “Logn™ which 1s available under “IDeAS” section. A new screen wall
apen. You will have to enter vour User 1D and Password After successful
authentication, vou will be able to see ¢-Voting services. Click on “Access 1o
e-Voting™ under ¢-Voting scrvices and you will be able to see e-Voting page
Click on company name or ¢-Voung service provider name and vou will be re-
dirceted to e-Voting service provider website for casting vour vote during the
remote e-Voting penod or joming virtual mecting & voting during the
meeting.

IF the user 18 not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option o register is
avalable at hitps//esenaces nasdl com,  Select “Register Online for IDeAS
“Portal or click at hitps://esenvicos nsdl com/SecureWeb/ldeasDhirectRe jsp

Visit the e-Votng website of NSDL. Open web browser by tvping the




following URL: hitps./www evoring nsdl com/ either on a Personal Computer

or on a moebile. Onece the home page of ¢-Voting svstem is launched, click on
the icon “Login™ which is available under “Sharcholder/Member” section, A
new screen will open. You will have to enter your User [D (i.c. your sixteen
digit demat account number hold with NSDL)., Password/OTP and a
Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you
will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein vou can see ¢-Voting
page. Chek on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will
be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting vour vote durning
the remote e-Voting penod or joining virwal meetng & voting during the
meeting

1) For orTp based login you can click
on hiips/feservices nsdl com/SecureWeb/evoting/cvotinglogngsp. You wall
have to enter vour 8-chgit DP D 8-digit Client Id. PAN No., Venfication code
and generate OTP. Enter the OTP received on registered email id/mobile

number and chick on login. After successful authenticanon, vou will be
redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein vou can sce e-Voting page, Click
on company name or ¢-Voting service provider name and you will be re-
ditected to e-Voting service provider website for casting vour vote during
the remote e-Voting penod or joiming virtual meeting & voting dunng the

meeling.

Individual
Sharcholders
(holding
securitics in
demat mode)
login through
their
Depository
Participants
(DP)

You can also login using the login credentials of vour demat account through vour
Depository Participant registencd with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility.  Afler
Successful login, you will be able to see ¢-Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting
option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site afler successful
authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature, Click on company name or ¢-
Voting service provider name and vou will be redirected to e-Voting service provider
website for casting vour vote during the remote e-Voting penod or joining virtual
meeting & voling during the meeting.

Important note: Members whe are unable to retneve User 1D/ Password are advised to use Forget
User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.




technical issues

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual

securtfies m Demat mode with CDSL

Sharcholders  holding | Members facing any technical issue in login can contact
CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at

helpdesk evotinga edslindia com or contact at toll free
no. 1800 2] (99]]

Individual

Sharcholders  holding | Members facing any techmical issue in login can contact

securities in Demat mode with NSDL. | NSDL  helpdesk by sending a rmguest at

evoting/ansdl coan or call at - 022 - 4886 7000 and 022
- 2499 7000

Step 2 = Access through CDSL ¢-Voting system in case of sharcholders holding shares in physical
mode and non-individual sharcholders in demat mode.

(v)  Login method for e-Voting and joming virtual meetings for Physical shareholders and
shareholders other than individual holding in Demat form.,
1) The sharcholders should log on to the e-voting website www evotingindia com
2) Click on “Sharcholders™ module.
3) Now enter your User 1D
a For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary 1D,
b For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Chent ID,
& Shareholders holding shares i Physical Form should enter Folio Number
registered with the Company.
4) Next enter the Image Venfication as displaved and Click on Login
3) If vou are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www evotingindia com
and voted on an earlicr e=voting of any company, then vour existing password is to be used.
f) If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below:
For Physical shareholders and other than individual shareholders holding
shares in Demat.
PAN Enter vour 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department

(Applicable for both demat sharcholders as well as physical sharcholders)
e  Sharcholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository
Participant are requested 1o use the sequence number sent by Company/RTA




or conlagl CompanyBTA

Thvidend
Bank
Ditails
OR
Date of
Rirth
(DOR)

Enter the Divadend Bank Thoteals or Dale of Birth (in ddfmm/yvyy v format) as recorded

in your demat account ot in the company records in order to login,

I both the details are nat reeorded with the depository or company. ploase
coier the member wl f folie number m the Dhvidend Bandbe dewals field.

(vi)
(i)

{vai)

{1x)

{x)

{xi}

{x0i)

( xiii}

After colenng these details appropriatwely . chek on “SUBMIT™ b,

Sharcholderg holding shanes in physical Torm will theo dircetly reach the Company selection
sereen However, sharcholders holding shares in domat form will now reach “Password
Creation” monu whergin they are sequired o mandatorily enter their login password in the
new password ficld. Kindly node thay tas password 1s 10 be also used by the demal holdors for
voling for resolutons of any olher company on whach they axe cligible to vole, pruvided (hat
company opls fur c-voling lrough CDSL platform. Tt 1y strongly ecommended neot e shars
vour password wilth any oher person aod whe uunest coe (0 keep vour passywuord
confidential,

Fur shanrcholders holding shurcy m physical fomm, the delmls can be vsed only for c-voling on
the resolunions contained in this Motice.

Chek on the EVSN: 250902085 for the mlevanl Kemla Avurveda Limiled on which vou
choose 10 vore.

On the voling page, you will see "BESOLUTION DESCRIPTIONT and agamst the same the
option “YESNO™ fur voling. Sclect the option YES or NO as dosied. The opuon YES
mmplics that you assenl 1w he Resolution and option MO implics thal you dissenl w e
Rosolution.

Click on the “RASOLUTIONS FILT LINK™ if you wish to view the enfire Resolution details,

After selecting the resolubion, you have decided to vole on, chick on “SUBMIT". A
conlinmation bov will be displaved 117 vow wish to confirm vour votg, ¢lick an 0K, elae w
change your vote, ¢lick on “CANCEL”™ and accordingly madily your volbs,

Onge vou "CONFIRM™ »our vote on the resolution. you will sot be allowed to modily your
ol



(xiv)

(xv}

(xvi)

{xvii)

You can also take a print of the votes cast by cheking on “Click here to print” option on the
Voting page,

If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User 1D and the
image venfication code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the
system.

There is also an optional provision to upload BR/POA if anv uploaded. which will be made
available to serutinizer for venfication.

Additional Facility for Non - Individual Shareholders and Custodians —For Remote
Voting only,

Non-Individual sharcholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI ete.) and Custodians are
required to log on to www cvotingindia com and register themselves in the “Corporates”™
module.

A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be

emailed to helpdesk evotine'wedslindia.com,

After receving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login
and password. The Comphance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish
to vole on.

The list of accounts linked in the login will be mapped automatically & can be delink in case
of any wrong mapping

It is Mandatory that, a scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attomey (POA)
which they have issued in favour of the Custodian. if any, should be uploaded in PDF format
m the system for the scrutinizer to venfy the same.

Alternatively Non Individual sharcholders are required mandatory to send the relevant Board
Resolution/ Authority letter ctc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly
authorized signatory who are authonzed to vote. to the Scrutinizer and to the Company at the
email address viz. companvseerctarvid keralaavurveda iz (designated email address by
company), if they have voted from individual tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL ¢-voting

system for the scrutinmizer 1o venify the same.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM
& E-VOTING DURING MEETING ARE AS UNDER:



1. The procedure for atending mecting & e-Votng on the day of the AGM/ EGM s same as the
mstructions mentioned above for e-voting.

2. The lmk for VC/OAVM to attend meeting will be available where the EVSN of Company
will be displaved after successful login as per the instructions mentioned above for e-voting.

e

Sharcholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be ehgble to attend the meeting.
However, they will not be chigible to vote at the AGM/EGM.

4. Sharcholders are encouraged to join the Mecting through Laptops / IPads for better
expenence,

3. Further sharcholders will be required to allow Camera and use Tnternet with a good speed to
avoid any disturbance duning the meeting.

6. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop
connecting via Mobile Hotspot mav expenence Audio/Video loss duc to Fluctuation in their
respective network. It is therefore recommended 1o use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to
mitigate anv kind of aforesaid glitches

7. Sharcholders who would hike to express their views/ask questions duning the meeting may
register themselves as a speaker by sending their request in advance atleast § days prior to
meeting mentiomng their name, demat account number/folio number, email 1d, mobile
number at (company ¢). The sharcholders who do not wish to speak duning the AGM but have
quenes may send their quenies in advance 5 days prior to meeting mentioning their name,
demat  accoumt  numberfolio  number,  emal  id,  mobile  number  at
companvsecretany dkeralaavurveda biz. These queries will be replied to by the company
suitably by email.

8. Those sharcholders who have registered themselves as a speaker wall only be allowed to
express their views/ask questions dunng the meeting.

4. Only those sharcholders, who are present in the AGM/EGM through VC/OAVM facility and
have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not
barred from doing so. shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system available dunng the
EGM/AGM.

10, If anv Votes are cast by the sharcholders through the ¢-voting available dunng the
EGM/AGM and if the same sharcholders have not participated in the mecting through
VC/OAVM facility, then the votes cast by such sharcholders may be considered invalid as the
facility of ¢-voting during the meeting i1s available only to the sharcholders attending the
meeting,

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT
REGISTERED WITH THE COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES,

1. For Physical sharcholders- please provide necessary details hke Folio No., Name of
sharcholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attcsted scanned
copy of PAN card). AADHAR (self atested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to
cinward@integratedindia.in,



2. For Demat sharcholders -, Please update vour email id & mobile no. with vour respective
Depository Participant (DP)

3. For Individual Demat shareholders — Please update your email id & mobile no. with
your respective Depository Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting &
joining virtual meetings through Depository.

If vou have any quencs or issues wgm‘dmg attendmg ﬁ.G’\"I & c-Votmg from the CDSL e-Voting
System, vou can write an email to helpdos j icom or contact at toll free no. 1800 21
!‘J'Jﬁ‘l |

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by clectronic means may be addressed to Mr.
Rakesh Dalvi, Sr. Manager, (CDSL, ) Central Depository Serviees (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th
Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lowser Parel (East). Mumbai -
400013 or send an email to helpdesk evotingaedslindia com or call toll free no. 1800 21 09911



Pursuant o Section 102(1) o The Companics Act, 2013, the following Taplanatory Statemant sets out
all matenal facts wlamy w Special Busmess mentioned under resolulions Nos 3 and 4 of he

accompanving Notice.

ITEM NO, 3¢

Pursuant fo Scction 148 of the Act read with the Companics (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended from me W ume. e Company 15 reguired 1o have 113 cost eeords audited by the Cost
Accountant, Based on the regonmendation of the Audit Committee, the Boand at its meeting Tield on 297
Augusl. 2025, approved the appointmen| of My, SLR & Assocaicy. Koch (having Firm Regisimtion No.
63 LUS), as the Cost Auditors of the Company to conduct andit of cost records maintained by the
Company, pertanmg to the relevant products presenbed under the Companicy (Cost Records and Audit)
Ridoy, 2014, for tw financial year 202326 4l a remunsration of Rs. L30,004/- (Rupess One Lakh Fifly

Thausand Dnlv) plas out of pocket expenses & service tax as applicable.

In secordunce with the provisions of Sccuon 148 of the Act read with Rule 14 of the Compames (Audil
and Auditors) Ruales, 20014, as amended from time 1o nme, rmtification for the remuneration pavahle to
the Cost Auditors to audit the cost records of the Company lor the said lNnancial scar by way of an

Ordingry Rosolution is being sought from (he members as set ool al Tem No. 5 of e Notee.

Mis SLR & Associates have lumnghed o cortificat: egarding thee chigibility Tor appointments as Cost
Audilors of the Compuany. Thes have vast expenence m Lhe ficld of cost audil amd have conduclad e
audil of the cost records of the Company for previous vears under the provisions of the Act 'Lhe
remungration lias been determinged by the Board based on the industey standards, time and ot
roguared for the audit process, and the scope of the cost audit. The Board considers the emumeraion Lo

he farr and reasonable. commensurate with the size and nature of operaticns of the Campany'.

L'he Board reconnnends the Ordinary Resolation set out at ltem No. 3 of the Notice for approval by the
members, None of the Dirgetors, Koy Managerial Personncl or their relatises are. inany way,

guncermcd or mivtstod, financially or othersase, mthe sad resolugon.



Brief Profile of M/s. SLR & Associates:

SLR and Associates is a parmership finm promoted by cost and management accountants having
meticulous track record and sound professional background. All the partners have more than 10 vears
of postqualification expenence. All the partners are working partners and heads three different
branches of the firm situated i different locations in the State of Kerala, Emakulam, Thrissur and
Thiruvananthapuram, Head Office of the firm is located at Emakulam

The firm have external associates and advisors from IT, Mechamcal Engineenng. Process Engineering,
Civil Engineering, Architects and Health Care specialists.

ITEM NO. 4;

Legal Background

Pursuant to Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act™) read with Rule 9 of the Companics
{Appointment and Remuneration of Managenal Personnel) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time,
every listed company 15 required to annex with its Board's Report, a Sceretanial Audit Report given by a
Company Seeretary in Practice.

Further, pursuant to Regulation 24A of the Secunities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2013 ("SEBI Listing Regulanons”), as amended from time
to time, every listed entity shall undentake Secretarial Audit by a Seerctanal Auditor who shall be a
Peer Reviewed Company Secrctary, and the appointment of such Secretarial Auditor shall be approved
by the Members of the Company at the Annual General Meeting.

Board's Decision and Recommendation

In compliance with the aforesaid provisions and after evaluating various factors ncluding industry
experience, competence of the audit team, efficiency in conduct of audit, independence, professional
expertise. and cost-cffectiveness, the Board of Directors of the Company . in its meeting held on August
29, 2025, approved the appoimment of M/s, SVIS & Associates, (Firm Registration No,
P2008KE017900 and Peer Review Cemificate No. 6215/2024), Company Seccretarics, as the
Secretanal Auditors of the Company for a term of five consecutive vears commencing from financial
vear 2023-26 nll Financial Year 2029-30 on such terms and remuneration as may be mutually agreed
upon between the said Secretanal Auditors and Board of Directors of the Company. subject 1o the
approval of the sharcholders of the Company at the 33™ Annual General Meeting and applicable
provisions of the Companies Act. 2013, SEBI Regulations including amendments from time to time



During the financial vear 2024-25_ the company has paid INR 150,000/~ (Rupces One Lakh Fifty
Thousand Only) per annum plus applicable taxes and out of pocket expenses as seeretanal audit fees to
SVJS & Associates and on such terms and conditions as may be decided by the Board of Directors in
consultation with the Secretanal Auditors of the Company, with authonty to the board to make revision

in fees at such mtervals as it may deem fit.

The proposed remuneration to be paid to M/s. SVIS & Associates for secretarial andit services for the
financial year ending March 31, 2026, 1s Rs. 1.50,000/- (Rupces One Lakh Fifty Thousand Only) per
annum plus applicable taxes and out-of-pocket expenscs. Besides the secretanal audit services, the
Company may also obtain certifications from M/s, S8VIS & Associates under vanous statutory
regulations and cermifications required by banks, statutory authonties, audit related services and other
permissible non-secretarial audit services as required from time to time, for which they will be

remuneraled separately.

About the Proposed Secretarial Auditors

A Firm of Practicing Company Sccretaries established in the vear 2008, SVIS stnves for sustained
excellence in the field of compliance and governance practice, by being a true blend of the traditional
and modem value systems, practices and culture, SVIS is headed by 5 Partners, who together bring to
the fore more than 100 vears of expenience in compliance and governance management. The Firm
places paramount importance on the value addition that it seeks to bring to clients through its different
services and is mindful of even the smallest kind of service rendered. SVIS is supremely committed to

the needs of each of its clients and spares no efforts in fulfilling these effectually

Bemg an ISO cenified firm. there is a constant endeavour within SVIS to review and improve
existing arcas of service, while at the same time adding new areas of service, keeping in sight
changing times and the wrbulent business environment. The Firm seeks to provide professional
services of the highest standard which i1s mirrored i each of the assignments undertaken.

In December 2021, SVIS was conferred the award for the Best Firm of Practicing Company
Secretanies by the Institute of Company Secretanies of India (1CS1), New Delhi, as part of the National
Awards for excellence in Corporate Governance for the vear 2021,



Consent mpliance firmation
M/s. SVIS & Associates have provided their written consent to act as Secretanal Auditors and have
confirmed that:

1. Their appointment will be in accordance with Section 204 of the Companies Act. 2013

2. They comply with the requirements under SEBI (Listng Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and SEBI circulars issued thereat
3. They possess the necessary peer review certification
4. There are no disqualifications under applicable laws that would prevent their appointment

Recommendation:

In view of the above, the consent of the Members 15 sought to pass an Ordinarv Resolution as set out
al Item No. 4 of the Notice for the appointment of M/s, SVIS & Associates as Seerctanial Auditors of
the Company for a period of 5 vears commencing from Financial Year 2025-26 ull Financial Ycar
2029-30

None of the Directors, Kev Managenial Personnel (KMPs) of the Company, or their respective
relanves are concerned or interested, either direetly or indireetlv, financially or otherwise, m the
Resolution mentioned at Item No. 4 of the Notice. The Board of Dircctors recommends the Resolution

sct forth in Item No. 4 for the approval of the Members of the Company by way of an Ordinary

Resalution.
Registered Office By Order of the Board of Directors
XV/351, Athani, Nedumbassery, For Kerala Ayurveda Limited

Emakulam, Kerala, 683585

Date: 29/08/2025 Sd/-
Place: Athani Ramesh Vangal
Chairman

(DIN: 00064018)
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Details of Director secking Appointment

(Pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, Companies Act, 2013 and Secrctanal Standard on General Meetings)

Name of the Director

Mr. Kodikannath Javarajan
(DIN: 107984 70)

Date of Birth and Age

03.05.1971/ 54 vears

Mationality Indian
Date of first appointment on the Board of | (4.10.2024
Dircctors of the Company

Quikificutions B.sc and BAMS

Experience (including nature of expertise

in specific functional arcas) Brief Resume

Dr. Jayarajan is a globally recognized Ayurvedic
scholar, author, researcher. and educator with
over 20 years of clinical experience in Ayurveda,
both in India and the U.S. Currently serving as
the President of the National Ayurvedic Medical
Association (NAMA) and the CEO and Chief
Ayurveda Consultant of Kerala Ayurveda USA,

Mumber of shares held m the Company
(sclf and as a beneficial owner)

Nil

List of directorships held in other public
compamiés (excluding foreign companies)

Nil

Chairman/Member of the Committees of
the Boards of the other Public Companics
in which he/she is Dircetor (includes only
Audit Committee and Stakcholders

Relationship Committee)

Nil

Listed entiies from which the person has
resigned in the past three yvears

Nil




Relationship with other Directors, Manager
and Kev Managenial Personnel of the
Company

Not related to any Directors or KMPs of the
Company

Number of meetings of the Board attended Two
during the vear financial vear 2024-2025
Remuneration last drawn in financial Nil

year 2024-2025

Details of remuneration sought to be

paid

Except for sitting fees for attending the meeting of
Board, no other remuneration 1s paid.

Skills and capabilities required for the

role and the manner in which the

proposed person meets such
requirements
Terms and conditions of | Terms and conditions as mentioned in the appointment
appointment/reappointment letter
Registered Office By Order of the Board of Directors

XV/531, Athani, Nedumbassery,
Ernakulam, Kerala, 683383

Date: 29/08/2023
Place: Atham

For Kerala Avoarveda Limited

Sd/-

Ramesh Vangal
Chairman

(DIN; D006401%)
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting the 33 Annual Report together with the Audited Financial
Statements (Standalone and Consolidated) for the Financial Year ended 31" March 2025,

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Company's financial performance during the vear 2024-25 along with previous vear figures 15

summarized below.

Kerala Avurveda Limited:

(In Lakhs)
Pt Standalone Consolidated
2024-25 2023-24 2024-25 2023-24
MNet Sales /Income from Business Operations 7.268.92 6,803 .65 1203335 | 10.315.11
Other Income 517.13 30066 181,68 30.05
Total Income 7.786.05 | 7.104.31 12,215.03 | 10.345.16
Less: Total expenses including Depreciation 9.134.18 7,120.99 1343862 | 10.279.58
Profit before exceptional Items and Tax (1.348.13) | (16.6%) (1,223.59) Hh3.58
Prior Period Items = - _ i
Profit before tax (1.348.13) (16.68) [ (1,223.59) 65.58
Less: Tax Expenses/Tax Credit 29,84 22.00) 172.31 [21.60
Net Profit after Tax (1377.98) | 532 (L39590) | (56.02)
Earmings per share (Basic) (11.45) 0.05 (11.600) {0.51)
Eamings per Share (Diloted) (11.45) (.05 (11.60) (.51

The Company does not propose to transfer any amount to its Reserves for the year under review.

. REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

During the Financial Year under review, the operational results (Profit before Tax) ended with Rs
(1.348.13) lacs as against Rs (16.608) Lakhs during the previous yvear. The Net revenue of the company
stands at Rs. 7,268.92 Lakhs as against Rs 6,803.65 Lakhs during the previous year, showing an
increase of 6.84%. The consolidated net revenue including its subsidiaries for the current vear, is Rs.
12.033.15 Lakhs against Rs. 10.315.11 Lakhs during the previous yvear.
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There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company which
have occurred between the end of the tinancial year of the Company to which the financial statements
related and the date of this report except as mentioned in the Financials.

3. SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES AND CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Your company has seven subsidiaries including one step down subsidiary as on 31% March, 2025 and
the details are as under:

SL No Name Location % of holding
1. Ayurvedagram Heritage Wellness Centre Pyt Lid, India T4
2. Avarvedic Academy Ine. USA 100
3. Suveda Inc. (formerly known as Nutraveda Inc.) UisA 1013
4. Avyu Natural Medicine Clinic, P§ UsA 100
5. UMS Katra Holdings LLC LiSA Rl. 67
6, CMS Katmra Nursing LLC LsA 1
i ! Nutraveda PTE Lud, Singapore L0t

YOMS Katra Holdings LLC holds 1009 shareholding in CMS Katra Nursing LLC; hence CMS Katra Nursing L1 v a

step=down subsidiary of pouwr compan,

The Company has indirectly acquired 51% stake in the equity share capital of Om Vedic Heritage
Centre Pte. Ltd. through its wholly owned subsidiary company 1.e. Ayurvedic Academy Inc, at a
consideration of SGD 280,000 (equivalent to INR 17,763,200) as per the exceuted Share Purchase
Agreement and Shareholders | Agreementand same has been approved by ACRA, regulator of
Singapore.

The statement contaiming salient features of the financial statement of subsidiarnes/associate
companies/ joint ventures in Form AQC-1 is attached as Annexure 1.

4. HIGHLIGHTS ON PERFORMANCE OF SUBSIDIARIES

>

Indian Subsidiary

During the yvear under review, M/s. Avurvedagram Heritaze Wellness Centre Private Limited. has
achieved a turnover of Rs.1341.71 Lakhs as against Rs. 113347 Lakhs in the previous financial year.
Accordingly. the EBITDA of the company is Rs.487.33 Lakhs against Rs. 480.16 Lakhs in the
previous year.

Overseas Subsidiaries
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The combined turnover of overseas subsidiaries 13 Bs. 336019 Lakhs as compared to Rs. 2505.05
Lakhs in the previous year, The performance of each of the subsidiaries of the Company is
mentioned below:

a) Ayurvedic Academy Inc

The turnover of Avurveda Academy Inc during the financial year 2024-25 15 Rs.2873.34 Lakhs as
compared Rs. 1933.00 Lakhs in the previeus year. The profit of the subsidiary after taxes was
Rs.5.03 Lakhs as compared to profit of Rs.14.79 Lakhs in the prevismyeat.

b) Suveda Inc. (formerly known as Nutraveda Inc.)

The turnover of Suveda Ine. during the finaneial year 2024-25 is Rs 686 85 Lakhs as compared to
Rs. 575.04 Lakhs in the previous year. The subsidiary incurred a loss of Rs.361.09 Lakhs as
compared to a loss of Rs. 140.84 Lakhs in the previous vear.

¢) Ayu Natural Medicine Clinic, PS, USA

The turnover of Ayu Natural Medicine Clinic, P 5, USA is nil during the financial year 2024 25
and nil in the previous year. The subsidiary has incurred 0.17 lakhs loss in the financial year 2024-
25 and not earned any profit or incurred any loss in the previous vear.

d) CMS Katra Holdings LLC, USA

The turnover of CMS Katra Holdings LLC is nil during the financial vear 2024-25 and nil in the
previous year. The subsidiary has incurred 0.17 lakhs loss in the financial yvear 2024 25 and not
carned any profit or ineurred any loss in the previous year.

¢) CMS Katra Nursing LLC, USA

The turnover of CMS Katra Holdings LLC. USA is nil during the financial year 2024-25 and nil in
the previous vear. The subsidiary has incurred 100.33 lakhs loss in the financial year 2024-25
compared to a loss of Es. 0.85 Lakhs in the previous year.

f) Nutraveda Pte Lid

The turnover of Nutraveda Pte Ltd is nil during the financial vear 2024 25 and nil in theprevious
year. The subsidiary has not earned any profit or incurred any loss in the current year and previous
YEAr.

5. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As per Rule 8 of Companies (Accounts) Amendments Rules, 2016, a report on the highlights of
performance of subsidiaries, associates and joint venture companies and their contributions to the
overall performance of the company during the period under report is attached as Annexure-1. Any
member intending to have a copwvhel Balance sheet and other financial statement of these
Companies  shall be made  available on  the website of the Company
hetps:'www keralaayurveda biz/investor-relationships under the | Investor? Tab. [t shall also be kept
for inspection during business hours by any shareholder in the registered office of the Company and
the respective offices of its subsidiary companies.
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6.

10.

COMPANIES WHICH HAVE BECOME OR CEASED TO BE ITS SUBSIDIARIES
DURING THE YEAR

During the Financial vear ended 317 March 2025, no entity has become or ceased to be a subsidiary,
joint venture or associate of the Company.

. DIVIDEND

The Board ofDirectors of your company, after considering holistically the relevant circumstances
and keeping in view the company s growth prospects, has decided that it would be prudent not to
recommend any Dividend for the year under review.

RESERVES

The company does not propose transferring any amount to reserves during the period. At the end of the
yiear, the other equity of the company is Rs, 1309.47 Lakhs as against Rs, 2074, 30 Lakhs of the previous
year. During the year the company had a deficit of Rs. 1377.98 Lakhs.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS. IF ANY

There is no change in the nature of business of the Company during the financial year ended 2 1st
March, 2025,

DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONS:

Appointment / Reappointment / Resignation of Directors/Retirement of Directors

Appointment/Reappointment of Directors

l. The Board of Directors have appointed Mr. Samir Dhawan as an Additional Director
designated as Non- Executive Independent Director of the Company lor a period of five years
by passing a Circular resolutionw.e.f. 4™ October 2024 till 03 October 2029, The same was
subsequently approved by the members in its EGM dated 3™ January 2025,

2. The Board of Directors have appointed Mr., Kshiti Ranjan Das as an Additional Director
designated as Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company for a period of 5 years
w.e.f. 4" October 2024 till (13* October 2029, The same was subsequently approved by the
members in its EGM dated 3" January 2025,

3. The Board of Directors have appointed Mr. Jayarajan Kodikannath as an Additional Director
designated as Non Execcutive Director of the Company w.e.f. 04" October 2024, The same
was subsequently approved by the members in its EGM dated 3" January 2025,



Hersa Ayurveds LTD

11.

4. The Board of Directors have appointed Mr. Utkarsh Singh (DIN: 09244896) as an Additional
Director designated as Non-Executive Director of the Company w.e.f. 19 March 2025, The
same was subsequently approved by the members in its EGM dated 18" June 2025,

& The Board of Divecrovs have appointed My, Solf Khan (DIN: 07803060 as an Additional Dtvecior designated as Now
Execwtive Divector of the Company woef0 307 Sune 2025 The same way sihyequently approved by the members through
Postial Ballot dated 2 27 Awguse 2025,

The Board fax fither approved e Contimeation of My, Ramesh Vangal (OGN 000640088 and My, Anand Swbramanian
(NG (NGL083) termunation of the Tguidation proceedings againgt Katra Holdings L (Promeater of the Company) vide
Hhe arder po, SCOOMMOTANMN T 2722025 passed by the Supreme Court of Mauritins (Commercial/Sankrgptovy Division)
dected T May 2023 The appointment of My, Ramesh Vangal was subsequently approved by the members through Poxstal
Ballot dared 2 2™ August 2023, However, members did not approve the continuation of Mr. Anard Subramanian,

Resignation of Directors

Mr. Harish Kuttan Menon (DIN: 00585260) completed his first term of 5 consecutive years on June
29, 2024, The Board, on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and
considering his expertise and expenence in the varied fields and on the basis of perfformance
evaluation report. had approved the re-appointment of Mr, Harish Kuttan Menon as an Independent
Director via resolution by circulation for a term of 3 vears with effect from June 30, 2024, to June
29, 2027, The members of the company approved the said re-appointment in the ensuing Annual
General Meeting by way of a special resolution.

However, Mr. Harish resigned as an Independent Director of the Company with effect from closure
of business hours on 1" October 2024, due to personal exigencies.

Retirement by Cessation of Tenure

. Mr. Gokul Patnaik (DIN: 00027915) retired from office on completion of his tenure as a Nen

Executive Director of the Company w.e.f. the close of business hours on 23™ September 2024,

14

Mr. Subramaniam Krishnamurthy (DIN: 0040414) retived from the office on completion of his
first term as an Independent Director of the Company w.e.f. the close of business hours on 23rd

September, 2024,

Retirement by rotation

Mr. Kodikannath Jayarajan (DIN: 10795470) Director will retire by rotation at (he ensuing Annual
General Meeting of the company and being eligible has offered himself for re-appointment.

A brief resume of the aforesaid Director and other information have been detailed in the notice
convening the Annual General Meeting of the Company. An appropriate resolution for his re-
appointment is being placed for approval of the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

NUMBER OFMEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEE

CONDUCTED DURING THE YEAR UNDER REVIEW:

An annual calendar of Board and Committee Mectings planned during the year were prepared and
circulated in ‘advance to the Directors. During the vear Seven®* Board Meetings, Four Audit
Committee Meetings, Two Nomination REemuneration Committee meetings and Five Stakeholders
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12.

13.

Relationship Commitiee meetings were convened and held. The details of meeting & attendance are
given in the Corporate Governance Report, The intervening gap between the Meetings was within
the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (LODR) Regulstions, 2015 and
pursuant to the relaxations provided.

During the financial year 208 -25, the Board of Directors of the Company met on the following
dates-

SL No. | Date of Board Meeting N!Jl‘flhﬂ‘ of Directors ‘Number of "I'f!irenilflrs who
eligible to attend meeting | attended the meeting
1. 20.05.2024 8 §
Z: 09.07.2024 g R
31 14.08.2024 8 H
4. L8.09.2024 q 7
5. 20.09.2024* N 5
6. 14.11.2024 R 6
7. | 14.02.2025 . 4

*The Beard Meeing held on 18,09 2024 was adioterned on 20092024, however. far the purpoase of counting nember of
Board Meelings held during the vear, that adionened medting has been sepavately counted.

Further, separate meeting of Independent Directors of the Company was held on February 28, 20235
where the prescribed items enumerated under Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013 and clause
25(4) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 were discussed,

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR(S)

The independent directors of your Company have given a declaration to the Company under Section
149 (7) of the Companies Act. 2013 and Rule 6 of Companies (Appointment and Qualification of
Directors) Rules 2014 that. they meet the criteria of independence as provided in Sub Section
including SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ([ Listing
Regulations ). The independent directors have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct. The
Independent Directors also affirmed compliance under Section 150 of the Companies Act, 2013
including any amendments/ notifications issued from time to time,

In the opinion of the Board of Directors of the Company. Independent Directors of your Company
holds highest standards of integrity and are highly qualified, recognized and respected individually
in their respective fields. The composition of Independent Directors is the optimum mix of expertise
(including financial expertise), leadership and professionalism.

FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAMME OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
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Periodic presentations are made at the Board and Committee meetings on business and performance
updates of the Company and business strategy, The Company has carried out various programmes to
familiarize Independent Directors with the Company, résponsibilities in the Company, nature of the
industry in which the Company operates. business model of the Company and related matters.

Dietails of the familiarization programme for Independent Directors are explained in the Corporate
Governance Report,

14. DETAILS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO
SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

The statement containing information as required under the provisions of Section 197(12) of the
Companies Act, 2003 read with Rule S@hd 3(2) of th&'ompanies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 forms part of this Report as Annexure 2.

15.A STATEMENT INDICATING THE MANNER IN WHICH FORMAL ANNUAL
EVALUATION HAS BEEN MADE BY THE BOARD OF ITS OWN
PERFORMANCE AND THAT OF ITS COMMITTEES AND INDIVIDUAL
DIRECTORS:

Pursuant to the provisions of The Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations. 2015, the Board has carried out an annual performance
evaluation of its own performance. the directors individually as well as the working of its commuitiees,
The manner the evaluation has been camied out has been explained in the Corporate Governance
Report.

16. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY OF DIRECTORS, KEY
MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND OTHER EMPLOYEES

As required under Section 178(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 20135, the Board of Directors of the Company has approved
a policy on directors’ appointment and remuneration including eriteria for determining qualifications,
positive attributes, independence of a director and other matters provided ws 178(3). The broad
parameters covered under the Policy are - Company Philosophy, Guiding Principles, Nomination of
Directors, Remuneration of Directors, Nomination and Remuneration of the Key Managerial
Personnel and Senior Management and the Remuneration of other employees and other related
matters, The Company's Policy furnished as Annexure 3 forms part of this Report. The policy is also
uploaded on the website of the Company at hitps:/fwww keralaayvurveda bizdinvestor-relationships
under lnvestor Section



kerald |

> ayurvida

17.DISCLOSURE _ ON _MANAGING DIRECTOR AND KEY MANAGERIAL
PERSONNELS RECEIVING REMUNERATION AND COMMISSION FROM
HOLDING COMPANY OR SUBSIDIARY COMPANY':

The Managing Director and Key Managerial Personnels (KMPs) of the Company have not received
remuneration and commissien from any of its subsidiary companies.

18. PARTICULARS OF AUDITORS:

1. Statutory Auditors

M/s. G. Joseph & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Registration No. 0063 10), was appointed
by the members in its 32" Annual General Meeting, as the Statutory Auditors of the Company
for a term of 5 consecutive years with effect from the conclusion of 32" Annual General Meeting
till the conclusion of 37" Annual General Meeting

Accordingly, the statutory Auditors have conducted the Audit, and issued their report on the
standalone and consolidated financial statements of the Company for the financial vear ended
March 31, 2025 containing the following observations:

| Auditor Observations Management's Response
| The Company has a bank account with a | The management has clarified that no
balance of Rs. 3.85 lakhs as at 31st March | transactions have occurred through this bank
- 2025, which is subject to confirmation and | account during the reporting period and that
| reconciliation. In the absence of sufficient | steps are being taken to regularize and
Caudit evidence regarding the accuracy and | formally close the account.
completeness of this balance, we are unable o
determine the possible adjusiments, ifany, that

L

The said Audit Report forms part of this Annual Report.

2. Secretarial Auditors

M/s, 8VIS & Associates, a firm of practicing Company Secretaries { 'Secretarial Auditors 1),
carried out the secretarial audit of compliance with the Act and the rules made there under, the
Listing Regulations and other applicable regulations as prescribed by SEBI, Foreign Exchange
Management Act, 1999 and other laws specifically applicable to the Company.

The Secretarial Audit Report in Form MR-3 for the financial year ended 31% March 2025 is
attached to this Report as Annexure- 4. The Secretarial Auditors!  Report have the following

observations:
| Auditor Observations Management s Response
IR Ax per Regulation 23 (9} of the Securities and Exchange | Company 15 taking steps to

| Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclasure Requirements) comply it in the subsequent

| Regdations, 2005, the fisted endity shall submis to the stock exchanges filings.

| disclosures of related party transactions in the format ax specificd by
the Board from time to fme, aind publish the same on iis wehsite, We

| re yirable (o comment on whether Reloted party disclosures for the
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half vears ended 30032024 and 30002024 comtains all such
transections in the absence of financial data of subsidiaries.

2, Refated Party Transactions with Avervedagram Heritage
Wellnese Centre Private Limited for the financial vear M024-25 has
exceeded the prescribed limits nnder the fivst provize (o Regufation 23
{1hof the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listng Chligaions
and Divclosure Reguirenents) Regdations, 2005

This transaction was rectified
by the shareholders and on Suo
muotio basis Settlement
application has also been
submitted with SEBI.

3 Half of the board of directors of the Company do pot consis
af fndepepdent divectors jor a period from (9032025 10 31003/2025
as per regulation 17 (1B of the Secirities and Exchange Board of
Frdia (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguiremenis) Regulations,
25 However, on date the company is iy complicnce with this
regiirement.

This has been complied with.

A, As per second Provise fo regulation 17 (1E) of the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Livting Obligations and Disclosure
Reguirements) Regulations, 2005, i the lsted entity hecomes Hon
compliant with the reguivement wnder sub regulution (1) of thiy
regulation, suberegulfation (1) of regulation I8, sub-regulation (1) ar
{2 af resmidation [9, suh vegulation (2) or (240 of veswlation 20 ar suh 4
reglation (2} or (3) of regulation 21, due o expiration of the wevm of
effice nf any divector, the reswlting vacancy shall be filled hy the listed
entity ol fnter than tie date swch office is vacated. Vacanoy created
in the office of independent director due to expiration of the term of
affice of Mr. Subramaniam Krishwamurtfy on 23002024 ds filled by
the Comtpany only o 08002024 heing later than the date such office
iy vaeated,

As this director has ceased to be
on the beoard of Company
therefore nothing can be done,
however going forward this
will be followed,

£ Az per regndution 17¢8) of the Securiiiey and Exchange Board
af  fwdia  (Listing  Obfigations  and  Disclosure Reguirements)
Regdations, 2003, the chief executive officer and the ehiel financial
afficer shall provide the compliance certificate to the board of
directors as specified in Part B of Schedule I, Complionee Certificate
regiired wader regularion [T8) is siganed by Whele-time Director of
the Company instead of Chief Executive Officer.

The Company cannot rectify
this and going forward this will
be taken care of.

, Ax per regularion 27(2)fc) of the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosurve Requivemenis)
Resudations, 20003, the report mentioned i clawse farF of sub
regulation {2) shall be signed either by the compliance afficer or the
chief executive afficer of the listed entity. CQuarterly complianes repori
o corporaie governance for the guariers ended 30024 and
314222024 andd Integrated Filing{zovernancel for the guarters ended
LA 22024 and 3032025 ave nod signed by the Complianee Officer
o the CEQ, fnstead it I signed I CFO.

As U5 was on maternity leave
and CFO was appointed as the
designed compliance officer for
filing and being a KMP he was
signing this. This has been
noted and will be complied
with in future.

7 Aw per regulation 30 (6 of the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Ohligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2005, vead with Schedule T (Part-AA N0, the listed
entity shall dizcloze 1o the Exchangeds) the outconme of meetings of the
board of directors held to consider financial resulis within 30 minutes
af the closure of the meeting. Cutcome of meeting held on 29052024
which considered financial resilis for the vear ended 3432024 is
nat intimated to stock exchange within 30 minutes of the closure of the
Hreefing.

The Company cannot rectify
this by filing it on current date,
Will take steps to comply in
future.

A As per regulation 32(74) of the Securities and Exchange
Boavd of India (Listing Obfigations and Disclosure Reqguivements)
Regulations, 2015, where an enmiitv has roved funds tivough

prefervential allotment av qualified instiniions placement, the listed

This will be taken care of in
future.

E Finonclal Statemants |
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antiry shall disclose every vear, tie wilizanon of such fundy during
thar year D jis Awewal Report until such funds are fifly wiilized,
Disclosure  rezarding  the  whilization of  funds  raived  through
preferential alfotment duving the financial vear financial vear ended

3 As per regulation 30(4)ta) of the Securities and Exchange | The filing requirement has been
Board af India (Listing Obligations und Disclosure Reguivements) | complied with, going forward
Regulations, 2015 read with Master Cirawdar (Equity) of Bombay | (he company will complete this
Stock Exchange, the disclosures made by the Nsted entity with PR I - :

immediate effect from date of notification of these amendments- {(a) to witiy doe thme period.
the stock exchanges shall e in XERL format in accordanee with the
puidelines specificd by the stock exehanges from time to e, Furiler,
ax per Master Crrewlar, all listed entities would be reguived to sishmit
the filings in XBRL mode within 24 hours of sulimission of the said
PDF filing. There were cerfain lapses in this time reguivement of 24
hawirs.

i, As per regulation 36 (3) of the Securities and Exchange | The Company cannot rectify
Board af fndia (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requivements) | this on current date. Will take
Redations, 2003, the natice being sent to sharehaolders for an annuerl steps to comply in future.
general meeting, where the statutory awditoris) or Secretarial Adwdiror
isfare proposed 1o be appeintedire-eppointed  shall inelude  the
Sollowing disclosures as o part of the explanaiory statement fo the
notice:

fa)Propased feed pavabie to the stanatory auditorfs) or Secretarial
Auditor plong with terms of appointment and in cose of @ pew andifor,
anv material change in the fee pavable to such auditor from that paid
o the outgeing auditor alerng with the rationale for such change;

i) Basis of recopmendation for appeiniment moluding the details in
relation 1o and credencials of the staiutory anditoris) or Seeretarial
Auditar proposed to he appointed.

Notice of AGM held on 200092024 had an item for appofniment of
Mis, G Juseph & Assoctates as the Statwtory Awditors of the
Company, however no dxplapatory statoment for this item was given
it the AGM notice containing aforesictd disclosures

1t As per regulation 39 (1) read with Schedule 1V (F) of the | The Company cannot rectify
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obliganons and | this on current date. Will take
Disclosure Reguivements) Remudations, 2015, the listed entity shall
comply with the procedural réguirements specified in Schedwle Vi
winfe dealing with securities isswed pursiant to the public issue or any
ather issue, physical or otherwise, whiclh remain unclaimed anddor
are fying in the esceow goconnt, as applicable and the lsted ennry
shall disclose the following deeails i its annwal report, as long ax there
are shaves fu the demar suspense account or wnclaimed suspense
aceonnt, i agplicable :

fa) aggregate nwmber of sharcholders and the outstanding shares in
the suspense aceonnt lving af he beginning of the vear,

() smumber of shareholders who approached Nued entitv for transfer
af shares from suspense account during the vear;

fe) nuwmher of shareholders o whom gharves were Iransferred from
suspense aocount during the year;

fif) agoregate number of shareholders and the surstanding shaves in
the suspense gecount Lying al the end of the vear,

fe) thai the vorng rights on these sharves shall remain frozen il the
righifiel owner of such shaves claims the shares.

Annveal Repart for the financial ended 30032024 mentions that there
dre mo shares in depiat suspense account, however the Company s

steps to comply in future
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(323 shave otstanding in the demal suspense gocouni @s on
JIA32024,

12 Ar per Schedule T (A) (7)) read with reguwlgeion 30 (aiin of
e Securities and Fxchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Frisclosure Reguivements) Regwlations, 200 5, for change o divectors,
key mmanagerial personnel (Managing Divecior, Chief Evecufive
Officer, Chief Financtal Officer, Company Secretary ete.), senior
management, Auwditor gnd Complionee Officer, the listed entity shall
first disclose to the stock exchangeis) all vvents or information which
are material in rermy of the provisions of this regulaotion as goon as
reasertably possille and @ any case not later than twelve fowrs from
the oocurvence af the event or Injormation, b case the eveni or
information is emanating from within the listed entity. Mr. Havish
Kuttan Menon (Divector] resigred on 0002024 and this was
mtimated to steck exchange only on 05/ 102024,

The Company cannot rectify
this by filing it on current date.
Will take steps to comply in
future

13 As per schedule I (A) (TB) af the Secwrities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements)
Regulations, 2003, - Resignation of independent director including
reasons for resignation: In case of resignation of an independent
divectar of the listed entity, within seven davs from the date af
resienation, the following discloswres shall be made 1o the stock
exchanges by the lsted entities:

i The lefier of resignation along with detailed reasons for the
resignation as given by e safd direcior,

fia.) Namey of listed entities in which the rexigning director holds
directovships, indicating the category of directorship amd membership
of huogrd compritiees, i any,

if, The independent divector shall, along with the detailed
reasans, dalso provide o confivmation that there s no ather material
reasons other than those provided,

fii, The confirmation as provided by the independent director
abwove shall alsg be diselosed by the fisted entivies 1o the stock
exehutnges along with the disclosures as specified in sub elanse (1) and
1) above.

Resignation leiter ofr. Harish K Menon {Independent Divector)
intimated fo stock exclange does nof provide a confirmation ol there
ix no other material reasons other than those provided,

The Company cannot rectify
this by filing it on current date.
Will take steps to comply in
tuture,

i4. Dietailed disclosure o remuncration as reguived  under
Schedule V (C) faiich of the Securities and Exchange Soard of (ndia
{Liztimg Obligations and Dizclostre Reguivements) Regulations, 2003
is net given in the Annuwal Report for the financia! vear ended
31032024,

The Company cannot rectily
this on curreént date. Will take
steps to comply in future,

15 Annval Report for the financial vear ended 31032024 does
nol fnclude details of matevial subsidiaries of the listed entity;
including the date and place of incorporation and the name amd date
of appoiniment of the statutory auditors of such subsidiaries as part of
Corporate Governance Report, as per Schedule V (C){ I in) of the
Secarities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Dizologare Reguivements) Regwlations, 2005,

The Company cannot reclify
this on current date. Will take
steps to comply in future.

14, As per sehedule VD) of the Securities and Exehange Board
af  India  (Listing Obligations  and  Disclosure  Reguivements)
Regularions, 2013, the anmcal report shall comoin the following
aelditional disclosures - n declavation sipned by the chiol executive
afficer stating that the members of hoard of direcrory and sentor
management personne! have affivmed complionee with the code of
conduct of oard of directors and senior management,

The Company cannot rectify on
current date, Will take steps to
comply m future.

E Finonclal Statemants |
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Declaration as required winder Schedwle V(D) of the Securiiies and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obfigations and Disclosure
Reguirements) Regulaions, 2005 i signed by the Whale-time director
af the Connpany instead of Chief Executive Officer,

17, As per Master cirewar feguitv) of Bombay Steck Excliange,
lizted companies are requived to submit all corparate ammouncementy
{fidi ser of documents) in machine readable and searchable form.
Secondly, such docwmenty disclosure shall be authentivaied wsing
DS

Various stock exchange intimations are not awthenticaied using o
BSC

The Company cannot rectify
this by filing it on current date.
Will take steps to comply in
future.

14, As per Master corcnlar (equity) of Bombay Stock Exchangze,
nen-admissible signatures tnclude Bt are not limited 1o phvsical
signature, mage pasted signatre, sipnature in Sd- formar, copy
pasted signatire, efe. Few intfmations liave been made with said non-
aclmissihle signatures.

The Company cannot rectify
this by filing it on current date.
Will take steps to comply in
future,

19, As per regulation 4 read with part-F of Schedule 1 of
Securitfes and Excliange Board of India (Shave Based Emplovee
Benefits and Sweat Equitel Regulations, 2021, in addition 1o the
information that o company iy reguived to diselose in relation to
amplover henefity under the Companies Aei, 2003, the Board of
Divectors of spch o company shall also disclose the detifs of the
schemeys) being implemented, as specified in Part F of Schedule 11 of
these vegudations. There s no weblink in divectors' vepart relating o
diselfosures gy reguived pader Pave L of Scheduwle [ of Securitres and
Exchange Board of India (Share Based Emplovee Benefits and Sweat
Equiny) Regulfations, 2021

The Company cannot rectify
this on current date. Will take
steps to comply in future.

241, Declaranion reguived wnder sub-regulation 4 of regudarion 31
af the Securities and Exchange Board of fndia (Substantial Aequisition
af Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2001 for the financial year
erded 303224 (3 nat seen intimated to stock excfiange and audit
commitiee within 7 weorking davs frem the end of the financial véar,

The Company cannot rectify
this by filing it on current date.
Will take steps to comply in
future.

21, Certain acguisitions and change dn holding are not disclosed
an timednot seen disclosed by gequiver under regulation 29¢1), 2972}
and 20 (3) of Securities and Exchange Boavd of India (Substantial
Acipaisition of Sharex and Takeovers) Regwlations, 2011 to the
Company and stock exchanges.

The Company cannot rectify
this by filing it on current date.
Will take steps to comply in
future.

22, My, Rajesh Shavma, independens Divector has not passed
enfine: proficiency seff gssessment fesi within fwo vears of being
registered ax on fmdependent Director on the Databank of the fndian
Institute of Corporate Affaivs under Rude & (4} of the Companies

He has qualified the test and
certificate for the same will be
shared.

2, Financial  Statement
statemment for the financial year ended 310032024 s wot signed by the
Chlidef Executive (Hficer as per Section 134 (1) of the Companies Ace
2013,

The Company cannot rectity
this on current date. Will take
steps to comply in future.

24 Fived dsset Register maintuined by company does not show
Aull particidars, including guantitative details and situation of the fixed
STELS.

The Company will take steps to
comply in future,

25, NFERAL is vet i be filed by the body corporate subsidiary of
the Comprinny,

The company is in process to
submit this on urgent basis

The Secretarial Audit Report of Avurvedagram Heritage Wellness Centre Private Limited. the
material subsidiary of the Company is annexed to its Annual Report.
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These  reports are  uploaded on  the  website of the Company  at
hitps:/fwww keralaayurveda biz/investor-relationships under “Investor Sectionl]

3. Internal Audit and Internal Financial Controls with reference to the financial statements

The Company had appointed Mr. Biju George. Chartered Accountant, as the Internal Auditor
for the financial year 2024-25. However, Mr. Biju George tendered his resignation from the
position with effect from 2nd January 2025, citing personal reasons. Subsequently, the Board of
Directors, at its meeting held on 14th February 2025, appointed Mr. Alphonse Scaria (Firm
Registration No.: 0179118S) as the Internal Auditor to conduct the Internal Audit for the
remaining quarter ending 3 st March 2025,

The Company's internal control systems commensurate with the nature of its business and the
size and complexity of its operations. These are routinely tested and certified by Statutory as
well as Internal Auditors. Significant audit obzervations and follow-up actions thereon are
reported to the Audit Committee.

4. Cost Auditors

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2004, the
Company is required to maintain cost records and have a Cost Audit conducted for the financial year
2024-25, The Company has duly maintained the prescribed cost records for the said financial year, and
s, SLR & Associates, Cost Accountants, have carried out the Cost Audit for FY 2024-25,

Further. M/s. SLR & Associates, Cost Accountants, have been re appointed as the Cost Auditors of
the Company to conduct th audit of cost records for the financial year 2025 -26. In terms of the

applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, a resolution seeking members' | ratification for the
remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors forms part of the Notice convening the 33rd Annual General

Meeting,

19. VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY:

20.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 177(9) & {10} of the Companies Act, 2013, a Vigil
Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy for directors and employees to report genuine concerns has been
established. The Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy has been uploaded on the website of the
Company at https://www keralaayurveda biz/investor-relationships under [ Investor Section

The Palicy 18 an extension of the Cade of Conduct for Directors & Senior Management Personnel
and covers any unethical and improper actions or malpractices and events which have taken
place/suspected to take place.

As per the pohicy all Protected Disclosures should be addressed to the Vigilance Officer / Company
Secretary or to the Chairman of the Audit Committee in exceptional cases.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Company has in place a mechanism to identify, assess, monitor and mitigate various risks to key
business objectives. Major risks identified by the busimesses and functions are systematically
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21.

22,

23.

24.

addressed through mitigating actions on a continuing basis. Major elements of nisk/threats for
Ayurveda Industry are regulatory concerns, consumer perceptions and competition, These are
discussed ar the meetings of the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company.

The Board of Directors has adopted a nisk management policy for the company outlining the
parameters of identification, assessment, monitoring and mitigation of wvarious risks which is
available on the website of the company at https://www keralaayurveda. biz/investor-relationships
under | Investor Section!

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE
REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS:

Kerala Ayurveda Limited ("the Company") has received a notice dated July 8, 2024, from Mr. Ouma
Shankar Ochit of Nexia Baker and Arenson, Mauritius, who has been appointed as the Liquidator of
Katra Holdings Limited (KHL ). Mauritius ("the Notice"). The Board of Directors held an emergency
meeting on July 9, 2024 to discuss this development, A plaint bearing OS No.255 of 2024 (T Suit[ 1) was
filed by Mr. Ramesh Vangal and heard before the Hon! Thle Munsiff Court at Aluva, Ernakulam, onfuly 12,
2024, seeking injunctive reliefs against the Notice.

Further. the aforesaid liquidation proceedings has been terminated against Katra Holdings Ltd. (Promoter

of the Company) vide the order no. SC/COM/MOT/000127/2025 passed by the Supreme Court of Mauritius
(Commercial/Bankruptcy Division) dated 7" May 2025.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:

The Corporate Social Responsibility provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the
company and the same is being done as a part of thecorporate ethos of the Company. However, your
company always had a deep sense of responsibility towards the community and has conducted bone
care camps, diabetes camps and BMD Camps.

DEPOSITS:
In terms of the provisions of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013, the company has not accepted
any deposits from the public during the financial year under review and there are no outstanding
fixed deposits from the public as on 31 March 2025,

DETAILS OF AMOUNT RECEIVED FROM A DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY OR

A RELATIVE OF THE DIRECTOR

During the year under review, the Company has not received any amount from any Director or
relative of the Director pursuant to Rule 2 (1)(c)(viiii) of the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits)
Rules, 2014,
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25. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

Your company has complied with corporate governance norms as stipulated by SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, A detailed report on Corporate
Governance in line with requirements of the Companies Act. 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations, 2015 is attached to this report as Annexure 5. A
certificate trom Statutory Auditors contirming the compliance of Corporate Governance is also
attached to this report.

26, AUDIT COMMITTEE

The details pertaining to composition and meetings of the Audit Committee are included in the
report on corporale Governance,

27. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

A detailed review of the operations, performance and future outlook of your company and its
businesses is given in the Management Discussion and Analvsis Report, which forms part of this
report attached as Annexure 6,

28, EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As required under Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, an extract of Annual Return is
uploaded on the website of the Company at https:/www keralpayurveda biz/investor-relationships.

29. PARTICULARS OF LOANS. GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER
SECTION 186

The details of loans and Investments and guarantees covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the
Act are given in the Notes to the Financial Statements no, 9 and 10 forming a part of Annual Report.

However, the said loans and Investiments and guarantees does not exceed 60% of its paidup share capital,
free reserves or Securilies Premium account or 100% ol its free reserves and Sceurities Premium account.

30. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED
PARTIES:

The particulars of contracts or arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties referred to
in subscetion (1} of Scction 158 of the Companics Act, 2013 including certain arm's length transactions
under that proviso attached asAnnexure 7 in Form AOQC-2 forms an integral part of this report. All
related party transactions are presented to the Audit Committee and the Board. Omnibus approval is
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obtained before the commencement of the new financial year, for the transactions which are repetitive in
nature and for the transactions which are not foreseen,

Further, during the year, related party transactions witlM/s. Avurvedagram Heritage Wellness Centre
Private Limited, Material Subsidiary of the Company, which exceeded the materiality threshold limit and
ratified by the shareholders dated 18" June 2025,

In line with the requirements of the applicable laws, the Company has formulated a policy on related party
transactions which is uploaded on the website of  the Company at
‘htps:/Awww. keralanvurveda bie/investor-relationships.

31. EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTIONS PLANS (ESOP):

The Company has in place | Kerala Ayurveda Employee Restricted Stock Unit Plan, 2023
(ESOP 2023 Twhich was approved by the Board of Directors in its meeting dated 24th November
2023 and subsequently approved by the shareholders by passing a Special Resolution on 201"
December 2023,

Further the pool size of the Plan was increased from 6,660,640 (Six Lakhs Sixty-Six Thousand Six
Hundred Forty) options to 12,03,245 (Twelve lakhs three thousand two hundred and forty-five)
options, representing 10% of the paid-up equity share capital of the Company by passing the Special
Resolution in EGM dated 18 June 2025, Further the Company has applied for in principle approval,

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company at its meeting held on 29" May, 2024
has approved grant of 6.66,640 Stock Options.

Applicable disclosures as stipulated under Regulation 14 of the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations. 2014 (SEBI SBEB Regulations) with regard to
the Employee Stock Option Scheme are  available on  the Company s website at
:hitps://www keralaayurveda biz/investor-relationships.

The Company has received a certificate from M/s. SVIS & Associates, Secretanal Auditors of the
Company. stating that the Kerala Ayurveda Employvee Restricted Stock Unit Plan2023, has been
implemented in accordance with the SEBI SBEB Regulations, The sad certificate will be made available
to the sharcholders, if requested during the 33" AGM of the Company.

31. DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

In terms of Section 134(3)(¢) of the Companies Act, 2013, in relation to Fmancial statements of the
company. the Board of Directors state that:

a. In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed
along with proper explanation relating to material departures.

b, The dircetors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudentto give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the company for
that period.
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c. The directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and
for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregulanties.

d. The directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.

¢. The directors, had laid down internal finaneial controls to be followed by the company and that such
internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively, and

f.  The directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

33 DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT
WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company has zero tolerance towards sexual harassment at the workplace and has adopted a policy
on prevention, prohibition and redressal of sexual harassment at workplace i line with the provisions
of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act. 2013
and the Rules thereunder. As required under law, an Internal Compliance Committee has been
constituted for reporting and conducting inquiry into the complaints made by the victim on the
harassment at the workplace,

The Internal Committees shall consist of the following members to be nominated by the employer,
namely: [

{a) aPresiding Officer who shall be a woman employed at a senior level at workplace from amongst the
employees.

Provided that in case a senior level woman employee 18 not available, the Presiding Officer shall be
nominated from other offices or administrative units of the workplace referred to in sub section (1),

Provided further that in case the other offices or administrative units of the workplace do not have a
senior level woman emplovee. the Presiding Officer shall be nominated from any other workplace
of the same employer or other department or organisation;

{b) not less than two Members from amongst employees preferably committed to the cause ofwomen
or who have had experience in social work or have legal knowledge;

{¢) one member from amongst non-governmental organisations or associations committed to the cause
of women or a persen familiar with the issues relating to sexual harassment: Provided that at least
one-half of the total Members so nominated shall be women

Further to build awareness in this area, the Company has been conducting necessary trainings in the
organization on a continuous basis at all the levels of employee.

The statement showing number of Sexual harassment comphant reeeived during the year are as follows;
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34,

35.

36.

37.

39.

40.

Number of complaints of Number of complaints Number of cases pending
sexual harassment received disposed off during the year for more than ninety days
in the year

I 1 NIL

COMPLIANCE WITH MATERNITY BENEFITS ACT. 1961

The Company is in compliance with the applicable provisions of Maternity Benefits Act, 1961,

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES AS ON THE CLOSURE OF FINANCIAL YEAR:

Number of Employees as on 31.03.2025:

1. Female: 256
2. Male: 377
3, Transgender: O

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGOES

The information pertaining to conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings
and outgoes required under Sectionl 34 (3){m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule § (3) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is furnished in Annexure 8 that forms part of this Report.

HUMAN RESOURCES

Your Company treats its | lhuman resources! as one of its most important assetsYour Company
continuously invests in attraction, retention, and development of talent on an ongoing basis. A number
of programs that provide focused people sattention are currently underway. Your Company's thrust is
on the prometion of talent internally through job rotation and job enlargement.

. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The Research & Development centre of KAL is recopnized R&D Lab by DSIR. Ministry of Science and
Technology, Govt. of India. This recognition was obtmined in 1999 and it was renewed till 2025,

TRANSFER OF AMOUNTS TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION
FUND

Your Company did not have any funds lying in unpaid or unclaimedividends  for a period of seven
years. Therefore. there were no funds which were required to be transferred to Investor Education and
Protection Fund (IEPF) under Section 124 and Section 125(2) of the Companies Act. 2013,

DISCLOSURE WITH RESPECT TO DEMAT SUSPENSKRCCOUNT/UNCLAIMED
SUSPENSE ACCOUNT
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Number of complaints of Number of complaints Number of cases pending
sexual harassment received disposed off during the year for more than ninety days
in the year

I 1 NIL

COMPLIANCE WITH MATERNITY BENEFITS ACT. 1961

The Company is in compliance with the applicable provisions of Maternity Benefits Act, 1961,

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES AS ON THE CLOSURE OF FINANCIAL YEAR:

Number of Employees as on 31.03.2025:

1. Female: 256
2. Male: 377
3, Transgender: O

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGOES

The information pertaining to conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings
and outgoes required under Sectionl 34 (3){m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule § (3) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is furnished in Annexure 8 that forms part of this Report.

HUMAN RESOURCES

Your Company treats its | lhuman resources! as one of its most important assetsYour Company
continuously invests in attraction, retention, and development of talent on an ongoing basis. A number
of programs that provide focused people sattention are currently underway. Your Company's thrust is
on the prometion of talent internally through job rotation and job enlargement.

. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The Research & Development centre of KAL is recopnized R&D Lab by DSIR. Ministry of Science and
Technology, Govt. of India. This recognition was obtmined in 1999 and it was renewed till 2025,

TRANSFER OF AMOUNTS TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION
FUND

Your Company did not have any funds lying in unpaid or unclaimedividends  for a period of seven
years. Therefore. there were no funds which were required to be transferred to Investor Education and
Protection Fund (IEPF) under Section 124 and Section 125(2) of the Companies Act. 2013,

DISCLOSURE WITH RESPECT TO DEMAT SUSPENSKRCCOUNT/UNCLAIMED
SUSPENSE ACCOUNT
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41.

42.

43,

44,

46.

47.

There are no shares in the DEMAT suspense account/unclaimed suspense account.

LISTING WITH STOCK EXCHANGES

The equity shares of the company are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange and the Company confirms thal
it has paid the Annual Listing Fees for the year 2024-25 to BSE Limited,

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Directors state that the applicable Secretarial Standards 1,¢., 85-1 and 55-2, issued by the Institute of
Company Secretanes of India, relating to ' Metings of the Board of Directors and General Meetings
respectively have been duly complied with.

INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016:

During the financial year, neither any application nor any proceeding is initiated against the Company under
the Insolvency and Bankruptey Code, 2016,

SETTLEMENTS WITH BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS:

During the year under review, no settlements were made by the Company with any Banks or Financial
Institutions.

. THE DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN THE AMOUNT OF THE

VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME OF ONE-TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE
VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL
INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS THEREOF.

During the FY 20- 25, there were no Insolvency Proceedings initiated against the Company and hence
there were no instances of one-time settlement with banks or financial institutions.

DETAILS OF PENALTIES/ PUNISHMENT/ COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE
FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY BETWEEN THE END OF THE
FINANCIAL YEAR AND THE DATE OF THE DIRECTORS | REPORT

There were no penalties punishment/commitments affecting the financial position of the Company between
the end of the financial year and the date of this report,

DISCLOSURE OF CERTAIN TYPES OF AGREEMENTS BINDING ON_ THE
COMPANY




48.

There were no agreements binding on the company between the end of the financial year and the date of
this report.
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extended by its shareholders, customers, bankers. consultants, business associates, all Government and
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results, Your directors would further like to record appreciation to the efforts of all the employees for their
valuable contribution to the Company.

Place: Athani By Order of the Board of Directors
Date: 29" August 2025 For Kerala Ayurveda Limited
Sd/-
Ramesh Yangal
Chairman

(DIN: 00064018)
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Annexure-1

FORM ACH-

{Pursuant 1o first proviso jo sub-section (3) of seenon 12% read with rule 5 of Companies {(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate companiesjoint

ventures,

PART

A Subsidiaries

(Information in respect of cach subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Lakhs.)

Subsidiary 1

Subsidiary 2

Subsidiary 3

Subsidiary 4

Stubsidiary &

Subxidiary &

Subsidiary 7

Frovisions
pursnant i which

the company has

Sectn BT}

Settlon {87

Spction 2{ET)

Section ZAT)

Seerion 2447 )

Sechion Z(87T)

Seetan 2E7)

become I
subsidiary
Mamse of the | Avurvedagram .
Suveda ne Ayt Matural CMS Katra CMS Katra
subandiary Herags ; :
Avurviedic {Turmerly Medicine Holdings LLC Mursing LLC Mutraveds Pre
Wellness
p Actidamy Tne knivan a5 Climie, 5, Lid
Centre ['vt .y .
Nutraveda Inc. ) LsA LiSA Lsa
Lad

The date since when
subsidiary Wil 290K 204 0 {35, 2008 04,05 2008 (h 5, 200 (L0 2008 21t 200s 2, A0k
acipuired

Reporting penod for

thie subsidiary
concermed, if
dufferent  from  the

Bodding  compiuny =

reporting periodl

Ripoiting  currency
and  Exchange i
ng on the lnst date of
the relevant
fmuncil year m the
case  of  (oreign

stibssncizrmes

Shire capital

I3 2025

IME

225.00

I.03.2025

Uss

1LIS%= RS 58

11.03.2025

s

1L8%= 5555

NIL

31.03.2025

LS %

IUS5= K5 58

MNIEL

A]L05 Mi2s

LB

1USS= §5.58

043

31.03.2025

LS §

1LS5= 2358

3] N3 M125

5G0H

LSt D=n1 &0

2.8
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Reserves & Surplus R2.02 296,07 {IT0O5E3) {1047 92} {43%. 96 1968.T1Y 1.1
Tkl Assers 1843.11 3405.11 2517.22 0.03 10403.60 054 10,79
Total Lishilities 53609 31009.04 422304 1047.95 1532.14 SE5.43 G.B4
Investntents {1 ] {1 1] L] {1 [¢]
Tumover 1341.71 2873.34 B6BE.BS (4] L] 0 4]
Prufi before

] 42711 503 -361.09 017 -100.33 40.17 0
Lxalivn
Prowvision T

. 14247 o 1] 8] a 0 [¥]
taxafinm
Profit afler tuxation 284 B4 503 -361.09 -0.17 -100,33 017 o
Proposed Dividend 1 1t} fl [t} i 0 i
Extent ol
shareholding {in 4 [ | [ 1o s0.67 [ 1M
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Name of Subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations: Nutraveda Pte Lid

Name of subsidiaries which have been liguidated or sold during the year: NIL.

Place: Athani By Order of the Board of Directors
Date; 29" August, 2025 For Kerala Ayurveda Limited
Sd/- Sd/-
Kunjupanicker Anil Kumar Utkarsh Singh
Whole Time Director Director
(DIN:00226353) (IMN:(9244896)
Vivek Sundar KT George Priyanka Gangwar
CEO CFO Company Secrefary

Mem Mo, - FI12378
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ANNEXURE 2

The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median employee s remuneration and other details in terms
of sub-section 12 of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies { Appointment

and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Amendment Rules, 2016,

SL Requirements Disclosure

| The ratio of remuneration of eth director to the median remuneration Employee/ WTD 1:8.5
of the employees for the financial year

b

The Perca:r?mgc increase in remuneration of each Director. CFO, CS in ED-0%, CS-0%, CFO-5%
the Financial Year

3 The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in 9 3%
the financial year

4 The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company 367

Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees
other than the managerial personnel and its comparison with the
5 percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and justification
thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for
increase in the managerial remuneration

16% increase in the total

salary of managerial staff.

6 Affirmation that the remuneration 15 as per the remuneration policy Yes

Note: The Particulars of top ten employees in terms of remuneration drawn as required under Rule 5(2) and (3)
of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 shall be provided to

the shareholders on requast.

During FY 2024-25. No employee was in receipt of remuneration of more than rupees One Crore and Two fakhs
in aggregate. No employee who was emploved for part of the vear was in receipt of remuneration of more than
Rupees Eight Lakhs and Fifty Thousand Per month. THREE employees emploved throughout the financial year
or part thereof, was in receipt of remuneration which in the aggrepate is in excess of that drawn by the whole-
time director and does not hold by himself or along with his spouse and dependent children. not less than two
percent of the equity shares of the company as per Rule 3(2) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of

Managerial Personnel) Amendment Rules, 2016.

Place: Athani By Order of the Board of Directors
Date: 20™ August 2025 For Kerala Ayurveda Limited
Sd/-
Ramesh Vangal
Chairman

{DIMN: B0064018)
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ANNEXURE 3

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY OF KERALA AYURVEDA LIMITED

PREAMBLE

Section 178 of the Companics Act, 2013 and the provisions of the Chapter IV, Regulation 19 of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requuements) Repulations 20015, require the Momunation and Remuneration
Committeg of the Board of Directors of every listed entity, to:

A Devise a policy on Board diversity;

B. [dentify persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management in
accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board their appointment and removal;

C. Formulate the eriteria for determining qualifications, positive atiributes and independence ol a director
and recommend to the Board a policy, relating 10 the remuneration of the directors, key managerial
personnel and other employees;

D. Formulate the eriteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board and carry out evaluation of
every director’s performance;

E. To ensure that level und composition of remuneration i3 reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and

motivate directors of the quality required to run the company successfully;

The company shall disclose the remuneration policy and the evaluation criteria in its Annual Report,

Accordingly, in adherence to the above said requirements the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of
the Board of Directors of Kerala Ayurveda Limited{KAL) herein below recommends to the Board of
Directors for its adoption the Nomination and Remuneration Policy for the dircctors. key managerial

personnel and other employees of the Company as set out below,

A, POLICY ON BOARD DIVERSITY

A Purpose of this Policy;

This Palicy on Board Diversity sets out the Company’s approach to ensuring adequate diversity in its Board of
Directors {the “Beard") and 15 devised in consultation with the Nomination and Remuneration Commuittee {the
“Commuttee”) of the Board.

Al Scope of Application:

The aforesaid Poliey applies 1o the Board of Kerala Ayurveda Limited (the “Conpany™).

AL Policy Statement:

The Company believes that a diverse Board will enhance the quality of the decisions made by the Board by
utilizing the different skills, qualification. professional experience. knowledge ete, of the members of the Board,

necessary for achieving sustainable and balanced development,
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For appointments of persons 1o office of directors and deciding composition of the Board, the Nomination aned
Remuneration Commitiee (NRC Commiltee) and the Board shall also have due regard to this policy on Board

diversity.

All Board appointmients are made on merit, in the context of the skills, experience, independence, knowledge

and integrity which the Board as a whole requires to be effective.

The Board of directors of the Company shall have an optimum combination of exseutive and non-executive

directors. At a minimum, the Board of the Company shall consist of at least one woman Director,

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, mcluding but not limited to age,
edacational background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will
be based on memt and contribution that the selecied candidates will bring to the Board, baving due regard for
the benetits of diversity on the Board, The Board's composition {inchuding gender, age, length of service) will

be disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report annually.

B. APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTOR. KMP AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
B.L. Appointment Criteria and gualifications:

1. The Committes shall identily and ascertain the integrity. qualificanon, expertise and experience of the
petson for appointment as Director, KMP or 2t Senior Management level and recommend (o the Board his

[ her appointment.

P

A person should possess adequate gualification, expertise and experience tor the position he [/ she is
considered forappointment. The Committee has discretion to decide whether gualification, expertise and
experience possessed by a person are sulficient / satisfactory for the concerned position,

3. The Company shall not appoint or continue the emplovment of any person as Managing Director/ Whole - time
Director/Manager who has attained the age of seventy vears. Provided that the term of the persen holding
this position may be extended beyond the age of seventy years with the approval of sharcholders by passing
a special resolation based on the explanatory statement onnexed to the notice for such motion ndicating the
Justification for extension of appointment bevond seventy years.

B2 Term/Tenure:

1. Managing Dircctor/Whele-time Director/Manager (Managerial Person): The Company shall appoint
or re-appoint any personal as its Managerial Person fora term not exceeding five vears at a time. No re-
appointment shall be made earlier than one year before the expiry of term.

2. Independent Director:

An Independent Director shall hold office fora term up to five consecutive years on the Board of the
Company and will be ehgible for re- appointment on passing of a special resolution by the Company

and disclosure of such appointment in the Board's report.
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Mo Independent Director shall hold office for more than two consecotive terms, but such Independent
Director shall be eligible for appointment after expiry of three years of ceasing to become an Independent
Director. Provided that an Independent Diirector shall not, during the said period of three vears, be

appointed in or be associated with the Company in any other capacity, either directly or indirectly.

At the time of appeintment of Independent Director, it should be ensured that number of Boards on
which such Independent Director serves is restricted to seven listed companies as an Independent
Director and three listed companies as an Independent Director in case such porson is serving as a

Whole-time Director of a listed company.

3. Maximuom Number of Directorships: - A person shall not be appointed a5 @ Director in case he is a Director
in more than eight listed companies after April 1, 2009 and seven listed companies after April 1, 2020, For

the purpose of this clavse histed companies would mean only those compantes whose equity shares are listed.

B.3. Bemoval:

Due to reasons forany disqualification mentioned i the Companies Act, 201 3; roles made thereunder or under
any other applicable Act, rules and regulations, the Committee may recommend, to the Board with reasons
recorded mowriting, removal of o Director, KMP or Semor Management subject (o the provisions and compliance

of the said Act, rules and regulations.
B.3 Retierment;

The Drector, KMP and Senior Management shall retive as per the applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
201 3 and the prevailing policy of the Company. The Board will have the discretion to retain the Director,
KMP, Senior Management mn the same position / remuneration or otherwise even after attaining the

retiretnent age, for the benefit of the Company,

C. REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS, KFY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND OTHER

EMPLOYEES REMUNERATION POLICY

1. General:

The remuneration / compensation [ commission ete. to Managenal Person, KMP and Senior Management
Personnel will be determined by the Commitiee and recommended to the Board for approval, The remuneration
Seompensation / commission ete. shall be subject tothe prioy/post approval of the shareholders of the Company

and Central Government, wherever required.
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The remuneration and conumission to be paid to Managerial Person shall be as per the statutory provisions of the

Companies Act, 2003, and the roles made there under for the time being in foree.

Increments to the existing remuneration | compensation structure may be recommended by the Committee to the

Board which should be within the slabs approved by the Sharcholders in the case of Managerial Person,

Where any insurance is taken by the Company on behalf of its Managerial Person, KMP and any other employees
for indemmnifying them against any liability, the premium paid on such insurance shall nol be treated as part of

the remuneration pavable to any such personnel.

CA.REMUNERATION TO MANAGERIAL PERSON, KMP AND SENIOR MANGEMENT:

. Fixed pay: Manageal Person, KMP and Senior Management shall be eligible for 4 monthly
remuneration as may be approved by the Board on the recommendation of the Commities in accordanve
with the statutery provisions of the Compamies Act, 20013, and the rules made thereunder for the nime
being in force. The break-up of the pay scale and quantum of perquisites including, employer's
contribution ta P.F, pension scheme. medical expenses, club fees cte. shall be decided and approved by
the Board on the recommendation of the Committes and approved by the sharcholders or Jand Central
Government, wherever required,

2. Minimum Remuneration: |, in any financial year, the Company has no profits or its profits are
inadequate, the Company shall pay remuneration to its Managerial Person in accordance with the
provisions of Schedule V of the Companics Act. 2013 and if it is not able o comply with such provisions;
with the prior approval of the Central Government.

3. Provistons for excess remuneration: If any Managerial Person draws or receives, directly or indirectly
by way of remuneration any such sums in excess of the limits prescribed under the Companivs Act, 2003 or
without the prior sanction of the Central Government, where required, he / she shall refund such sums to the
Company and antil such sum is refunded, hold it in trust for the Company. The Company shall not waive

recovery of such sum refundable to it unless permitted by the Central Government,

Senior Managenent: “senior management " shall mean the officervs and personnel of the listed entity wheo are
menthers of it coare management feam, excluding the Boavd of Divectors, and shall also comprise all fie
menthers of the management one level below the Chief Executive Officer or Managing Divector or Whole Time
Director or Manager {including Chief Executive Officer and Manager, incave they are not part of the Board
of Drirecturs) and shall specifically include the functional heads, by whatever name called and the persons

identified and designated as key managevial pevsonnel, other than the boavd of divectors, by the listed entity.
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[

Remuneration / Commission: The remuncration / commission shall be in accordance with the staturory
provisions of the Companies Act, 2003, and the rules made thereunder for the time being in foree,
Sitting Fees: The Non- Excoutive / Independent Direclor may recelve remuneration by way of fees for
atlending meetings of Board or Commiltee thereol as decided by the board from time 1o lime, Provided
that the amount of such fees shall not exceed the maximum amount as provided in the Companies Act,
2013, per meeting of the Board or Committes or such amount as may be preseribed by the Central
Government from time to time.

Further, the Company may pay or reimburse to Non-Executive / Independent Director such fair and
reazonable expenditure, as may have been meurred by them while performing their role as an
Independent Director of the Company. This could include reimbursement of expenditure incurred by
them for attending Board' Commitiee meetings,

Limit of Remuneration ‘Commission: Remuneration ‘Commission may be paid within the monetary
limit approved by sharcholders, subject to the limit not exceeding 1% of the net profits of the Company
computed as per the applicable provisions of the Companies Aet, 2013,

Stock Options! An Independent Director shall not be entitled to any stock option of the Company. MNon-
Executive Directors are eligible for Stock options in accordance with Schemes formulated by the
Company. Nominee Directors are not entitled to stock options as per their respective nomination letters

received by the Company.

CAREMUNERATION TO OTHER EMPLOYEES

Apart

from the Directors, KMP's and senior Management, the remuneration  for rest of the employee is

determined on the hasis of the role and position of the individual emplovee. including professional experience,

responsibility, job complexities and loval market conditions,

Decisions on annual increment shall be made based on the annual appraisal carries out by HODs of various

depart

IMETHES,

A, EVALUATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS AND THE BOARD

L,

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Independent Direetors shall be evaluated on the basis of the following criteria Le, whether they:

a)
b}
c)
d)

e)

fy

act obpectively and constructively while exercising their dutics;

objectively evaluate Board’s performance, rendering independent, unbiased opinion

exercise their responsibilities in a bona fide manner in the interest of the company,

strive to Attend and participate i the Meetings.

devote sufficient time and attention to their professional obligations for informed and balanced decision
making;

refrain from any action that would lead 1o loss of his independence and inform the Board immediately
when they lose their independence,

Warsda Ayurveds LTD Carporate Ousrdew | &.nanIQIStn:emantsJ
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g} assisi the company in implementing the best corporate governance practices,

hy moderate and arbitrate in the interest of the company as a whole, in situations of conflict between
management and sharcholder's inlerest,

1) abide by Company's Memorandum and Articles of Association, company's policies and procedures
including code of conduct, msider wrading guidelines etc,

Apart from the above eriterion below-mentioned indicative list of factors may be evaluated as a part of this

eXerCisg:

1) Participation and contribution,

ky Commitment (mcloding purdance provided o senior management outside of Board / Commitbee
meetings),

I Effective deployment of knowledge and expertise,

m) Effective management of relationshap with stakeholders,

n} Integrity and maintenance of confidentiality,

0} Independence of behavior and judgment, and [mpact and influence.

Also, once s year, the Board will conduct o self-evaluation. It is the responsibility of the Chairman of the Board

to organize the evaluation process and act on its outcome,

2, MNON-INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS/EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Executive Directors and Non- independent directors shall be evaluated on the basis of eriteria given to them
by the board from  time to time and their performance will also be reviewed by Independent directors of the

Company in their meeting as per Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013,

By order of the Board of Directors
For Kerala Ayurveda Limited
Sd-
Ramesh Vangal
Chairman (DIN 00064018)
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ANNEXURE - 4

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2025

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 8 of the Companies
{Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To

The Members

KERALA AYURVEDA LIMITED
XVf 551, Nedumbassery,
Athani (Ernakulam),

Aluva, Kerala- 683585

We, SVIS & Associates, Company Secretaries, have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the
compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices
by KERALA AYURVEDA LIMITED [CIN: L24233KL1992PLC006592] (hereinafter called
Othe Company[d). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable
basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our
opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of
Secretarial Audit, the explanations and clarifications given to us and the representations
made by the Management and considering the relaxations granted by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs and Securities and Exchange Board of India, we hereby report that in our
opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on
31.03.2025 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the
Company has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in
the manner and subject to the reporting made hersinafter.

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31.03.2025 according to
the provisions of:

(i} The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;
{ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (OJSCRA) and the rules made
thereunder;
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(iii} The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-Laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment
and External Commercial Borrowings.;

(vl The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992:-

{a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Substantial Acquisition of Shares
and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

{b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015;

(c) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and
Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021

(d} Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Feguirements) Regulations, 2018

(&) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share

Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing
with client;

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 to the extent applicable;

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants)
Fegulations, 2018 to the extent applicable.

(vi} As informed to us, the following other laws are specifically applicable to the Company:

1. The Drugs andCosmetics Act, 1940 and The Drugs and Cosmetics Rules,
1945

2. The Drugs and Magic Remedies (Objectionable Advertisements) Act, 1954
and the Drugs and Magic Remedies (Objectionable Advertisements) Rules,
1955

3. The Medicinal and Toilet Preparations {Excise Duties) Act, 1955

Food Safety And Standards Act, 2006

Kerala Spirituous Preparations {Control) Rules, 1969

(9, [ -4

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i} Secretarial Standards 1 and 2 issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of
India;

(i) The Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with BSE Limited.
During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act,

Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards etc. mentioned above subject to the following
observations:
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. As per Regulation 23 (9) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the listed entity shall
submit to the stock exchanges disclosures of related partytransactions in the format
as specified by the Board from time to time, and publish the same on its website,
We are unable to comment on whether Related party disclosures for the half years
ended 31.03.2024 and 30.09.2024 contains alf such transactions in the absence of
financial data of subsidiaries.

Related Party Transactions with Ayurvedagram Heritage Wellness Centre Private
Limited for the financial vear 2024-25 has exceeded the prescribed limits under the
first proviso to Regulation 23 (1) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reqguirernents) Regulations, 2015 .

Half of the board of directors of the Company do not consist of independent directors
for a period from 19/03/2025 to 31/03/2025 as per regufation 17 (1){(b) of the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

. As per second Provise to regulation 17 (1E) of the Securities and Exchange Board of

India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations, 2015, if the
listed entity becomes non-compliant with the requirement under sub-regulation (1)
of this regulation, sub-regulation (1) of regulation 18, sub-regulation (1) or (2) of
regulation 19, sub-regulation {2) or (2A) of regulation 20 or sub-regulation (2) or (3)
of regulation 21, due to expiration of the term of office of any director, the resulting
vacancy shall be filled by the listed entity nof later than the date such office is
vacated. Vacancy created in the office of independent director due to expiration of
the term of office of Mr. Subramaniam Krishnamurthy on 23/09/2024 is filled by the
Company only on 04/10/2024 being later than the date such office {s vacated.

. As per regulation 17(8) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the chief executive
officer and the chief financial officer shall provide the compliance certificate to the
board of directors as specified in Part B of Schedule II. Compliance Certificate
required under regulation 17(8) is signed by Whole-time Director of the Company
instead of Chief Executive Officer.

. As per regulation 27(2)(c) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the report mentioned
in clause (a) of sub-regulation (2) shall be signed either by the compliance officer or
the chief executive officer of the listed entity. Quarterly compliance report on
carporate governance for the gquarters ended 30/09/2024 and 31/12/2024 and
Integrated Fifing(governance) for the quarters ended 31/12/2024 and 31/03/2025
are not signed by the Compliance Officer or the CEQ, instead it is signed by CFQ.

. As per regulation 30 (6)(i) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, read with Schedule 111
(Part-A)(A){4)(h), the listed entity shall discfose to the Exchange(s) the outcome of
meetings of the board of directors held to consider financial results within 30 minutes
of the closure of the meeting. Outcome of meeting held on 29/05/2024 which
considered financial results for the year ended 31/03/2024 is not intimated to stock
exchange within 30 minutes of the closure of the meeting.

. As per regulation 32(7A) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing

Obligations and Disclosure Regquirements) Regulations, 2015, where an entity has
raised funds through preferential allotment or qualified institutions placement, the
listed entity shall disclose every year, the utilization of such funds during that year in
its Annual Report until such funds are fully utilized, Disclosure regarding the
utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment during the financial year
financial year ended 31/03/2024 is not given in its Annual Report for the same year.
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2.

10.

11.

12,

As per regulation 36(4)(a) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with Master
Circular (Equity) of Bombay Stock Exchange, the disclosures made by the listed
entity with immediate effect from date of notification of these amendments- {a) to
the stock exchanges shall be in XBRL format in accordance with the guidelines
specified by the stock exchanges from time to time. Further, as per Master Circular,
all listed entities would be required to submit the filings in XBRL mode within 24
hours of submission of the said POF filing. There were certain lapses in this time
requirement of 24 hours,

As per regulation 36 {5) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Reguiations, 2015, the notice being sent to
shareholders for an annual general meeting, where fthe statutory auditor(s) or
Secretarial Auditor is/are proposed to be appointed/re-appointed shall include the
folfowing disclosures as a part of the explanatory statement to the notice:
{a)Proposed fees payable to the statutory auditor(s) or Secretarial Auditor along with
terms of appointmentand in case of a new auditor, any material change in the fee
payable to such auditor from that paid to the outgoing auditor along with the
rationale for such change;

{b) Basis of recommendation for appointment including the details in relation to and
credentials of the statutory auditor(s) or Secretarial Auditor proposed to be
appointed,

Notice of AGM held on 20/09/2024 had an (tem for appointment of M/s, G, Joseph &
Associates as the Statutory Auditors of the Company, however no explanatory
staternent for this item was given in the AGM notice containing aforesalid disclosures.
As per regulation 39 (4) read with Schedule V (F) of the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,
the listed entity shall comply with the procedural requirements specified in Schedule
VI while dealing with securities issued pursuant to the public issue or any other
issue, physical or otherwise, which remain unclaimed and/or are lying in the escrow
account, as applicable and the listed entity shall disclose the following details in its
annual report, as long as there are shares in the demat suspense account or
uncfaimed suspense account, as applicable :

(a) aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding shares in the suspense
account lying at the beginning of the year;

(b) number of shareholders who approached listed entity for transfer of shares from
suspense gaccount during the yvear;

(c) number of shareholders to whom shares were transferred from suspense account
during the year;

(d) aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding shares in the suspense
account fying at the end of the year;

{e) that the voting rights on these shares shall remain frozen till the rightful owner of
such shares claims the shares.

Annual Report for the financial ended 31/03/2024 mentions that there are no shares
in demat suspense account, however the Company has 1323 share outstanding in
the demat suspense account as on 31/03/2024.

As per Schedule IIT (A) {7} read with regulation 30 (6)(ii) of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regufations, 2015, for change in directors, key managerial personnel {(Managing
Director, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary etc.),
senior management, Auditor and Compliance Officer, the listed entity shall first
disclose to the stock exchange(s) all events or information which are material in
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terms of the provisions of this regulation as soon as reasonably possible and in any
case not later than twelve hours from the occurrence of the event or information, in
case the event or information is emanatingrom within the listed entity. Mr. Harish
Kuttan Menon (Director) resigned on 01/10/2024 and this was intimated to stock
exchange only on 05/10/2024.

13. Detailed disclosure on remuneration as required under Schedule V (C) (6)(c) of the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Reguirements) Regulations, 2015 is not given in the Annual Report for the financial
vear ended 31/03/2024.

14, Annual Report for the financial year ended 31/03/2024 does not include details of
material subsidiaries of the listed entity; including the date and place of
incorporation and the name and date of appointment of the statutory auditors of
such subsidiaries as padf Corporate Gowvernance Report , as per Schedule V
{C)10)(n) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulfations, 2015 .

15.As per schedule V (D) of the Securifies and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Discloesure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the annual report shall
contain the following additional disclosures - a declaration signed by the chief
executive officer stating that the members of board of directors and senior
management personnel have affirmed compliance with the code of conduct oboard
of directors and senior management,

Declaration as required under Schedule V (D) of the Securities and Exchange Board
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations, 2015 is
signed by the Whole-time director of the Company fnstead of Chief Executive Officer,

16. As per Master circular (eguily) of Bombay S5tock Exchange, listed companies are
required to submit all corporate announcements (full set of documents) in machine
readable and searchable form. Secondly, such document/ disclosure shall be
authenticated using a DSC. Various stock exchange intimations are not authenticated
using a OSC., Furthermore as per circular, non-admissible signatures include but are
not limited to physical signature, image pasted signature, signature in $d - format,
copy pasted signature, etc. Few intimations have been made with said non-
admissible signatures.

17. As per regulation 14 read with part-F of Schedule I of Securities and Exchange Board
of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021, in
addition to the information that a company is reqguired to disclose in relation to
emploves benefits under the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of such a
company shall also disclose the details of the scheme(s) being implemented, as
specified in Part F of Schedule [ 1 of these regulations. There is no weblink in
directors' report refating to disclosures as required under Pafl F of Schedule T of
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat
Eguity) Regulations, 2021,

18, Declaration required under sub-reguiation 4 of regulation 31 of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011 for the financial year ended 31/03/2024 is not seemtimated to
stock exchange and audit committee within 7 working days from the end of the
financial vear.

19. Certain acquisitions and change in holding are not disclosed on time/not seen
disclosed by acquirer under regulation 29(1), 29(2) and 29 (3) of SHeariand
Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acguisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011 to the Company and stock exchanges.
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20. Mr. Rajesh Sharma, Independent Director has not passed online proficiency self-
assessment test within two years ofbeing registered as an Independent Director on
the Databank of the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs under Rule 6 (4) of the
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014,

21. Financial Statement including consolidated financial statement for the financial year
ended 31.03,2024 js not signed by the Chief Executive Officer as per Section 134
(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

22. Fixed Asset Register maintained by company does not show full particulars, incduding
guantitative details and situation of the fixed assets.

23. NFRA1 is yet to be filed by the body corporate subsidiary of the Company.
24. Annual Performance Report for the period ended 31.03.2024 is pending for certain
subsidiaries.

We further report that:

Subject to the aforesaid, the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with
proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors.
The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the peried
under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adeguate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance and a system exists for
seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

All decisions of the board were unanimous and the same was captured and recorded as part
of the minutes,

We further report thatas represented by the Management and relied upon by us, there
are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with size and
operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
reqgulations and guidelines,

Woe further report that during the audit period there were no instances of:

i.  Public/Right/ Preferential issue of shares / debentures/sweat equity, etc.
ii.. Redemption / buy-back of securities;
iii. Major decisions taken by the members in pursuance to section 180 of the
Companies Act, 2013
iv. Merger / amalgamation / reconstruction;
v.  Foreign technical collaborations.
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The following resolutions were passed by way of postal ballot on 07.07.2024 during the
period:

» To approve the continuation of Mr. Kunjupanicker Anilkumar (DIN: 00226353) as
Whole- time director of the company upon attaining the age of seventy years.

« Toapprove the alteration / variation in utilization of proceeds for preferential
allotment of 9,21,781 equity shares.

At the Annual General Meeting held on 20.09.2024, the following resolution was passed,
among others:

« To approve the related party transactions with Om Vedic Heritage Center Pte. Ltd.
and Ayurvedagram Heritage Wellness Centre Private Limited for sale of medicines to
Om Vedic Heritage Center Pte. Ltd. and Ayurvedagram Heritage Wellness Centra
Private Limited amounting to Rs.5 Crores and Rs.6 Crores respectively.

The Board of Directors at its meeting held on 25.11.2024, approved updating the building
number in the Registered office address of the Company, pursuant to the periodical survey
of the Nedumbassery Grama Panchayath, thereby updating the registered office address to
XV/551, Athani, Nedumbassery, Ernakulam, Kerala, 683585,

On June 19, 2024, the Supreme Court of Mauritius Commercial Division appointed Mr.
Ouma Shankar Ochit (Liguidator) over Katra Holdings Limited, Mauritius (KHL) which holds
53.58% of Kerala Ayurveda Limite@he National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) case
involving Kerala Ayurveda Limited (KAL) and its promoters is ongoing. The case, filed by
Katra Holdings Limited (in liguidation), was registered on September 24, 2024, under CP
Mo, 25/2024 at the Kochi bench of the NCLT. The NCLT vide order CP
(C/ACT)/25/KOB/2024) dated 25.09.2024 directed to keep resolutions passed in Annual
General Meeting 2024 pertaining to two directors, being respondents, in abeyance, till the
matter is adjudicated by the Tribunal or until further orders. The case status remains
pending on 31.03.2025.

This report is to be read with Annexure A of even date and the same forms an integral part
of this report.

Peer Review Certificate No. 6215/2024

UDIN: FO03067G001110008

For SV1S & Associates
Company Secretaries

Sd/-

CS.Vincent P. D.
Managing Partner
FCS: 3067

CP No: 7940

Kochi
29.08.2025
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To

ANNEXURE A

ANNEXURE TO THE SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT OF EVEN DATE

The Members

KERALA AYURVEDA LIMITED
XV} 551, Nedumbassery,

Athani (Ernakulam), Ernakulam,
Aluva, Kerala- 683585

Our Secretaral Audit Report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1,

Maintenance of the secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. Our responsibility as Secretarial Auditors is to express an opinion on these
records, based on our audit,

During the audit, we have followed the audit practices and processes as were
appropriate, to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the
secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts
are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the process and practices we
followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books
of Accounts of the company.

Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc,

. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules,

regulations, standards etc. is the responsibility of management, Our examination was
limited to the verification of the procedures and compliances on test basis.

We have considered actions carried out by the Company based on independent
legal/professional opinion as being incompliance with law, whereaver there was scope for
multiple interpretations.
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7. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the Ffuture viability of the
company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted
the affairs of the company.

Peer Review Certificate No. 6215/2024

UDIN: FOD3067G001110008

For SV1S & Associates
Company Secretaries

Sd/-
CS.Vincent P. D.
Managing Partner
FCS: 3067
CP No: 7940

Kochi
20.08.2025
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Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINAMCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2025

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
{Appeointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To

The Members

AYURVEDAGRAM HERITAGE WELLNESS CENTRE PRIVATE LIMITED
Hemmandanahalli, Samethanalli Post,

Whitefield, Bangalore, Karnataka, India 560067

We, SVI15 & Associates, Company Secretaries, have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the
compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices
by AYURVEDAGRAM HERITAGE WELLNESS CENTRE PRIVATE LIMITED [CIN:
U74140KA2003PTCO031511] (hereinafter called Dthe Companyld). Secretarial Audit was
conducted in @ manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the CompanyOsbooks, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial
Audit, the explanations and clarifications given to us and the representations made by the
Management and considering the relaxations granted by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and
Securities and Exchange Board of India, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company
has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31.03.2025, complied with
the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board
processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to
the reporting made hereinafter,

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31.03.2025 according to
the provisions of:

(iy The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

{ii} The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-Laws framed thereunder;

(iii) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and
External Commercial Borrowings, as applicable.
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We further report that, we are unable to comment on compliance related aspects relating to
industry specific laws due tolack of material documents in respect thereof and hence have
relied on the information provided by the Company, its officers, authorized representatives
during the conduct of the audit and on the review of compliance reporis by the respective
departmental heads of the Company.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards 1 and 2 issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of
India;

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards etc. mentioned above subject to the following
observations:

- Puring the period under review, we have not come across proof of dispaitch of the
notes to agenda for board meetings, the draft and signed minutes of these meetings.

- As per Section 128 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies
{Accounts) Rules, 2014, for the financial year commencing on or after the 01% day of
April, 2023, every Company which uses accounting software for maintaining its books
of account, shall use only such accounting software which has a feature of recording
audit trail of each and every transaction, creating an edit log of each change made in
books of account along with the date when such change s were made and ensuring that
the audit trail cannot be disabled. The aforementioned feature was not activated during
the year, neither for transactional purposes nor for master data management.

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted. The changes in the composition of
the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in
compliance with the provisions of the Act.

The Management confirms that there is adequate notice given to all directors to schedule the
Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in
advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications
on the agenda items befoe the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.
However, no proof was made available to substantiate.

There were no dissenting views on any decisions of the Board, as recorded in the Minutes of
Board meetings.

We further report that asrepresented by the Management and relied upon by us, there are
adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with size and operations of
the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and
guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period there were no instances of:



Karsla Ayurveds LTD I/ Carporeie OvErdsw ___I [ Finonclal Staterments .I
Skl i Sl ik e e e

i.  Public/Right/ Preferential Issue of shares/ debentures/sweat equity;
il.  Redemption / buy-back of securities;
iif. Major decisions taken by the members in pursuance to section 180 of the Companies
Act, 2013
Iv.  Merger / amalgamation / reconstruction;
V. Foreign technical collaborations.

During the period, the Company has passed the following resolutions, among others, atst
Annual General Meeting held on 18.09.2024:

- Giving loan(s) to, andfor giving of guarantee(s), and/or providing of security(ies)
in connection with any Loan takenf/to be taken by any by group company,
promoter/promoter group including holding/parent company or any other person in
which any of the Directors of the Company is deemed to be interested, up to a sum
not exceeding Rs. 100 Crores at any point in time, in its absolute discretion deem
beneficial and in the best interest of the Company under Section 185 of the Companies
Act, 2013.

- Make investments or give loan to any person or other body corporate or give any
guarantee or provide security in connection with a loan to any person or any other
body corporate whether existing or to be formed and/ or acquire by way of
subscription, purchase or otherwise, the securities of any other body corporate in
excess of the |limits specified under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 upto an
aggregate amount not exceeding Rs.500 Crores (Rupees Five hundred crore only) over
and above sixty per cent of its paid-up share capital, free reserves and securities
premium account or one hundred per cent of its free reserves and securities premium
account, whichever is more.

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed afAnnexure A and
forms an integral part of this report.

Peer Review Certificate No. 6215/2024
UDIN: FOO3067G001110107

For SV1S & Associates
Company Secretaries

Sd/-

CS. Vincent P. D.
Managing Partner
FCS: 3067

CP No: 7940

Kochi
29.08.2025
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To

Annexure A

ANNEXURE TO THE SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT OF EVEN DATE

The Members

AYURVEDAGRAM HERITAGE WELLNESS CENTRE PRIVATE LIMITED
Hemmandanahalli, Samethanalli Post,

Whitefield, Bangalore, Karnataka, India O560067

Our Secretarial Audit Report of even date is to be read along with this letter,

Maintenance of the secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. Our respensibility as Secretarial Auditors is to express an opinion on these
records, based on our audit.

During the audit, we have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate,
to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial
records, The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected
in secretarial records, We believe that the process and practices we followed provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books
of Accounts of the company.

Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards etc. is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the

verification of the procedures and compliances on test basis.
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6. While forming an opinion on compliance and issuing the Secretarial Audit Report, we have
also taken into consideration the compliance related actions taken by the Company after
31 March 2025 but before the issue of the Report.

7. We have considered actions carried out by the Company based on independent
legal/professional opinion as being in compliance with law, wherever there was scope for

multiple interpretations.

8. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted
the affairs of the company.

Peer Review Certificate No. 6215/2024
UDIN: FOO3067G001110107

For SVJS & Associates
Company Secretaries

Sd/-
CS. Vincent P. D.
Managing Partner
FCS: 3067
CP No: 7940

Kochi
29.08.2025
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ANNEXURE -5
REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The report states compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 (the [Act]), and
Regulation 17 to 27SEBI (Listing Obligations andDisclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (the
Listing Regulations ap applicable to the Company as on 31" March 2025,

PHILOSOPHY

Kerala Ayurveda Limited (KAL) believes that sound Corporate Governance is inevitable for improving
efficiency and growth of the Company. The Company has sound corporate practices and conscience,
openness, fairmess, professionalism, and accountability which led it to be a great success. The Company
15 adhering strictly to regulatory frameworks, Honesty, transparencyand intensive communication with
stake holders are integral part of our policy. The company is generally in compliance with the Corporate

Governance norms as stipulated m Listing regulations.
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Keeping with the commitment to the Management, the principle of integrity and transparency in
business operations for good corporate governance, the Company! s policy isto have an appropriate
blend of independent and non' lindependent directors to maintain the independence of the Board and to

separate the Board functions of governance from Management of the Company.
COMPOSITION

Ag per the provisions of the Listing Regulations. the Company has optimum combination of executive
and nanl executive directors with a womanindependent  director. The Company has a nonexecutive
Chairman. According to the provisions of the Listing Regulations, if the nonexecutive Chairman is a

promoter, at least one half of the Board of the company should consist of independent directors,

As on 31 March 2025, the Board of the Company comprised of Nine directors, of whom two were non-
executive non independent directorthree were non-executive independent directors, one was
additional independent director, two were additional nos executive directors, and one was executive

director. The Board has no institutional nominee directors,
NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

During the financial year 202-25, the Board of Directors of the Company met Seven times on the
following dates-29" May 202 , 9" July 2024, 14" August 2024 18" September 2024, 20™
September 2024, 14" November 2024, and 14" February 2025, The gap between any two meetings
is pursuant to the provisions of Listing Regulations and The Companies Act, 2013,

#i) The Board Meeting held on 18092024 war adjowrmed on 20009 2024, however, for the purpose of
cownting mimber of Board Meetings held during the vear, that adiourned meeting has been separately
cotried and



i) the meeting scheduled on 0912 2024 which was cancelled due to unavoidabie reasons,

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS

a Ayurveds LTD

.:-r-'.'uur'-:iel Sttemants

Table 1: Composition of the Board and attendance record of directors for FY 2024-25

No. of Board

Meeting Nao. of Board Whether
Name of the Director Cuategory .
vntitled Meeting attended | attended AGM
attended*
Chairman, Non-
Mr. Ramesh Vangal ) ) 3 - Mo
Executive/Promoter Director
. MNon=gxecutive / Promoter _
Mr. Gokul Patnaik ; 5 5 Yes
Director
Dr, Kunjupanicker Whaoletime Director,
7 7 Yea
Anilkumar Executive
Mr. Subramaniam Non-Executive, Independent
5 5 Yes
Krishnamurthy Director
Mr, Anand Subramanian Non-Executive Director = 4 Yes
; , Non-Executive, Independent
Ms. Shilpa Kiran Gududur 7 7 Yes
Director
Non-Executive, Independent
Mr. Harish Kuttan Menon 5 5 Yes
Director
Mr. Ragesh Sharma Non-Executive, Independent T 5 Yes
Dhrector
Mr. Kodikannath Jayarajon Mon-Executive Director 2 2 Mo
Mr. Samir Dhawan Non-Executve, Independent 3 1 Mo
Dhrector
Mr, Kshiti Ranjan Das Non-Executive, Independent 2 2 No
Director
Mr. Utkarsh Singh MNon-Executive Director i 0 Nao

I My Samitr Dhawen, My Kot Ranfan Dis. el M, Javarafon Kodikoammeth were appreinbod v the Board of Dieectors by passing Clrewlor
Rexofiiions ax Additional Direcloy of the Company wee . 046 Gopher 2024 Mr Soee Dhawinr aod M, Ksfati Rangan Das were designated as Non-
Executive Independent Deeciors fora form of 5 years from (48t Octaher 2024 to (3pd Opgober 2028 while Mr. Javarajan Kodikannath was designesed
s g Now=revunive Tirector, The sald appednments were sibsegueentty appraved oy the members i the EGM dased 0 3vd Jmngre 2025,

2 Me Uikarsh Sa'argﬁ RN J'j‘;’,?-#.‘-ﬁ"':'ﬁ.r ﬂf.lpm'nw.qr By Mg Bourd .'.'f INevrdors .i.l.'.' lri.:r.v.ﬁr_lg Chreulor Besoluton ay Addivemal Nog-Evecuibve Divecioe
weef, 1803 2025 appraved in EGM dated T8.06, 2825 and Mr. Soif Kian (DIN F780306) ay an Addittona! Divector designated o Non-Exvecntive
Dhivectn of the Company wee £ 30 Jope H025, The vame wies sudeguently approved by the membaers thiougd Postal Balior deted 22 Qugie 2025,
I Mv. Havigh Kofteen Mesow (DIN 0583 200) re-apeainfed by the Board via Clrowigr Resolition az fndependent Direcior for T vears P30006, 2024 1o
29006 2027 aprprravel I AGM va special resodition, Sulsequenly, vesigned e ) 08 10 2024 dive o prersonal extgencies
4o M. Gota! Pagaik (OIN- OIG2T91 5] revived ay Non-Execrrtive Divector wee L 23,00 2124
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A M, Swheamcnicmn Kreeshrameorsiov ($E0N G404 141 revived on complesion af fist termeay indepondent Dvecioy woe, 0 2300 2024

d. Pursngnt fo Petition filed e Me, Ouma Slamiae Ocleft before Natiana Company Law Tribunel wider Seetions 241 & 242 of the Companies Ao,
2073 dited MEG92024, Tiee Trifmnal ax e bnrecioe measiove had axbed the Comipany So keep vesodationg peieted fo the efdenion af Rexpondent bog, 2
(e Ao Subraounian) & & (Mr, Romesh Fangall ay directory. peseed tn the 329 AGM om 20 Seprenher 2024, in ahevance untid fiurther ardery.
Further, -on gecount of termiinaion of the figuidation praceedings prainsy. Koiva Hoddings Lod, (Promarer of the Companyl vide the order o,
BCACOMMOTANT 272025 paceed by the Siprewe Cowrt of Menariring (Cannnercful/ Bansraptey. Iivision) dated Tth May 2025, the Board has
apprinved the Confiepaton of Mr, Rumesh Fangad (OO 000021 ond My, Anand Subowmamian (DN (0068085, The said continmation of Me
Ramest Fangal was subseguently aggrroved by the members througlc Pestal Baliog dated 22nd Augasr 2025, However, members i not doprove the
canriruaiion of M. Avand Subramanian,

Pecuniary relationship or transactions
Apart from receiving Directors Sitting Fees, the Non-Executive Directors do not have any material
pecuniary relationship or transactions with the company, Promoters, Directors, senier managers ar

subsidiaries,

Opinion of the Board

It 15 hereby confirmed that, in the opinion of the Board. the independent directors fulfil the conditions
specified in the Listing Regulations, the Act and are independent of the Management of the Company,
Our definition of Independence’ | of directors is derived from Section 149(6) of the Companies Act,
2013 and Regulation 16 of the Listing Regulations, The independent directors provide an annual
confirmation that they meet the criteria of independence.

Based on the confirmations/ disclosures received from the directors and on evaluation of the
relationships disclosed, as per the requirement of Regulation 25(8) of the Listing Regulations, the Board
confirms that the independent directors fulfil the conditions as specified under Schedule V of the Listing

Regulations, 2015, and are independent of the management,

Number of shares and convertible instruments held by non-executive directors

MNone of the non-executive directors hold any shares in the Company.

Non-executive directors.  compensation

During FY 2024-25, sitting fees ofRs. 25,000/~ per meeting was paid to non executive independent
directors for every meeting of the Board and Rs. 15,000/~ per meeting was paid for every meeting of the
Committee of the Board attended by them. No sitting fees was paid to non- executive non independent
director. No commuission was paid 1o the non executive directors during the FY 2024-25. The Company

does not have stock option plan for any of its directors,
Information supplied to the Board

The Board agenda comprises of relevant information on various matters related to the working of the
Company, especially those that require deliberation at the Board level. The directors ol the Company

recetve the Board papers well in advance before the Board Meeting,

The Board is periodically updated on important developments in the business segments and other arenas

through presentations made by the function heads, The directors have separate and independent access
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to officers of the Company, In addition to items which are required to be placed before the Board for
its noting or approval, information on various significant items is also provided. In terms of quality and
importance, the information supplied by the Management to the Bouard is beyond the list mandated
under the Listing Regulations. The independent direetors, at their separate meeting held ofiebruary

24, 2023, assessed the quannty, qualivy, and timely flow of information between the Management and

the Board, and found it t be in line with the expectations,
Orderly succession to Board and Senior Management

The Board 18 periodically updated on the orderly succession to the Board and Senior Management, It
has satisfied iwself that plans are m place for orderly succession for appointments to the Board and to

Senior Management,

Directorships and memberships of Board Committees

Table 2: Directorship/Committee positions as on 317 March 2025 in Kerala Avurveda and other
Companics

Name of the other Listed Companies sCommittes Positions
where he/she is a director (exclusive of C‘hm: M‘mh": “dh
alrperson in other
Name (s) of Directors | Directorship Kerala Ayurveda Limited) Lim-l:j Companies
held in other :
5l Mo
Listed
Companics N e
Typie of Member | Chairman
Company
Directorship
Mr. Ramesh Vangal U MA NA ] o |
Dir. Kunjupanicker
z i MNA NA 4] {
Al eumar
b § Mr Anand Subramanian u NA NA i 0

leodex Mublishing
3. Ms. Shifpa Kiran Gududur I : Drirector 1
Solutions Limited

g Rajesh Sharia 0 NA NA il o
9. Utkarsh Singh ] NA MA ] i
n Sarmir Dliawan 0 NA NA ] G

1 Kshiti Ranjan Tas i NA WA 0 0
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Kodikannoth Jayvarajan 0 NA NA

“ ‘
*Includes membership/chairmanship in Audit & Stakeholders Relationship Committees only.

As may be noted from the table, no Director 15 a member of more than 10 Board Committees or
Chairman of more than 5 Board Committees across all public limited companies where he/she is a
Director. For this purpose, membership/chairmanship in Audit Committee and Stakeholders

Relationship Committee is considered,

The Board of Directors, overviews the performance of the Company, approves and reviews

policies/strategies and evaluates management performance.
Disclosure of the Relationship Between Directors Inter se
None of the Directors are inter-se related to each other.
Certificate from practicing company secretary

A certificate from SVIS & Associates, Company Secretaries on non - disqualification /disqualification

of directors forms a part of this Report.
Review of legal compliance reports

The Board periodically reviews legal compliance reports with respeet to the various laws applicable to

the Company as prepared and placed before it by the Management.

The disclosures with respect to the extent of compliance with corporate governance requirements

specified in regulation 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46,

The Company has complied with the Corporate Governance requirements specified in regulation 17 to
27 10 the extent applicable and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46 of SEBI (Listing

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 to the extent applicable.

The Listing Regulations require listed companies to lay down a code of conduct for directors and senior
management, incorpoerating duties of directors as laid down in the Act, Accordingly, the Company has
a Board approved code of conduct for all Boardnembers and  Senior Management of the Company.
The said code has been placed on the Company[ /s websitehtips:/‘'www keraluayurveda biz/investor-
relationships All the Board members and Senio r Management personngl have affirmed compliance with

the code for the year ended 317 March 2025, A declaration to this effect signed by the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company forms a part of this Report,
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NON-COMPLIANCE OF REGULATIONS RELATING TO CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
UNDER SEBI _(LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS)
REGULATIONS. 2015, IF ANY

All the requirements of Corporate Governance Report of sub paragraphs (2) to (10) Para € of Schedule
WV of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 have been duly

complied with.
Maximum tenure of independent directors

The maximum tenure of independent directors is in accordance with the Act and the Listing

Regrulations.
Formal letter of appointment of independent directors

The Company issues a formal letter of appointment to independent directors in the manner provided under
the Act As per regulation 46(2) of the Listing Regulations, the terms and conditions of appointment of
independent directors are placed on the Company's website hitps/owww keralsavurvedn ig/investor

refationships.
Performance evaluation

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Company, in accordance with the provisions of
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thercunder and applicable provisions of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements ) Regulations, 2015 laid down the eriteria for the Performance
Evaluation of the Board, each committee and every Director including Independent Directors and
Chairman. The performance evaluation of every director including Independent Directors, Board and
Committee was camed out before 31/03/2025. All the Directors were participative, inferactive, and

communicative during the evaluation process.

Attendance al meetings of Board and Committees, knowledge & ethics. understanding of the roles,
responsibilities and duties as director/chairman, contributions at Board/Committees meetings including
on strategy and risk management. The evaluation done brings out good performance of Independent
Directors in the Board and committees meetings. They are knowledgeable, ethical and hog their

respective expertise in the deliberations and make valvable contributions. The same is hosted on the

website of the Company at hitps://www keralaavurveda biz/investar-relationships

The Independent Directors expressed satisfaction on the performance of Nen Independent Directors
and the Board as a whole. The Independent Directors were also satisfied with the quality, quantity and
timeliness of flow of information between theanagement of the histed entity and the Board of

Directors that 1s necessary for the Board of Directors to effectively and reasonably perform their duties.

Remuneration policy
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Your Company has adopted a Nomination and remuneration Policy on the recommendation of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The Policy 15 shown as Annexure 4 to the Directors Report
and is also available on the website of the Company hitps//waww keralpavurvedn bz investor

relationships
Familiarisation programmes for Independent Directors

With a view to familiarising the independent directors with the Company! s operations, as required under
the Listing Regulations, the Company has held programmes for independent directors for familiarising
them with the Company, business model of the Company, their roles, rights and responsibilities, etc.,

throughout the year and on a continuing basis,

The policy on familiarisation programs for all independent and details of familianzation programs in
terms of Regulation 46(2) of SEBI (Listing obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,

20135 as available on the website of the company https:www_ keralaavuryvedo big/investor-relationships

Table 3: Details of Familiarisation Programs

Particulars During the Year Cumulative till date
Number of One program on 6" November 2015
programmes  attended 2R/02/2075
th By 3

by E— | 6™ November 2016
Directors (During the 27" September 20117
year and on cumulative

St W -7
basis till date) 15" November 2018

13" February 2020

5" December 2020
14" February 2022
14" February 2023
5" December 2023

14th February 2025

MNumber of hours spent by

Independent Directors in

. 2.5 hours 30.5 Hours
such program's (during
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the yvear and or

cumulative basis till date)

Independent Directors Proficiency test

e Ms. Shilpa Kiran Gududur has undergone the Independent Directors Proficiency test,

¢ Mr Subramaniam Krishnamurthy is exempted from undergoing the Independent Directors
Proficiency test

*  Mr. Harish Kuttan Menon has undergone the Independent Directors Proficiency test.

=  Mr Rajesh Sharma will undergo the Independent Directors Proficiency test.

= Mr. Sanur Dhawan has undergone the Independent Directors Proficiency test.

*  Mr. Kshiti Ranjan Das has undergone the Independent Directors Proficiency test.

« Mr. Saif Khan will undergo the Independent Directors Proficiency test

Resignation of Independent Director

Mr. Harish Kuttan Menon (DIN; 00583260}, Independent Director, resigned with effect from October
{11, 2024 due to personal reasons. It is hereby confirmed that there are no other material reasons for

resignation of Mr. Harish Kuttan Menon.

Whistle blower policy/vigil mechanism

The Company has adopted whistle blower policy encompassing vigil mechanism pursuant to the
requitements of the section 177(9} of the Act and R egulation 22 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations. 2015 for employees to report concerns about unethical
behaviour. No person has been denied access to the Audit Commitice, The said policy is available on

the Company s website atittps://'www keraluayurvedu. biz/investor-relationships

The policy/vigil mechanism enables directors and employees to report to the Management their
concerns about unethical behaviours, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company ‘s code of
conduct or ethics policy and leak or suspected leak of unpublished price sensitive information. This
mechanism provides safeguards against victimisation of directors/employees who can  avail the

mechanism and provides for direct aceess to the Chairman of the Audit Committee in exceptional cases.

During FY 2024-25. none of the emplovees has been denied access to the Audit Committee under this

policy.

Core skills and expertise of directors
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As stipulated under Schedule V to the Listing Regulations. the Board has identified the following core
skills/expertise/competencies required in the context of the Company's business{es) and sector(s) for it

to function effectively and possessed by the Board. The table 4 below gives details of the same:

Table 4: Core skills/expertise/competencies:

Sr. Mo, Directors Category

l. Dr. Kunjupanicker Anilkumar Enowledge on the Company s business
2. Mr. Anand Subramanian Financial and Management skills

3. Mr. Gokul Patnaik Behavioural skills

4. Mr. Harish Kuttan Menon Sales and marketing

5 Mr. Subramaniam Krishnamurthy Corporate Governance and Ethics

6 Ms. Shilpa Kiran Gududar Enowledge of all Compliance and

valuation expert

i Mr. Ramesh Vangal Strategy and planning

L Mr. Samir Dhawan expertise in a vanety of industries,
ineluding high-tech equipment
manufacturing for the oil and pas

sector, nutraccuticals, and defence

products,
9, Mr, Utkarsh Singh Legal expert
10. Mr. Kshiti Ranjan Das Compliance expert
11. Dir. Javarajan Kodikannath Ayurvedic scholar, author, researcher,

and educator

12. Mr. Saif Khan Banking professional




SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

During the FY 2024-25 your Company has seven subsidiaries including one step down subsidiary and

the details are as under:

Sr. No, Name Location % of holding

. Avurvedagram Heritage Wellness Centre Pot, Ltd, | India T4
2 Ayurvedic Academy Inc. UsA 1K)
3, Suveda Inc. (formerly known as Nutraveda Ine.) Lisa )
4, Ayu Natural Medicine Clinic, P 8 LsA LK)
5, CMS Katra Holdings L1.C LSA 81 67
6, CMS Katra Nursing LLC USA 106+
7. Nutraveda Pte Lud Singapore 100

* CMS Katra Holdings LLC holds 100" shareholding in CMS Katra Nursing LLC; hence CMS Katra

Mursing LLC is a tully owned stepdown subsidiary of your company,

Subsidiary Name |an:1tiun Incorporation Year Aunditor Details
_ o TR 5 V Sabareesan & Co|
;}ﬁ;Lgﬂ?:f;E PWHE:J[EL'L IB;:;;EEEGM‘ Fanuary 27, 2003 Chartered Accountants,
S gadiocc B o (FRN.O139958)
CPA Auditor  Ine, 505
IMontgomery Streer, 10th floor,
. 5 Fraociseo, CA %4111,
Ayurvedic Academy Ine,  |USA September 3, 2002 ﬁgg_ggnf;;?]‘iu
abhi@cpaauditor.cam,
www.cpaauditor.com
Suveda  Ine.  (formerlyl o) December 19,1997 NA

Nutraveda Ing.)

Ay MNatural  Medicine
Clinie, P.5.

CMS Katra Holdings LLC  |USA October 52007 NA

|U5.5. December 19,1997 MNA

CMS Kawa Nuorsing LLC

S . i
EStop kA subgidisrs) USA October 1, 2007 NA

Mutraveds Pre Lid Singapore Hune 29, 2009 N A

The policy on determining material subsidiaries 15 available on the Company s website
hitps:/ 'www keralaavurveda biz/investor-relationshups.  Ayurvedagram Heritage Wellness Centre
Private Limited 1s a matenal subsidiary within the meaning of the Listing Regulations. DuringFyY 2024-
235, the Audit Committee reviewed the financial statements and in particular. the investments made by
the unlisted subsidiary companies. Minutes of the Board meetings of the subsidiary companies were
regularly placed before the Board of the Company. The Board periodically reviewed the statement of

all significant transactions and arrangements entered by the unlisted subsidiary.



RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All related party transactions which were entered into during FY 203-25 were on anarm( s length basis
and in the ordinary course of business under the Act except with M/s. Avurvedagram Heritage Wellness
Centre Private Limited, Material Subsidiary of the Company. which exceeded the materiality threshold
limit und ratified by the shareholders dated 18" June 2025, Further, settlement applications have been

made with SEBI in this regard. The details of which are mentioned in AOC-2 which forms a part of the

Annual Report. The details of such transactions were placed before the Audit Committee for noting

Ireview, on a quarterly basis.

A statement showing the disclosure of transactions with related parties as required under Indian

Accounting Standard-24 (Ind AS-24) issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India is set out

separately in this Annual Report. The policy to determine on dealing with related party transactions has

been  framed and  the same s disclosed on  the Company 's  website at  the link

hitps://www. keralaayurveda. biz/myestor-relationships
Disclosure of accounting treatment

The Company has not followed any differential treatment from that prescribed under Accounting

Standards for the preparation of Financial Statements during the year under review,

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit committee comprises of Three directors viz. Mr, Samir Dhawan, Chairman, Mr. Kshiti
Ranjan Dasand Mr. Shilpa Kiran Gududuras members as on 31 ® March 2025, Two-Third of the
Members of this committee are independent directors and Chairman is an Independent Director. All
members of audit committee are financially literate, and all has accounting or related financial

management expertise.

The terms of reference of the Committee include oversight of the Company’ s financial reporting  process
and disclosure of its financial information, review of financial statements, review of compliances and
review of systems and controls, approval or any subseguent modification of transactions of the
Company with related parties, The terms of reference of the Audit Commuttee are available on the

wehsite of the Company at https://www . keralasyurveda. biz/investor-relationships
Meeting and attendance

During FY 2024-25, the Committee met four times, i.e. on 29-05-2024, 14-08-2024, 14-11-2024, 14-
02-2025. The gap between any two meetings has been less than one hundred and rwenty days. The

Company Secretary has acted as the seeretary of the Committee.

Mr. Subramaniam Krishnamurthy, former Chairman of the Audit Committee was present at the AGM

of the Company held on 20" September 2024 to answer member s queries.



Table 5: Compaosition of the Audit Committee and attendanee vecord of the members for FY 2024-25

Name of the director Category No. of Meeting | No. of meetings
entitled to attend attended

Mr. Subramaniam | Non-executive, # 2

Krishnamurthy Independent

Mr. Anand Subramanian Mon-Executive - Non 2 2

Independent Director

Harish Kuttan Menon Non-Executive = 2 2

Independent Director

Mr. Samir Dhawan Mon-executive, 2 |
Independent

Mr. Kshiti Ranjan Das MNon-executive, i 2
Independent
MNon-executive,

M. Shilpa Kiran Gududur 2 2

Independent

1My Samie Deawan, Me Kshid Ranfon Das, and Me. davavajon Rodvdannath were agpointed by the Boavd of Directors by
parexing Cirvadar Resolwtions as Additienal Divectors of the Company wee, ) 040 Ovtaber 20304 Me. Samie Diawan and M.,
Kahind Ranjon Dax were designated oy Non-Lxecutive Independent Directory for a tevm of 5 vears from (4th (ictaher 20024 1o
(3rd Cotaber 2029 winkfe Mr. Javaraion Kodtkannath was desigrated ay o New Executive Director, The said appaintmenty
weve sulseguently approved by the meembers in the EGM daved 03vd Soneary 2025,

2. Mr, Harsl Kuttan Menon (DEN: OUSSE260) reappomted by the Board via Clrenlar Revelution ax ndependent Divecior
for 3 yewrs (30062024 e 2006 2027) appeaved in AGM via spectal resolution. Subseguentiy, resigned woe D 01 10 2024
dise 1o personal éxigeneies,

A Mr Subramaniam Keishngmurtfoy (DIN: G00F40484) verived on campletian of fivst feem as Independent Director wee f
2300 2024

& Pursuant fo Perition filed by M, Qwma Shankar Cohie before Nationa! Company Law Tribunal under Sections 240 & 242
af the Companics Ave, 20003 dared 200092024, The Tribunal as the imterim measure fad asked the Company to beep resalutions
refated ta the efection of Respondent NMog. 2 (Mr. Amand Subramaniant & 6 (e Rawiesht Vangall ax divectors. passed  the
A2 AGM on 207 September 2024, in alevance until further orders.

Frrther, on account of termination of We guidation proceedings agains! Kaira Heldings Ll (Promoter of the Company)
wvide the order no, SCAOOMMOTANN 272025 passed by the Supreme Cowrt of Mowritins {Commercial/ Bankruptoy Envivionm)
dated Til Moy 2025, the Beard has approved the Contlmition of Mr. Romesh Fungal (DIN: Q0064088 and Mr. Avncend
Subramanian (DIN: (WiG4083). The sotd comtinuation of Mr. Ramesh Vangal was subsequenily approved by the members
theaiph Postal Ballot dated 22" dugust 2025 Howeve, members did nol approve the continniation of Mr. Anand
Siebramanian

The Functional Directors, Senior Managers, Chiel’ Financial Officer, Internal Auditors and Statutory
Auditors are invited to attend the meetings of the Audit Committee as and when necessary, The
company Secretary acts as Secretary (o the Committee. The Board accepted all the recommendations

of the Audit Committee during the vear.



NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has duly constituted Nomination & Remuneration Committee as per the regulation 19 of
the Listing Regulations read with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made
thereunder., All the directors of the Committee were non-executive and 50% of the directors were

independent directors and Chairman is an Independent Directar,

The terms of reference of the Committee include formulation of criteria for determining qualifications,
positive attributes and independence of a director, recommendation of persons to be appointed to the

Board and Senior Management and specifyving the manner for effective evaluation of performance of

Board. 1its Committees. Chairperson and individual directors, recommendation of remuneration policy
for directors, key managerial personnel and other employees, formulation of criteria for evaluation of
independent directors and the Board, devising a policy on Board diversity, ete. The terms of reference
of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are available on the website of the Company at

httpss (www keralaayurveda, bz inyestor-re ationships

Meeting and attendance

During FY 2024-25 the Committee met 2 times e on 29-05-2024, and 14-08-2024.

Composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and attendancerecord of the
members for FY 2024-25.

Mame of the director Category No. of meeting entitled | No.  of meetings
to attend attended

Mr. Ramesh Vangal Non-Executive - Non 2 2
Independent Director

Mr. Subramanian | Non-executive, 2 2

Reishinmitisthy Independent Director

Mr. Harish Kuttan Menon Non-executive, 2 2
Independent Director

Mr. Samir Dhawan MNoen-executive, {0 |
Independent Director

Mr. Kshiti Ranjan Das MNon-executive, 8] 6]

Independent Director

Mon-executive, 0 {l

Dr. K Jayarajan Non-Independent

Director

T My, Samir Dfawan, My, Kt Rarjon Oas, amd Me Sovarvafan Kedikaenath were appointed by the Board of Directors iy
passing Clrenlar Resolutions ax Addivonal Divecrors of the Company woe {0 048h October 2024 My Samir Dhawan and Mr
Ksihitt Ranfan Daxs were designated av Non-Execative Independent Divectors for a term of 5 vears from (4 October 2024 fo
B3vd Octodver 2029, whife My, Javarafan Kodikannarh was designated as o Non Evecutive Divecror, The said appofnments
were subseguently approved by the members i the EGM dated $3nd Sampan: 2025

2. M. Harigh Kuttan Meman (DN (SRS 2600 re-appainted by the Board via Cirenlar Resofution as Independent Director
for 3 vears (3006 2024 fo 2006 20275 appeoved In AGM vio special resodition, Sihseguently, resipnea woe f (7 L2024
e ti persomnal exigencies.

3 Mr Suheamaniom Keishaamoerhe (ODIN 0074030 4) vetived on completion af fivsr ferm s Dndependeny Divector woe, [
230 Ni24.

4, Pursaant to Perition filed by My, Owma Shankar Qelir before National Company Law Tribunal winder Sectione 241 & 242
of the Comperies Act, 201 3 dhated 20 092024, The Tribunal ws the inlevin ineasitre fad asked the Compony o keep resolufions
eedaied fo the election of Respondent Nog, 2 (de, Anand Seebramanian) & 6 (Mr, Romesh Vongal) & directors, passed in the
2 AGM an 2 Septennber 2024, In abevance ! further oedees
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Further, on aceownt of fermination of the figuidation procecdingy against Katrg Holdings Lt (Promoter of the Company)
vide the arder mo, SCACOMMCT R0 273025 passed by the Supreme Cowrr of Mawriting (Conmmercial/Bankrgeey Division )
dated Tth May 2023, the Board has approved the Continuation of My, Romesh Vangal (DIN: 000640080 and Mr. Anand
Subwirmanicar (DIN: 00064083}, The sald contimetion of My, Ramesh Vanga! was sebseguently approved by the members
throigh Postal Ballot dated 220d August 2023, However, members did wor approve the contivaation of Mr. Awand
Subramanian,

Mr. Subramaniam Krishnamurthy, former Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee was
present at the AGM of the Company held on 20" September 2024 to answer member s queries.

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The Stakeholders! | Relationship committee of the company has been duly constituted in line with the
provisions of Regulation 20 of the Lisung Regulations read with Section 178(5) of the Companies Act,
2013, The committee oversees the transter of shares, and complaints and grievances of security holders
and investors of the Company. More details on this subject and on shareholders  related matters have
been furnished in | General Shareholder Information.

Meeting and attendance

During FY 2024-25, the Committee met six times i.e. on 25-04-2024, 27-05-2024, 14-08-2024, 29-08-
2024, 04-12-2024 and 29.01.2025,

Name of the director Category No. of meeting | No. of meetings
entitled to attend | attended

Mr. Anand Subramanian Non-executive, 4 4
Mon-Independent
Director

Mr. Subramantan Krishnamurthy Non-executive. 4 4
Independent Director

Dr. K Jayarajan MNon-executive, 2 i
Non-Independent
Director

Mr. Kunjupanicker Anil Kumar Executive Director fr i}

Mr. Samir Dhawan Nﬂn-exracuti\fe._ . ¢
Independent Director

=1, Mr Samir Ofowan, Mre. Kebiti Rangan Day, and My, Javarajan Kodifannath were gppoieted by the Soard of Divectors iy
paxsing Ciecelar Resolutions as Addifional Directors of the Comprny e, 00680 Oetoher 2024 M Samie Dbawan and Mr.
Foalite Rangan Das were dessgaated o Non-Exécutive fndeprendent Divectors for a levm af § veavs Fom Gdth October 2024 10
B3rd October 2029, while Mr. Jawarafun Kedtkannall was designated as o NewEcecutfve Direcior. The said appoiniments
were subseglently approved By the wemibers in the EGM dared 030d Jarary 20235

2. Mr. Subramaniam Krishnamorthy (DING (0130414) retived on completion of first term ag Independont Divector wef.
23.09.2024

4 Pursuani to Patition filed by Me. Owma Shankar Cehit before National Company Law Tribinal under Sectionz 241 & 242
af the Companies Act, 2003 dated 20 092624, The Tribunal ax ihe interim measwre fod asked the Company to keep resolutions
related to the election of Respondent Nos, 2 (Mr. Anand Subvamanian) & 6 (Mr, Ramesh Vangall as diveciors, passed in the
32 46 M on 20 Seprrembrer 2024 in whevance wndd further avders.

Frrther, on accound of temingtion of the fguidaion proceedings agamst Katra Holdings Lad (Promoter of the Coempany)
vide the order ne. SCAOOMMOTAO00] 272023 passed by the Supreme Cowrt of Mawritius {Commercial/ Bankruprey Division)
dated Teh May 2023, the Bourd has appeoved the Continuation of My, Romesh Vengal (DIN: O00064018) wnd My, Awand
Subeamorian (DIN: 0GEOR3E The said continuation of My, Ramesh Fanga! was sabseguentl)y approved by the members
throtgh FPostad Bodlet deved 22nd Awgust 2025, However, wembers did nol gpprove the continuation af Mre. Anand
Subramanian,
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Mr. Anand Subramanian , Chairman of the Commitiee was present at the AGM of the Company held
on 20™ September 2024 to answer the gueries of the members.

Mo, of shareholder! 15 complaints received during] WIL
the Financial Year 2024-25

Number of complaints solved to the satisfaction | NA
of the shareholder

Number of pending complaints as on 318t March, | NA

Mrs. Jyothi Gulecha, a member of Institute of Company Secretaries India was appointed as the
Company Secretary and compliance officer with effect from 1# February 2023, However, she tendered
her resignation w.e.f 12" March 2025,
Further the Board has appointed Ms, Privanka Gangwar, as the Company Secretary, w.e f. 26" May
2025,
MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
The independent directors meeting in accordance with the provisions of Schedule IV (Code of
Independent Directors) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder and Regulation 25{3)
of SEBI {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations, 2015 was held on 28"
February 2023 without the presence of Nos Independent Directors and executive members of the
management, and:

* noted the report on performance evaluation for the year 2024-25 from the Chairman of the

Board.

* reviewed the performance of non' independent directors and the Board as a whole.

reviewed the performance of the Chairperson of the Company, considering the views of ¢xecutive

director and non _executive directors; and

= assessed the quantity, quality and timely flow of information between the Management and the
Board and found it to be in line with expectations.
Mr. Kshiti RanjanDas was elected as Chairman for the meeting.  Two independent directors were
present at the meeting,
REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS
Pecuniary relationship or transactions of non-executive directors

During the FY2024-25 there were no pecunmiary relationships or transactions of any nen executive

directors with the Company.
Criteria of making payments to non-executive directors

MNon lexecutive directors of the Company play a ¢crucial role in the independent functioning ofthe Board,

They bring in an external perspective to decision [making and provide leadership andtrategic guidance
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while maintaining an objective judgement. They also oversee the corporate governance framewaork of
the Company. The criteria of making payments to non executive directors are placed on the Company ' |5

website https:/www . keralaayvurveda. biz/investor-relationships.

Disclosure with respect to remuneration:

A. Remuneration to Non-Executive Directors:

Tt

. Sitting fees for Board Meetings is 3 25,000/ per Independent Director for each meeting and ¥ 15,000/-

per Independent Director per meetng for Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, Stakeholder Relationship Committee and Corporate Social Responsibility Comnuttee,

. The sitting fees and commission paid to all the Non Executive Independent Directors of the Company

is as tabled below:
i Amounts in ¥ Lakhs)

Name of the | Sitting fees Salary & | Commission | Stock Pension
Director Perquisites Option
Mr. Samir details provided - - - -
Dhawan in the extract of
Mr.  Kshiti the Annual = = : :
Resigin D Return uploaded

on the
Mrs,  Shilpa Company s 3 T L 2
Kiran Gududur website

hittps:/fwww ker
; alaayuryeda.biz/
[":'h' Rajesh investor-
Sharma relationships
Mr. Sait’ Khan

Fwr. Saif Khan is appeinted as an Indepeadent Director in the Board, with effect from 307062025

3. The Non-Executive and Non-Independent Directors are neither paid sitting fee nor any commuission.

4. None of the Non-Executive Independent Directors have any other material pecuniary relationship or

transaction with the Company, its Promoters, or Directors, or Senior Management which, in their
Judgment, would affect their independence,

Remuneration paid to Executive Directors of the Company:

The appointment and remuneration of Executive Director 1.6, Whole-Time Director and Managing
Director and Group Chief Execunive Officer is governed by the recommendation of the NRC,
resolutions passed by the Board and shareholders of the Company.

Dretails of remuneration paid to Executive Directors of the Company are provided below:

{Amount in 2 lakhs)
Particulars | Kunjupanicker Anil Kumar

3 years
22.65

Term of appointment

Salary and Allowances

Performance linked incentive

Perquisites
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Minimum reﬁrg_qgeratiun NA
Notice Period and Severance Fees 3 Months
Stock Option {Exercised and allotted in no. ) Nil

During the Financial Year 2024-25 the Company did not advance any loan to its directors.

The Whole time Director is also entitled to other perquisites and benefits mentioned in the agreement
entered into with the Company. During the Financial Year 2024-25 the Company did not advance any

loan to its directors.
Disclosure of material transactions

Pursuant to the Listing Regulations, the Senior Management is required to make disclosures to the
Board relating to all material, financial and commercial transactions where they had or were deemed to

have had personal interest that might have been in potential conflict with the interest of the Company.

During the year under review. no such material financial or commercial transactions were entered into
by the Senior Management that had or were perceived to have had a potential conflict with the interests

of the Company.
Senior management:

Particulars of senior management as on 31.03.2025 including the changes therein since the close

of the previous financial vear:

Name of Senior Management Date of Joining Designation

Dr. Jayvarajan Kodikannath 15" June, 2021 CEO Kerala Ayurveda LT5A

Mr. Paul Varghese 16™ May, 2024 Chiet Commercial Officer

Mr. Sripath Hariharan 11" June, 2024 Chief Business Officer

Mr. Utkarsh Mishra 1 April, 2024 Chief Product and Tech Officer

Mr. Rakesh Kumar Roy 6" March, 2024 Chief Strategy and
Transformation Officer

Mr. George KT 28" June, 2022 Chief Financial Officer

COMPLIANCE REGARDING INSIDER TREADING

KAL has formulated | Code of Practices and Procedures Tor Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price
Sensitive Information to ensure timely and adequate disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive
Information. This is published on the company's website www keralaayurveda biz/investor -

relationships. The Company also has a Code of Conduet to Regulate, Monitor and Report Trading by
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Insiders. The code was amendedto align it with the new regulation i.e., the Securities and Exchange

Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 ([ Regulations ).

INFORMATION

PASSED

ON GENERAL

BODY

MEETINGS AND SPECIAL

RESOLUTIONS

Please find below details for general meetings held by the Company in last three financial years:

Financial
Year

Type of
Meeting

Date of
Meeting

Venue and
Time of

Special Resolution Passed

2022-2023

AGM

ETI!
September,
2022

{( Through
Video
Conferencing)

1.

]iegulari_;a_iinn of appointment
of Mr. Rajesh Sharma as an
Independent Director.

2022-2023

EGM

7" June,

2023

AT 100 AM.
{ Through
Video
Conferencing)

To Adopt new Articles of
Assoctation of the Company.

To offer, issue and allot equity
shares of the company to
investors on preferential basis.

2023-2024

AGM

7
Seplember,
2023

ALT1.00 A M,
{Through
Video
Conferencing)

To consider and approve the
issuance of equity shares on
preferential  basis to  Katra
Phytochem  (India)  Private
Limited. Promoter Group by
partially adjusting the existing
unsercured  loan  of  the
company.

To approve related party
transaction (RPTs) with Katra
Phytochem  (India) Private
Limited to sell the land held in
the name of the company.

Approval to sale/transfer or
otherwise dispose off the land
sitwated at Sy, No. 72 At
Naganayakanakote,
Anugondanahalli Hobli,
Hoskote Taluk., Bangalore
District having an area of 2.85
acres (11,534 Sqm; 1.24,147
SOFT) held in the name of the
company towards using the sale
proceeds to settle partially the
loan  extended by Katra
Phytochem  (India) Private
Limited.
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To affer, issue and allot equity
shares of the company to
" At11.00 AM. investors on preferential basis.
2023-2024 EGM | December, l;;l:l:lruugh To  approve for  Kerala
2023 Ci ?ET i) Avurveda Employee Restricted
FOMSEETE Stock Unit Plan (ESOP 2023)
of the company to 1ssuance (o
the emplovees of the company
20 At 11.00 AM, Appointment of Mr. Harish
: { Through Kuttan Menon (DIN:
24
R Mg gf}gff‘“b“' Video 00585260) as adndependent
Conferencing) Director
1. Appomntment of Mr. Samir
Dhawan (DIN:O1178691) as
Mon-Executive  Independent
Director of the Company.
2. Appointment of Mr. Kshit
o At 11.00 A M. Ranjas Das (DIN:07212449) as
- {Through Non-Exeeutive  Independent
2024- : ] ;
2024:3025 L Zl,::;';m Video Director of the Company.
Sl Conferencing)
3. Appomtment of Dr. Kodi
Kannath Jayarajan
(DIM:10798470)  as - Non
Executive:  Nimlependent
Director of the Company,

DETAILS OF SPECIAL RESOLUTION(s) PASSED THROUGH POSTAL BALLOT

Financi | Date of | Venue Tim | Special Details | Person | Procedure
al Year | approv ¢ Resolutions of whao for postal
al of items Voting | conduct | ballot
Postal Pattern  ed the
Ballot postal
ballot
exercise
2024-25 | 07 July | XV/551. - I. Te approve | Voting | The Pursuant 1o o
Y Board of | Section |10
2024 Athani, the results Directors | read with
Nedumbasse continuation | are of  the | Section 108
Company | and other
ry, of Mr. | availabl | had applicable
inted isions, if
Ernakulam, Kunjupanick | ¢ on the EFSP Qe !:;::”ffmﬂ:c
Kerala, er Anilkumar | website | Pramod | Companies
5M or | Act, 2013,
GB3583 (DIN:002263 | of the | failing (1At 1)
him OS5 | (imcluding
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53) as whole | Compa | Biswajit | any statutory
) ) Ghosh of | modification
time director | ny at | nss. BMP | or .
&  Co., | enactment
of the | ostal LLP. a | thercot  for
company Ballot P'racticing | the time
Compan bein in
upon and Sfcﬁary}r furcf}, read
S ehs firm, with Rules 20
staiuing:the | websate Bengalur | and 22 of the
age of | 8 of |y as | Companics
seventy BSE. :crunmz::;} { Manage n’:;::li
years. serutinize | Adminmistrat
the g= | on})  Rules,
voling 2014
rocess | (D Ruoles[);
2. To alter the I';t'a.ir and | Regulation
utilization of transpare | 44 of the
nt manner | Securities
proceeds  for and
preferential E};;Eng: of
allotment of Invdia (Listing
Obligations
9.21.781 and
; Ihsclosure
equity shares. Requivement
)
Regnlations,
25 read
with circulars
issted by
MCA and
SEE] for
conducting
postal  ballot
TOCEss
through  e-
voling.

WHETHER ANY SPECIAL RESOLUTION 1S PROPOSED TO BE CONDUCTED THROUGH
POSTAL BALLOT/EGM

The Company has passed the following Special Resolution through EGM dated 18" June 2025:

I. Increase in the Emplovee Stock Option Pool under the Kerala Ayvorveda Employee Restricted
Stock Unit Plan, 2023 (ESOP 2023),

The Company has following Special Resolutions through Postal Ballot dated 22% August 2025:

I. Approval for appointment of Mr. Saif Khan (DIN: 10780306) as Non Executive, Independent
Director of the Company.
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2. To consider and approve increase in overall Borrowing limits of the company as per Section

180 {1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013,
Further, as on date, no other Special resolution is proposed to be passed.

Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified institutions

placement as specified under Regulation 32 (7A).

The Company has not raised any funds through preferential allotment or qualified institutions placement
during the financial year. Hence, the requirement of disclosure under Regulation 32(7A) of SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, 2015 1s not applicable.

However, the Company had raised INR 21,20,09.630/- (Indian Rupees Twenty-One Crores

Twenty Lakhs Nine Thousand Six Hundred Thirty only) on 04" January 2024 through

preferential allotment. During the year under report, the Company has altered the objects of
utilization of proceeds of the preferential issue by passing a special resolution through postal

ballot notice dated June 07, 2024. The Company has completely utilized the issue of proceeds

as on the financial vear ended March 31, 2025,

Disclosure pertaining to  Loans and advances in the nature of loans to firms/companies in which

directors of the Company are interested .

During the financial vear, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans to
firms/companies in which directors are iterested, as defined under Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule
V ot SEBI (LODR ) Regulations, 2015.

DETAILS OF CAPITAL MARKET NONLCOMPULANCE, IF ANY

The Company has complied with all the applicable legal requirements and no other penalty or stricture
has been imposed on the Company by any ofthe stock exchanges, SEBI or any other statutory authority,

in any matter related to capital markets, during the last three vears.

However, during the year, the Company has exceeded the materiality threshold limit of Related Party
transactions with Ayurvedagram Hentage Wellness Cenlre Private Limited due to increased
participation and higher-than-anticipated demand for wellness services and programs undertaken by the
Company. Upon identification of this inadvertent nos compliance, the Company promptly undertook
necessary corrective actions, including obtaining ratification and approval from the Audit Committee,
Board of Directors and shareholders. The Company has not derived any undue profit or avoided any

loss on account of this non compliance, and no harm, loss, or prejudice has been caused to any investor,

In view of the above, the Company seeks to sue moto and voluntarily settle all proceedings that may
arise and engape with the Securities and Exchange Board of India on such terms as may be mutually
acceptable, in accordance with the applicable regulations on settling the same by consent in full and

final settlement of any and all proceedings that may be proposed or contemplated in this respect.
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DISCLOSURE UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The disclosure as required under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace Prevention, Prohibition

and Redressal) Act, 2013 is mentioned in the Boards' ' Report.
COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

The Wholetime Director have certitied to the Board with regard to the financial statements and other

matters as required under the Listing Regulations.

NON-COMPLIANCE OF ANY REQUIREMENT OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
REFORT

There were no non compliance with any requirement of Corporate Governance Report.
AUDMTORS  CERTIFICATE ON CORFORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has obtained a certificate from its Statutory Auditors regarding compliance with the
provisions relating to corporate governance laid down in the Listing Regulations. This certificate is

annexed to the "Directors | | Report'.
STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s. G. Joseph & Associates, Chartered Accountants {Registration Na. 0063 10). Chartered Accountants
are the Statutory Auditors of the Company. Total fees paid by the Company and its subsidiaries, on
consolidated basis to the Auditors including all entities in their network firm/entity ol which they are a

part is given below:

Payvment to Statutory Auditors | FY 2024-25 (In Lakhs)

Audit Fees 7.5
Tax Audit Fees -
Reimbursement of expenses -
Total 7.5

COMPLIANCE OF MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS UNDER THE LISTING REGULATIONS

The Company has complied with the applicable provisions of the Listing Regulations and the disclosure

relating to adoption of Non-mandatory [ Diseretionary requirements are detailed as under:
Disclosure relating to adoption of Discretionary Requirements:

{a) The Board: The Company has a Non-executive Chairman (related to promoter).
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(k) One-woman independent director: Mrs. Shilpa Kiran Gududur 1s.a Woman Independent Director

appointed on the Board of Directors of the Company.

(¢) Sharcholders Right: The Company does not mail the Unaudited Half-yearly Financial Results
individually to its Shareholders. However, these are published in one English and one local newspaper

and are also posted on the website of the Company.

(d) Modified Opinion{s) in Audit Report; Yes, the Statutory Auditors haveexpressed Moditied opmion
in their Audit report for the financial vear 2024-25. The detailed modified opinion and management

response thereon is mentioned in the Board report,
(e} Reporting of [nternal Auditor: The Internal Auditors report to the Audit Committee on annual basis.

(f) Separate posts of Chairperson and the Managing Director or Whole Time Director or the Chief
Executive Officer: Mr. Ramesh Vangal is the Chairmanand Dr. Kunjupanicker Anilkumar 15 the Whole

Time Director of the Company. Mr. Vivek Sunder is the Group CEQ of the Company,

(2) Reporting of internal auditor: The internal auditor reports directly to the audit committee of the

Company.

(h)Meetings of Independent Directors: During the vear under review,one meeting of the Independent

Directors was held on 28" February 2025,

(1} Risk Management: The Company is not required to constitute risk management committee in

accordance with Regulation 21 of the Listing Regulations.
GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

33" Annual General Meeting

[hate September 26, 2025
Time 12:00 Noon
Venue Through Video Conferencing

Financial calendar for FY 2024-25

Unaudited first quarter financial results Before 15" August 2025
Unaudited second quarter financial results Before 15" November 2025
Unaudited third quarter financial results Before 15" February 2026
Annual Accounts for FY 2024-25 During April/May 2026




Hersa Ayurveds LTD

Annual General Meeting for the year ending 31st March | During September 2026
2026

Means of Communication

The company publishes the quarterly and yearly financial results in prominent English and regional
language newspapers. The same are also displayed on its website www keralaayurveda.biz It provides
comprehensive information regarding the company s business. The quarterly and yearly tinancial
resulis are available in downloadable format for investors| | convenience on the company! s website. The
Annual Report of the company is also available on the website in a user friendly and downloadable

torm. The official news releases of the company are displayed on its website.
Registrar and share transfer Agent

M/s. Integrated Registry Management Services Pvt. Litd, (earlier known as Integrated Enterprises
{India) Ltd.) Chennai having office at Ernakulam is the Registrar & Transfer Agent of the company.
Share Transfers Dematerialization of shares and all other investor related activities are attended and
processed at the office of the Registrar & Transfer Agent. Sharcholders! Investors’ Depository
Participants are requested to send all their documents and communications pertaining to both physical

and Demat shares to the Registrar at the following address:

M5, Integrated Registry Management Services P, Lid.,

Kences Towers. 2nd Floor, Ramakrishna Street, Off North Usman Road,
T Nagar, Chennai-600017

Ph: 044-28140801-03 Fax: 044-28142479

E-mail: esdstd@integratedindia.in

Date of book closure

The register of members and share transfer books of the Company will remain closed from 19"

September, 2025 to 26" September 2025 (both days inclusive).
Dividend
The Directors do not recommend payment of dividend for the Financial Year 2024-25.

List of credit ratings: During the financial vear, the Company has not obtained any credit rating / there
has been no revision in the existing credit ratings for debt instruments. bank facilities, fixed deposit

programmes or any other fund mobilization schemes of the Company.
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Share transfer system

The shareholder can approach a Depository Participant (DP) with physical share certificates for
dematerialization. The DP will generate a Demat request which will be sent to the Registrar and Transfer
Agent along with share certificates. On receipt of the same the Registrar and Transfer Agent will Demat
the shares. The Company is also offering a subdivision cum Demat scheme for those shareholders who

are submitting their shares for subdivision.
Dematerialisation/ Rematerialisation of shares and liguidity

The process of conversion of shares from physical form (o electronic form is known as
dematerialization, For dematerializing the shares, the Shareholder must open a Demat account with a
Depository Participant (DP). The Sharcholder 1s required to fill in a Demat Request Form and submit
the same along with the Share Certificate(s) to the DP. The DP will allocate a demat request number
and shall forward the request physically and electronically, through NSDL/CDSL to the R&T Agent.
On receipt of the Demat request, both physically and electronically and after verification, the Shares

are dematerialized, and an electronic credit of shares is given in the account of the Sharcholder.

As on 31" March 2025, 97.04% of the Company! s totakhares representing 1,16,75.845 shares out of

1,20,32.451 are held in dematerialised form and 2 96% representing 3,56,606 shares are in physical

form.
Category Number % of Total Equity
Demat Mode
NSDIL 9368730 T7.86
CDSL 2307104 19.17
Physical Mode 356606 2.96
Grand Total 12032451 100.00

Listing on stock exchange and stock code | BSE Ltd.

Phiroze leejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street
Bumbai- 400001

Phones: (022) 22721233/4, 91-22-66545695
Fax: (022) 22721919

Stock Code: 5330163

Annual listing fees, as prescribed, have been paid to the said stock exchange upto 31* March 2025
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Distribution of sharcholding:
Nominal Value of | No. of % of Total Taotal Face % of total
5L No. | Shares Holders Holders Value of Shares | Face Value
1 | Up to 3000 gale 9296 61880 5.00
2| 5001 - 10000 268 2.89 210519 1.75
310001 - 20000 166 1.79 246152 2035
4 | 20001 - 30000 53 (137 134780 1.12
5| 30001 - 40000 41 (144 146689 1.22
f | 40001 - 50000 22 .24 8072 .81
T 50001 - 100000 42 (145 307207 2.55
8 | ABOVE 100001 Gl (.66 10287152 8550
Total 0269 10000 12032451 100.00
Shareholders Profile as on 31st March, 2025
bl B Category Number of Equity Shares | %
Nos.
L Promoters and Promoters Group T AR 435 38.58
2| Mutual Funds 2976 0.02
2 Foreign Portfolio Investors Category | i 1
*- | Foreign Portfolio Investors Category Il 0 0
5 | Banks 1709 0.01
. Insurance Compames 1] il
% Alternate Investment Funds 4] i)
8. Oither Bodies Corporate 425000 .56
% | Any Other (Specify)
Fesident-Stock Broker proprictary 191 0.00
104 Margin Trading Account-Individual 18 0.00
11 S orsiin Company 25737 0.21
'2{ Hindu Undivided Family 91262 0.76
13 MNun-Resident Indians 273743 2,28
' Trusts 0 0
15 Body Corporate - LLP 66337 0.55
164 Resident Individuals 4092584 34.01
17 Central and State Government ] )
18! Key Managerial Personnel 110 0.00
Total 12032451 1003 (MY

Global Depository Receipt, American Depository Receipts

The capital of the Company comprises only Equity Shares and the company 15 not having preference
shares, outstanding ADRs or GDRs.

&nnnclul smlernamiJ
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Plant Location

Kerala Avurveda Limited - XV/551, Athani, Nedumbassery, Ernakulam, Kerala, 683585

Commodity Price Risk or Foreign Exchange Risk and hedging activities

There were packing material imports from abroad and no foreign borrowings and the export receivables
are msignificant and forex fluctuations do not have any materal impact on the profitability of the
Company, The Company is not carryving out any hedging activities. The Company is dealing with
natural products and any increase in the price of raw material or commodity will impact the cost of the

product. The company has the abality to increase the price of the product to cover the cost.

Address for correspondence

The shareholders mav address their communications/sugeestions/queries to
b L |

Company Address Registrar and Transfer Agent
The Company Secretary / Complisnce Cficer, M /s, Integrated Registry Mamagement Services P. Lid,,
lﬁ-‘lﬂ&. Foerala Avurveda Lid, Fences Towers, 2nd Floor, Ramakrishna Street, OfF
Ests 1. Athani, Nedumbassery, Ermakulam, Kerala, 083583, [Worth Usman Road, T Magar, Chennai-0(H) 017
j;’h.' Oebete-24 76301 (4 lines) Ph: O44-28140801-03 Fax: 044-28142479
El'rﬂ: 0484-2474376 E-mail - esdstdflintepratedindia in
%\‘_.',!11_:.! il_vompanysecretarvia keralaayurveda iz
E investoril keralaayuryeda. e

DISCLOSURE WITH RESPECT TO DEMAT SUSPENSE ACCOUNT/UNCLAIMED SUSPENSE
ACCOUNT

The disclosurepursuant to  Schedule V' Para F of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirement)
Regulations, 2015 relating to the shares in the DEMAT suspensaceount/unclaimed suspense sccount are ad
follows:

Particulars of Suspense Escrow shares ;rl?n:{rhul ders z:la::,
Aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding shares in the suspense ‘ 1323
account lyving at the beginning of the vear,; : e
Number of sharcholders who approached listed entity for transfer of shares 5 1158
| from suspense account during the year; '
MNumber of shareholders o whom shares were transferred from suspense 3 1158
aceount durimy the year,
Aggregate number ol shareholders and the outstanding shares in the suspense 4 165
account lving at the end of the year;

Other disclosures

During the vear under review, the Company was non-compliant with the provisions of Regulation 17(1)
of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Consequently, a
fine of 35,31,000/- (Rupees Five Lakh Thirtyv One Thousand only) was levied by the Bombay Stock
Exchange in terms of SEBI Master Circular No. SEBIHO/CFD/PoD2/CIR/P/0 55 dated November
L1, 2024, vide its emal dated August 29, 2025 The Company shall be submitting waiver application
in this regard with BSE.
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The details of transactions of material nature with its Promoters, Directors or the Management or their
subsidiaries or their relatives during the year have been disclosed in notes to Accounts forming part of
this Annual Report, There was no instance of non-compliance.

All transactions with related parties were in the ordinary course of business and at arm’s length. The
company has not entered into any transaction of a material nature with any of the related parties which
are in conflict with the interest of the company,

Place: Atham By Order of the Board of Dhrectors
Date: August 29, 2025 For Kerala Ayurveda Limited
Sd/-

Ramesh Vangal
Chairman

(DIN: DO064018)



kerald |

> ayurvida

ANNEXURE - 6

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

ECONOMIC OVERVIEW

Despite facing significant challenges in the global economic landscape, the Indian economy has
displayed remarkable resilience. The recovery process from the contraction caused by the COVID-
19 pandemic, coupled with uncertainties stemming from events like the Russian Ukraine conflict
and inflationary pressures, has been a formidable task. However, India's economy has managed to
stage a broad-based recovery across various sectors, showing promising signs of regaining its pre-
pandemic growth trajectory by the fiscal year 2023. This positive outlook indicates that the country
15 on track to achieving robust GDP growth in FY 24, with forecasts projecting 1t to be in the range
of 6.3% to 6.5%.

One of the standout performers in India's economic recovery has been its pharmaceutical industry.
Experiencing rapid growth, the sector has been estimated to achieve a remarkable 8-10% expansion
during the fiscal year 2024 25, as reported by credit rating agencies, This impressive performance
has captured the attention of global pharma giants, who now consider India a priority market. With
its strong growth trajectory and the potential for further development, India's pharmaceutical industry
18 becoming increasingly attractive to international plavers seeking to tap into the country's
burgeoning market,

In 2024-25. the global Avurvedic market size was valued at USD 18.2 billion. highlighting the
increasing popularity and demand for traditional Indian medicine worldwide. Projections for the
forecast period indicate a compounded annual growth rate (CAGR) of 12%, which 18 expected to
propel the market to USD 16.23 billion by 2028. This significant growth trajectory signifies the
gxpanding global recognition and acceptance of Ayurveda, positioning India as a key player in the
traditional medicine market. As the market continues to flourish, it offers promising opportunities
for both domestic and international businesses interested in the Avurvedic sector.

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS

The AYUSH and alternative medicine sector in India 15 poised for significant growth, projected to
achieve a Compound Annual Growth Rate (CAGR) of 12% per cent tfrom 2025 to 2030. Several
factors are driving this expansion, including a notable increase in awareness among individuals
regarding the benefits of alternative medicine. Moreaver, there is a rising demand for natural and
organic products, as people prioritize holistic and sustainable approaches to health and wellness. The
Indian government's dedicated efforts to promote and support the AYUSH sector have also
contributed to its growth trajectory. This collective momentum has opened numerous growth
opportunities and heightened the industry's prospects.

Avurveda is a traditional system of medicine that originated in India thousands of vears ago. It is
bascd on the belief that health and wellness depend on a delicate balance between the mind, body,
and spirit. Ayurvedic medicine utilizes natural remedies and techniques to promote health and
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prevent illness. These remedies can include herbal medicines, dietary guidelines, massage,
meditation, and yoga. Ayurveda is making its way more into lives of people as diet & lifestyle
activities around the globe. Healthy daily habits like Oil pulling, Nasyam, Abhyangam are being
adopted by many. With Ayurveda being practiced all over the world, the way up ahead would be
quite exciting, Cures are being invented every other day based on Ayurveda herbal wisdom by
researchers. Doctors in hand in with scientists are working on innovating Ayurveda across different
fronts. We hope as Ayurveda spreads more, the essence of it will trickle more, into lives of many.
Wellness Naturally.

Kerala Ayurveda Limited 15 a One-of-its-kind, Full-spectrum, and Listed Ayurveda Company in
India with a rich Heritage of over 75 years and having touched the lives of over a Million people. lts
Footprint spans Wellness Resorts, Hospitals, Clinics, Academies, Products and Services in India &
US.

OPPORTUNITIES

We believe the following are our competitive opportunities:

o Strong R & D capability, many new products under development. Develop medicines which can
provide relief to medical conditions for which allopathy medicines do not provide much relief.

» Have fully integrated GMP manufacturing facility to manufacture both classical and proprietary
Avyurvedic formulations in the most hygienic condition and strict adherence to prescribed norms.

¢ Have Competent and experienced team of experls for the standardization of treatments. Growing
the well-established network of clinics and treatment centre and distribution centres.

RISK, CONCERNS AND THREATS

The market has both organtzed and unorgamized players and the capability and the strengths differ.
But both are classified under Ayurveda industry. So, the organized sector has to work hard to
maintain the parameters so that the high standards are maintained, and customers should not lose
faith in the practice. Major threats for Ayurveda industry are regulatory concerns, consumer
perceptions and competition. The regulatory agencies all over the world are focusing on the Quality,
efficacy, safety and standardization of herbal medicines. Your company has been working in this
area. We have demonstrated excellence in quality of our medicines and KAL is well positioned in
the market for quality products. We rely on repeat business based on the strength of our client
relationship and a major portion of our revenue comes from key clients, Initiatives are focused on
improving client relationship.

SEGMENT-WISE OR PRODUCT WISE PERFORMANCE

The primary business segment of vour Company is Ayurveda and hence no segment wise reporting 1s required,



6.

kerald |

> ayurvida

FUTURE OUTLOOK

The post-pandemic era has witnessed a resurgence in the popularity of ayurveda and alternative drugs
worldwide. As people sought immunity-boosting solutions with minimal side effects during the
pandemic, thev rediscovered the true potential of these traditional practices. Ayurveda and
alternative medicing have gained increased traction due to their holistic approach and natural
remedies. India, renowned for its expertise in alternative medicine. has emerged as one of the leading
exporters of such products on the global stage. Major export destinations include the United States,
as well as European nations like Germany and France. This international recognition and demand
have further bolstered the growth prospects of India's AYUSH and alternative medicine sector.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The company has strong internal controls systems commensurate with the nature of its business. the size and
complexity of its operations. In order to ensure orderly and efficient conduct of business the company has put
in place systems which include policies and procedures. IT systems, delegation of authority. segregation of
duties, internal audit and review framework etc. The team is cognizant of applicable laws and regulations
particularly those related to protection of resources and assets, and the accurate reporting of financial
transactions. The audit findings are reviewed by the audit committee.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE AND OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE
Financial Performance

During FY23, the Company recorded a consolidated total income of F12.215.03 lakhs, reflecting a growth of
18% over the previous year (£10,345.16 lakhs). Revenue from operations grew to 12,033,335 lakhs (FY24:
Z10,215.11 lakhs). driven by expansion across domestic and international markets. However, higher employee
benefit expenses, increased depreciation, and continued investments in growth initiatives impacted
profitability. The Company reported a net loss of $1,395.90 lakhs (FY24: loss of 256.02 lakhs).

Operational Performance

Dperationally. the Company continued to strengthen its integrated Ayvurvedic ecosystem across products,
services, and wellness solutions, Focused investments in people. technology, and brand building supported
revenue growth, with strong momentum in both the Indian and overseas businesses. The Company maintained
discipline in raw material and finance cost management, while strategically scaling operations to support long-
term growth and market leadership in holistic wellness,

MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN HUMAN RESOURCES/INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS FRONT
AND NUMBER OF PEOPLE EMPLOYED

The company places preat emphasis on its employees and believes that they are the core of the Corporate
Purpose. The HR mission is to empower employees to make continuous improvements and enhance their
professional skills. The company believes in respecting the individual rights and dignity of the people. The
company believes that human resources are the most valuable assets and a major driver for achieving its goals.
Your company continues 1o invest in human resources to build new businesses while simultaneously
improving the individual & organizational preparedness for future challenges.
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The manpower strength of the Company as on 31st March 2025 was 367 permanent employees including
Management Staff across different locations,

1. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS

In accordance with SEBI {Listing Obligations &Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018,
the Company is required to give details of significant changes (i.c. change of 25% or more as compared 1o
the immediately previous financial year,

I

Debt  Equity Ratio (+34%)
The ratio rose sharply as the Group drew down additional long-term loans (including current
maturities) to fund capital expenditure and working-capital needs, while equity contracted on
account of the net loss and charge for the Employee Stock Option Plan.
Debt Service Coverage Ratio {180%)
DSCR flipped from a positive (.83~ to a negative | [(1.66+. A consolidated operating loss
hefore interest & tax, combined with increased principal repayments on long-term debt and
leases, drove the ratio well into negative territory.
Net Capital Turnover (+30%)
Although still negative, the improvement reflects a reduction in working-capital outflow,
Current liabilities (notably, reelassification of current maturities of long-term horrowings)
rose faster than current assets, reducing the absolute value of the denominator.
Return on Equity (| 4.065%) & Net Profit Margin ( 2,149%)
The net loss after tax of 1,395 9 lakhs {versus a loss of £56.0 lakhs i the prior year)
depressed both ROE and the net margin, Key drivers included:

» A sharp increase in non-cash ESOP expense (36229 lakhs)

+  Higher depreciation/amortisation, especially on right-of-use assets

o Adverse deferred-tax and foreign-currency translation adjustments

All remaining ratios moved within £25% of the prior vear.

11. DETAILS

OF ANY CHANGE IN RETURN ON NET WORTH AS COMPARED TO THE

IMMEDIATELY PREVIOUS FINANCIAL YEAR

Return on Net Worth has decreased by 47.6% as to compared previous financial year, Our Company is
progressing by overcoming the pandemic situation.

Place: Athani
Drate: 29th August 2025

By Order of the Board of Director
For Kerala Avurveda Limited

Sd/-

Ramesh Vangal
Chairman
(DIN: 00064018)
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ANNEXTRE -7

FORMNO. AOQC -2

(Tursuunl w ¢lsvse (h) of sub=scetion (3) ol section 134 of e Act sod Bole 8(2) of the Companmics

{Accounts) Amendments Rules, 2016,

Form lor Disclosure ol particulars of contracts/arrangements eniered by the company with related
partics referred to in sub scetion (1) of scetion 188 of the Companics Act, 2003 including certain arm’s
length transuction under third provise thereto.

. Details of contracts or arrangements or ransactions not at Arm’s length hasis.

&1, o, Particulars Tretails

. MName sy ol the relaed party & nature of celationship Avurvedagran Hemilage Welliess
Ceurre Pwt.  Led,  Subsidiary
COHTpany

CIN: U4 140KA2003PTCO3 5] )

3 MNature of contracts armngement/ransaction Sale of Avurvedic Madicmes

i hraton ol Lhe contraclsamangemenbv/iransueion 1042023 W 31032025

d. Salient lenms of e commets or arangements or | 153% discount o the MIE of
wansgction includivg the value, 1Fany L omopany Froduols

S. Tustification  for entering into  smch  comtracts o | Delug o subsidiary of the campany,
arangements or lransacuons KAL is offeriug such discount

. Prate olapmeroval by the Boond 14%F February 2024

7. Arwuml praid as advances 1 any NiL

L Date on which the spocial resoluton wad passed dn | 207 Seprembee. 2024

Geueral mesting ag cequired under first proviso o Section

198

9, Total Value of Teopsaction duruig the vear 22525 lakhs
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20 Details o Conlrsets OoF WIringemeny or tmssetioms st A s lenglh busis

Amounr 11 Lacs
Sulient lerois vl
Duration of
the eonmracis or
Mt nre ol Lhe Miteis) ol Alnvunl paiil s
SL.  Name(s) of the related parcy ; srrangements or
comtracts/arrange | comtracts/are approval by ailvamces, if
T} antd wature of relutionship lrmnsnelions
mentsiransactions | angements/m the Board amy:
including rhe
amsiclions
value, if wny:
All seusen Lzrbs Privals
1. Limitzd - 1Yirector's Belatme turehiase of Raw o
) ) L4 Uebrinow
Material and Joh MWeed Baved Anns Nil
@
CIN; LA
Wik
L2423 KAZUOI P TUGI0I
2. Avvurveshigram Llesiags
Wellness Canter Privas
ek L S 149 Aneust
Limvited- Subsidiay Sales MNeed 13gsed 135 2 & it
2024
[ K
U740 AT 131311
3 Avwrvadaniam |leritage
Willness Conter Priviaw:
i sabdill Purchuse ol gosls L Lebru
Lunitwd- Subsidincy = Necd Based |74.86 =2 il
O S8rviCEs 2ir24
[ Y
U7 140K AO0PTOCU3LE]
4. Avyirvedagmom Horilaes
Wellness Center 'rivae
i , _— 144 ebmary
Limiites- Subsidiary Audvurce Moo Bused 48420 v il
2024
[ Y
L4140k A003F 03151
5. Ayurvedigrim Llegiln
YUE B |4 February
Wellness Conter Privone [ o Mesd Rased 4 s il

Limvited- Subsideny
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L B
LIT41A0EAXIPTCOAST
4. Avprvedie Academy Tne, Sale ol geodyor ) 14" Feheumry )
SRR : MNeed Hased H79.59 il
Ll &- Subs iy i 4
[4"™ Fehrunry
&, 5 R Pharmaceuticals Sorviens Tecelved Mecd Bused NIL i Ml
2024
Roruliy Avurveds Research .
; 5 Sale of geody or |4* February ;
6. wnd Falucarion Foundation _ Meed Hased .24 il
SEPVICES 24
Cenmnun Direvior
Ealra Phvlochem Mrdigg Pl
Lad-Uamon | Hrecioe . 1% Flwiiury .
T Sule of soods Mecd Buased NIL : il
CIN 2024
U151 34EA L 906D TC 20932
Ktz Thstoghen (Indiad 17w
Lid-Cormmon Darocter | 4% Fehouary .
L8 1w hase of goods Meed Hased 21543 Mil
o 2024
LIS A THS I TN 2HRIR
Eonira Phlochom (lading Py
1 tel-Commaon |irecoe : 14" Vebruucy i
9. bnlerest Vized B340 . il
LI 20
LIS I34KA L 996PTCOMN3
ama hyrochem (nciad fve
Lid-Conmuon Direvioe | 4" Febeuury _
10, L.ean Meed Itased 1540 il
CIN 024
PIEAT 4R A TG T2
Bltizon and Sumoicrs Laisure = 14* Pebruury ;
11 ) Servives Teceivied Muod Based .56 Ml
Pat Lid-Camman Dircctor 2024
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Cib;
LO300EAZ0APTE DALRAT

Sy og (Rulrgsody ook, i 14-* L'ebruary -
12 i . Sale ol poeds Mew] Based 0118 il
L'SA- Subsidinry 2024
Agrdurveds Wellness Privile
Limaied |44 Fobrary
13 Sale of goods Mead linged | 7ih : il
: e
CIx
D242 AKLANISHTOOETG
lKatra |olding Privae
Liguiwd- Commn Direcor 14" Fobeusmy
4 Loan MNeod Hasod 30 : ~il
2024

o
LOSLSOIA2PTE DA 33

Place; Athand
Date: Angust X9, 2025

By Order of the Board of Directors
Tor Keraln Ayvrveda Limiced

M-

Ramesh Vapgal
Chairman

(AR DG IR



ANNEXURE 8

Information in accordance with Section 134(3 j{m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the

A

Companies (Accounts) Amendment Rules, 2016 and forming part of the Board's Report for the year

ended 31.03.2024

. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:

The Steps taken or the
Imipact on the
conservation of energy

I: New Thermax wood boiler installed- Cost saving of around
#Lacs/Month as compared with the previous furnace vil Boiler (Project
cost 125 Lacs) ({Nov=24 to March-25 =32 Lacs saved)

2! Separate Steam header lines given to each production section 1o save
steam and steam transfer loss (Boiler can be set to constant pressure. and
Fuel saved)

3: Well recharging system from the 3000 sqft roof rainwater installed
{Rainwater harvesting)

4: Ceiling fans changed to BLDC, 20 nos completed; another 10 nos.
planned for the coming months, (Cost saving 0.5 Lacs/Y ear)

5: Halogen bulbs and tubes changed o LED (Cost saving (1.2 Lacs/Year)

6. Capacitor panel boosted and power factor maintained 10 0.9 (Getting an
incentive every month-{ Cost saving 0.2 Lacs/Year)

7: Condensate recovery line moditied and getting temperature between 8()
to 85 (Fucl save and water save<{ 1 152 KL water saved/Year)

The Steps taken by the
Company to utilize an
alternate source of
energy

1: The herbal wastes from the Athani and RDD manufacturing unit are
used as a fuel in the Boiler (4.2 Lacsfannum was needed to dispose of
these waste)

Corporate Ovandew | {__F_mnn-:lul'smlemams ]
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B, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, ADAPTATION, AND INNOVATION:

1

The efforts made towards technology absomption

s MNew  Blister packing
machine for tablets &
capsules  from HASTEN
PACK was installed this
year.

s Capital investment was
done &t RDD, Kottal
location  also  for raw
material processing with

2 new machines-
Shredder & Disintegrator
rmachines WErR
commissioned in
Movember 2024,

e (ur new HETLC

instrument is installed
this year in February
2025, This is an imported
machine by  CAMAG,
Switzerland and as a part
of the Capex addition to
RE&D.

# Also made extension of
Microbiclogy lab (BOD Sg.
Ft.}, separate PUF
panelled room facility as
per GMP requirements
and both these projects
were costing about 1.5 Cr.
For renpvating our R&D
|ab

product development or import substitution

The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction,

Improved Safety and Efficacy of
the current fine of products
and waorking towards more
customer  oriented  dosage
farms,

3 Dhetails ui-'_im_p;rttd technology Dring the year, company  has
not imported any technology.
4 | The expenditure incurred on research and development
A | Capieal 125
B | Deferred Revenue Expenditure -
C | Revenue Expenditure 12.58
I | Total 137.6
Total Research and Development expendinure as a % of mmover .
E {Products) 2:12%

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGO:

The details of fareign exchange camnings and outgo are as under: Current Year

Forcign Exchange Eamings

i 164.08 lacs

2 Foreign Exchange Outgo

l 159.00 lacs

|




COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF CONDUCT OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Tao,
The Members of

Kerala Ayurveda Lid.,

As provided under SEBI (Listing of Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations,
2015 all Directors and Members of the Senior Management have affirmed compliance with the
code of conduct during the financial year ended 31 March, 2025,

Further, it is herecby confirmed that the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct (- Code! 1) for its
Board and Members of Senior Management, and the Code is available on the Company s
website at https://www keralaayurveda.biz/investor-relationships

For Kerala Ayurveda Limited
Sd."l'
Vivek Sunder
Chief Executive OiTicer
Place: Kerala

Date : 29" August, 2025
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CEO /CFO CERTIFICATION

To,
The Board of Directors,
Kerala Ayurveda Limited

We, the undersigned, in our respective capacities as Wholetime Director and Chief Financial
Officer of Kerala Ayurveda Limited (' /the Company! ), to the best of our knowledge and
belief certify that:

1. We have reviewed financial statements and cash flow statement for the financial year2024- 25
and that to the best of our knowledge and belief:

1. These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or
contain statements that might be misleading;

ii. These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in
compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

2. There are to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the company
during the financial year ended on 31st March, 2025 which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of
the company's code of conduct,

3. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial
reporting and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the company
pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee,
deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and
the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

4. Duning the period under review, no significant changes were observed in the internal controls
over financial reporting and accounting policies of the Company. Furthermore, there are no
instances of fraud and the Involvement therein of the management or employees having a
Significant rele in the company's internal control system over financial reporting.

For Kerala Ayurveda Limited

Sd/-
Date:29™ August, 2025 Vivek Sunder
Place: Kerala CEQ
Sd/-
K T George

Chief Financial Officer
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SV]S & Associates

Company Secretaries

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

{Pursuant to Regulation 34 (3) and Schedule ¥V Para C Clause (10) {i) of the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations, 2015)

Tao
The Members

KERALA AYURVEDA LIMITED
xV/ 551, Nedumbassery,

Athani (Ernakulam),
Aluva, Kerala, India, 6B3585

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the
Directors of KERALA AYURVEDA LIMITEDaving CIN: L24233KL1992PLC0O06592 and having
registered office at XV/ 551, Nedumbassery, Athanl (Ernakulam), Aluva, Kerala, India, 683585 (hereinafter
referred to as the Company ), produced before us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate,
in accordance with Regulation 34 (3) read with Schedule V Para C Clause 10 (i) of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors
Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations
furnished to us by the Company and its officers, the representations made by the Management and
considering the relaxations granted by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and Securities and Exchange Board
of India warranted due to the spread of the COVID-19 pandemic, We hereby certify that none of the
Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 31 March, 2025
have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the
Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such Statutory Authority.

'SI. | Name of Director 'DIN | Date of appointment
No. in Company
1. | Mr. Ramesh Vangal ~ 00064018 | 02.09.2006
2. | Mr. Anand Subramanian ~ 00064083 | 11.10.2010
3. | Dr. Kunjupanicker Anilkumar 00226353 | 28.06.2006
EE www.sws.in S svjsossociates@gmail.com sinfo@svis.in @ 0484 2950009 / 2950007

6523644, Ponoth Rood, Kaloor, Kochi, Ernakulam, Kerala— &82 017

Bengaluru | Cheannai | Mumbai
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4, Ms. Shilpa Kiran Gududur 09067581 15.02.2021
5, Mr. Rajesh Sharma 00B11525 28.06.2022
6. | Mr. Utkarsh Singh 09244896 | 19.03.2025
7, Mr. Samir Dhawan 01178691 04.10.2024
8, Mr. Kshiti Ranjan Das 07212445 04.10.2024
q. Mr. Kodikannath Jayarajan 10798470 | 04.10.2024
10. | Mr. Gokul Patnaik* 00027915 | 24.09.2019
11. | Mr. Subramanian Krishnamurthy* 00140414 24.09.2019
12. | Mr. Harish Kuttan Menon® 00585260 30.06.2019

* ceased on 23.09.2024
# ceased on 23.09.2024
@ ceased on 01.10.2024

Ensuring the eligibility for the appeointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility
of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion based on our verification.
This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

r~ On June 19, 2024, the Supreme Court of Mauritius Commercial Division appointed Mr. Ouma Shankar
Cchit (Liguidator) over Katra Holdings Limited, Mauritius (KHL) which holds 53.58% of Kerala Ayurveda
Limited. The National Company Law Tribunal {NCLT) case invelving Kerala Ayurveda Limited (KAL) and its
promoters is ongoing. The case, filed by Katra Holdings Limited (in liquidation), was registered on
September 24, 2024, under CP No. 25/2024 at the Kochi bench of the NCLT. The NCLT vide order CP
(C/ACT)/25/KOB/2024) dated 25.09.2024 directed to keep resolutions passed in Annual General Meeting
2024 pertaining to two directors, being respondents, in abeyance, till the matter is adjudicated by the
Tribunal or until further orders. The case status remains pending on 31.03.2025.

Peer Review Certificate No. 62152024
UDIN: FOO3067G001109898

For SVJS & Associates
Company Secretaries

Sdi-
CS. Vincent P. D.
Managing Partner
FCS: 3067
CP No: 7940

Kaochi
29.08.2025
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COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

[Pursuant to Regulation 13 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India

{Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021]

Tao
The Members

KERALA AYURVEDA LIMITED
®V/ 551, Nedumbassery,

Athani (Ernakulam),
Aluva, Kerala, India, 683585

We SVIS & Associates, Company Secretaries, have been appointed as the Secretarial Auditor vide a
resolution passed at its meeting held on 29.05.2024 by the Board of Directors of Kerala Ayurveda Limited
{hereinafter referred to as 'the Company’), having CIN L24233KL1952PLC006592 and having its registered
office at X/ 551, Nedumbassery, Athani (Ernakulam), Aluva, Kerala, India, 683585,

This certificate is issued under Securities and Exchange Board of India {Share Based Employee Benefits and
Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021 (hereinafter referred to as "the Regulations’), for the year ended
31.03.2025.

Management Responsibility:

It is the responsibility of the Management of the Company to implement the Scheme including designing,
maintaining records and devising proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and regulations and to ensure that the systems are adequate and operate effectively.

Verification:

The Company has implemented KERALA AYURVEDA EMPLOYEE RESTRICTED STOCK UNIT PLAN',
2023 (ESOP 2023) in accordance with the Regulations and the Special Resolution passed by the members
at the Extra Ordinary General Meeting of the Company held on 20.12.2023.

& www.svis.in i svjsassociates@gmail.com Sinfo@svis.in @ 0484 2950008 / 2950007

4523648, Panoth Rood, Kaloor, Kachi, Emakulam, Keralo— 682 017
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For the purpose of verifying the compliance of the Regulations, we have examined the following:

1. Scheme furnished by the Company,;

2. Articles of Association of the Company;

3. Resolutions passed at the meeting of the Board of Directors;
4, Shareholder resclution passed at the General Meeting;

5. Shareholders resclution passed at General Meetings w.r.t variation in the scheme; Not applicable
during the financial year

6. Shareholders resolution passed at General Meeting w.r.t approval for implementing the scheme(s)
through a trust(s); Not applicable.

7. Minutes of the meetings of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee;
8. Trust Deed - Not applicable

9. Details of trades in the securities of the company executed by the trust through which the scheme is
implemented; Mot applicable

10. Relevant Accounting Standards as prescribed by the Central Government;

11. Detailed terms and conditions of the scheme as approved by Nomination and Remuneration
Committee;

12. Bank Statements towards Application money received under the scheme: Nil during financial yvear
13. Valuation Report;
14, Exercise Price / Pricing formula;

15, Statement filed with recognised Stock Exchange(s) in accordance with Regulation 10 of these
Regulations;

16, Disclosure by the Board of Directors;
17. Relevant provisions of the Regulations, Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder;

18. Other relevant document/ filing/ records/ information as applicable and as sought and made available
to us and the explanations provided by the Company.

Certification:

In our opinion and to the best of our knowledge and according to the verifications as considered necessary
and explanations furnished to us by the Company and its Officers, we certify that the Company has
implemented KERALA AYURVEDA EMPLOYEE RESTRICTED STOCK UNIT PLAN', 2023 (ESOP 2023)
in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Regulations and Resolutions of the Company in the
General Meetings excepl that there is no weblink in directors’ report relating to disclosures as required
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under Part - F of Schedule T of Securfties and Exchange Board of India {Share Based Employvee Benefits
and Sweat Equity) Reguiations, 2021.

Assumption and Limitation of Scope and Review:

1. Ensuring the authenticity of documents and information furnished is the responsibility of the Board
of Directors of the Company.

2. Our responsibility is to give certificate based upan our examination of relevant doecuments and
information. It is neither an audit nor an investigation.

3. This certificate is nelther an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

4., This certificate is solely for your information and it is not to be used, circulated, quoted, or
otherwise referred to for any purpose other than for the Regulations.

UDIN: FOO3067G0011093953

Peer Review Certificate No, 6215/2024

For SV1S & Associates

Company Secretaries

Sdf‘l—
CS Vincent P. D.

Managing Partner
FCS: 3067

CP No: 7940

Kachi

29.08.2025
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@l SV]S & Associates

Company Secretaries

CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To the members of Kerala Ayurveda Limited

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance bKerala Ayurveda Limited
[CIN: L24233KL1992PLCO06592]having its registered office AW/ 551, Nedumbassery, Athani
{Ernakulam), Aluva, Kerala, India, 683585 for the year ended 31% March, 2025 as stipulated in
Regulation 17 to 27 and clause (b) to (i) and (t) of Regulation 46 (2), Schedule V and Schedule II of the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(C1SEBI Listing RegulationsCl).

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our
examination has been limited to a review of the procedures and implementation thereof adeopted by the
Company for ensuring compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated above. It js
neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and based
on the representations made by the Directors and the management and considering the relaxations granted
by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and Securities and Exchange Board of India, we certify that the Company
has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the SEBI Listing Regulations for
the year ended on March 31, 2025 except as under:

1. As per Regulation 23 (9) of th&ecurities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the listed entity shall submit to the stock exchanges
disclosures of related party transactions in the format as specified by the Board from time to time,
and publish the same on its website. We are unable to comment on whether Related party
disclosures for the half years ended 31.03. 2024 and 30.09.2024 contains all such transactions in the
absence of financial data of subsidiaries.

2. Related Party Transactions with Ayurvedagram Heritage Wellness Centre Private Limited for the
financial year 2024-25 has exceeded the prescribed limits under the first proviso to Regulation 23
(1) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements)
Regulations, 2015 .

3. Half of the board of directors of the Company do not consist of independent directors for a period
from 15/03/2025 to 31/03/2025 as per regulation 17 (1)}{b) of the Securities and Exchange Board
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

4. As per second Proviso to regulation 17 (1E) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations, 2015, if the listed entity becomes non-

&5 wawnw.svis.in BS svjsassociates@gmail.com /info@sws.in Q 0484 2950009 / 2950007
65/2364A, Ponoth Rood, Kaloor, Kochi, Ernaliulam, Keralo— 82 017

Bengaluru | Chennai I  Mumbai
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11.

compliant with the requirement under sub-regufation (1) of this regulation, sub regulation (1) of
regulation 18, sub-requlation (1) or (2) of regulation 19, sub-reguiation (2) or (24) of reguiation 20
or sub-regulation (2) or {3) of regulation 21, due to expiration of the term of office of any director,
the resulting vacancy shall be filled by the listed entity not later than the date such office is vacated.
Vacancy created in the office of independent direcfor due to expiration of the term of office of Mr.
Subramaniam Krishnamurthy on 23/09/2024 is filled by the Company only an 04/10/2024 being
fater than the date such office is vacated.

As per regulation 17(8) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the chief executive officer and the chief financial officer
shall provide the compliance certiftate to the board of directors as specified in Part B of Schedule
II. Compliance Certificate required under regulation 17(8) is signed by Whole-time Director of the
Company instead of Chief Executive Officer.

As per regulation 27(2)(c) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the report mentioned in clause {a) of sub regulation
{2) shall be signed either by the compliance officer or the chief executive officer of the listed entity.
Quarterly compliance report on corporate governance for the quarters ended 30G/09/2024 and
31/12/2024 and Integrated Filing{governance) for the quarters ended 31/12/2024 and 31/03/2025
are not signed by the Compliance Officer or the CEQ, instead it is signed by CFO.

As per regulation 30 (6)(i) of the Securfties and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, read with Schedule IIT (Part-A)A)4)(h), the listed
entity shall disclose to the Exchange(s) the outcome of meetings of the board of directors held to
consider financial results within 30 minutes of the closure of the meeting. Outcome of meeting held
on 28/05/2024 which considered financial results for the year ended 31/03/2024 is nof intimated to
stock exchange within 30 minutes of the closure of the meeling.

As per regulation 32(7A) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, where an entity has raised funds through preferential
allotment or qualified institutions placement, the listed entity shall disclose every year, the utilization
of such funds during that vear in its Annual Report until such funds are fully utilized. Disclosure
regarding the utifization of funds raised through preferential alfotment during the financial yvear
financial year ended 31/03/2024 is not given in its Annual Report for the same year.

As per regulation 36(4)(a) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations, 2015 read with Master Circwlar (Equity) of Bombay Stock
Exchange, the disclosures made by the listed entity with immediate effect from date of notification
of these amendments- (a) to the stock exchanges shall be in XBRL format in accordance with the
guidelines specified by the stock exchanges from time to time. Further, as per Master Circular, all
fisted entities would be required to submit the filings in XBRL mode within 24 hours of submission of
the said POF filing. There were certain lapses in this time reguirement of 24 hours.

As per regulation 36 (5) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations, 2015, the notice being sent to shareholders for an annual
general meeting, where the statutory auditor(s) or Secretarial Auditor is/are proposed to be
appointed/re-appointed shall include the following disclosures as a part of the explanatory statement
to the natice:

(a)Proposed fees payable to the statutory auditor(s) or Secretarial Auditor along with terms of
appointment and in case of a new auditor, any material change in the fee payable to such auditor
from that paid to the outgoing auditor along with the rationale for such change;

(b) Basis of recommendation for appointment including the details in relation to and credentials of
the statutory auditor({s) or Secretarial Auditor proposed to be appointed.,

Notice of AGM held on 20/09/2024 had an item for appointment of M/s. G. Joseph & Associates as
the Statutory Auditors of the Company, however no explanatory statement for this iferm was given
in the AGM notice containing aforesaid disclosures.,

As per regufation 39 (4) read with Schedule V (F) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the listed entity shall comply
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13.

14,

with the procedural requirements specified in Schedule VI while dealing with securities issued
pursuant to the public issue or any other issue, physical or otherwise, which remain wunclaimed
and/or are lying in the escrow account, as applicable and the listed entity shall disclose the following
details in its annual report, as long as there are shares in the demat suspense account or unclaimed
suspense account, as applicable :

(a) aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding shares in the suspense account lying at
the beginning of the year;

{b) number of shareholders who approached listed entity for transfer of shares from suspense
account during the year;

{c) number of shareholders to whom shares were transferred from suspense account during the
year;

{(d) aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding shares in the suspense account lying at
the end of the year;

{e) that the voting rights on these shares shall remain frozen till the rightful owner of such shares
claims the shares.

Annual Report for the financial ended 31/03/2024 mentions that there are no shares in demat
suspense account, however the Company has 1323 share outstanding in the demat suspense account
as on 31/03/2024.

As per Schedule IIT (A) (7) read with regulation 30 (6)(ii) of the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, for change in directors,
key managerial personnel (Managing Director, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer,
Company Secretary etc, ), senior management, Auditor and Compliance Officer, the listed entity shall
first disclose to the stock exchange(s) all events or information which are material in terms of the
provisions of this regulation as soon as reasonably possible and in any case not later than twelve
hours from the occurrence of the event or information, in case the event or information /s emanating
from within the listed entity. Mr. Harish Kuttan Menon (Director) resigned on 01/10/2024 and this
was intimated fo stock exchange only on 05/10/2024.

Detalled disclosure on remuneration as required under Schedule V (C) (6)(c) of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is not
given in the Annual Report for the financial year ended 31/03/2024,

Annual Report for the financial vear ended 31/03/2024 does not include details of material
subsidiaries of the listed entity; including the date and place of incorporation and the name and date
of appointment of the statutory auditors of such subsidiaries as part of Corporate Governance Report,
as per Schedule V (C){(10)(n) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations, 2015 .

15.4As per schedule V (D) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India {Listing Obligations and

16.

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the annual report shall contain the following additional
disclosures - a declaration signed by the chief executive officer stating that the members of board
of directors and senior management personnel have affirmed compliance with the code of conduct
of board of directors and senior management.

Declaration as required under Schedule V (D) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations, 2015 is signed by the Whole-time director of
the Company instead of Chief Executive Officer.

As per Master circular (eqguity) of Bombay Stock Exchange, listed companies are required to submit
all corporate announcementis {full set of documents) in machine readable and searchable form.
Secondly, such document/ disclosure shall be authenticated using a DSCVarious stock exchange
fntimations are not suthenticated using & DSC. Furthermore as per circular, non-admissible
signatures include but are not limited to physical signature, image pasted signature, signature in
Sd/- format, copy pasted signature, etc. Few intimations have been made with said non-admissible
signatures,
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As per regulation 14 read with part-F of Schedule I of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share
Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021, in addition to the information that a
company {s regufred to discfose in relation to employee benefits under the Companies Act, 20135, the
Board of Directors of such a company shall also disclose the details of the scheme(s) being
implemented, as specified in Part F of SchedulEl [ of these regulations. There is no weblink in
directors' report relating to disclosures as required under Part] F of Schedule I of Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021,

Declaration required under sub-regulation 4 of reguiation 31 of the Securities and Exchange Board
of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 for the financial vear
ended 31/03/2024 is not seen intimated to stock exchange and audit committee within 7 warking
days from the end of the financial year.

Certain acquisitions and change in holding are not disclosed on time/not seen disclosed by acquirer
under reguiation 29(1), 29(2) and 29 (3) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial
Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 to the Company and stock exchanges.

Mr. Rajesh Sharma, Independent Director hias not passed online proficiency self-assessment test
within two years of being registered as an Independent Director on the Databank of the Indian
Institute of Corporate Affairs under Rule 6 (4) of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of
Directors) Rules, 2014,

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor
of the efficiency or effectivenass with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Peer Review Certificate No. 6215/2024
UDIN: FOO3067G001109920

For SV1S & Associates
Company Secretaries

Sd/-

CS Vincent P. D.
Managing Partner
FCS: 3067

CP No: 7940

Kochi
29.08.2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Members of
Kerala Avurveda Limited
Report on the audit of the standalone financial statements

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the Standalone financial statements of Kerala Ayurveda Limited (“the Company’),
which compnise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2025 the Statement of Profit and Loss (including
other comprehensive income ), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash flows for
the year then ended and the notes to the financial statements. including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given o us. except
for the possible effects of the matter described in the *Basis for Qualified Opmion” section the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act 2013 ("the Act”) in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.as
amended, ("Ind AS") and other accounting principles gencrally accepted in India, of the state of affairs
of the Company as at 31st March, 2025, its loss including comprehensive income, its cash flows and
the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

The Company has a bank account with HDFC Bank Limited having a balance of 23 85 lakhs as at 31st
March 2025, which is subject to confirmation and reconcilianon. In the absence of sufficient audit
evidence regarding the accuracy and completencss of this balance, we are unable to determine the
possible adjustments. if any, that may be required in respect of this item.

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standard of Auditing (SAs)
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilitics under those SAs are further deseribed
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder and we have fulfilled our ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained 1s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on
the financial statements,

Emphasis of Matters

1. We draw attention to Note 43 to the financial Statements, relating to the restatement of prior
period figures due to errors and omissions identified during the current reporting penod. These
restatements have been made in accordance with Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies. Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors,

2. We dmw attention to Note 16 of the financial statements. relating to the significant trade
receivables due from the Company s subsidianies. A substantial portion of these balances has
been outstanding for more than 6 months. Management has represented that these amounts are
fully recoverable and accordingly, no provision for expected credit loss has been recognised

Our opinion is not modified in respeet of the above matters.
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Key audit matters

key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the standalone financial statements of the curnent penod. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opimion on these matters. We have determined the matters
descnbed below to be the key andit matters to be commumicated in our report.

Restatement of prior period Financial Statements due to material error:

Key Audit Matter

How the maiter was addressed in Aodit

Dunng the vear, the Company has restated its
comparative financial statements to  correct
certain material prior period errors. The
restatements pnmarily relate to:

= Incorrect foreign exchange translation
and restatement of balances denominated
in foreign currencies,

= Inadequate impairment assessment of
mvestments and loans extended to cerain
subsidianics, and

=  Misclassification of certain  financial
assets and hiabilities m the earlier penods.

These  restatements involved  significant
management Judgment, retrospective
adjustments, and reclassification of comparative
financial information, all of which were material
to users of the financial statements. Given the
nature, extent, and complexity of these
restatements  and the mercased andit effort
required to wvalidate the adjustments, we
considered this 1o be a key andit matter.

Our procedures included, among others.

= Obtaiming a detailed understanding of the
nature of the prior period errors and the
Company’s restatement process.

* Evaluating the Company's intemal
documentation and management’s
assessment supporting the restated figures.

*  Re-performing management’s calculanons
for

= Restatement of forcign currency
balances and unrealised exchange
gains/losses;

*  |mpaimment testing of investments
and inter-company loans based on
recoverability; and

= Reclassification and measurement
of financial instruments  under
applicable Ind AS (including Ind
AS 109 and Ind AS 32)

= Assessing whether the restated disclosures
in the financial statements comply with the
requirements of Ind AS 8 - Accounting
Policies. Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Ermors

» Evaluating the appropnatencss and
completeness of the disclosures related to
restated comparatives.

Refirence in Financial Statements:
Refer Note 43 - Disclosures required under fnd AS
& for correction of prior pertod errors,

Identification and disclosures of Related Parties:

Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in Audit

The Company has significant related party
transactions. which mclude sale and purchase of
goods and services, as well as lending,
imvestment, and borrowing transactions with its
subsidianes, associates, joint ventures, and other
related parties.

Our am:llt procedures included, among others;
Evaluated the design and tested the
operating cffectiveness of controls over
identification and disclosure of related
party transactions. ldenufication and
disclosure of related partics was a
significant area of focus and hence is
considered a Key Audit Matter
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Given the pervasive nature of these transactions,
the nsk of incomplete identification,
mappropnate  classification, and madequate
disclosure is heightened.

Assessing compliance with Ind AS 24 - Related
Party  Disclosures  requires  sigmificant
management judement, particularly in ensunng
completeness and accuracy of disclosures and

compliance  with  corporate  govemance
requirements.
Accordingly, related party transactions were

considered a kev audit matter.

= Obtained a hist of related parties from the
Company's management and traced the
related parties to declarations given by
directors, where applicable, and to Note
39 of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements,

*  Reviewed the minutes of the meetings of
the Board of Directors and Audit
Commuttee and traced related party
transactions with limits approved by
Audit Committee / Board,

*  Reviewed the declaranons of related
party transactions given to the Board of
Directors and Audit Commuttee.

= Venfied the disclosures in the standalone

Ind AS financial statements for
compliance with Ind AS 24
Reference m Financial Statements:

Refer Note 39 —Relared Party Transactians

Testing for impairment of investments and loans advanced to subsidiary Companies:

Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed i Audit

The Company has invested i vanous
subsidianes and advanced significant loans to its
such entities, which arc outstanding as at the
balance sheet date. These investments and loans
form a substantial portion of the Company's
financial assets

The assessment of recoverability of loans and the
valuation of these investments  involves
significant management judgment. This includes
evaluating;
*= The financial position and cash flow
projections of the subsidiaries.
= The purpose and utilisation of the loans,
Probability  of  repavment  or
restructurng, and
=  The far valuation of investments in
accordance with Ind AS requirements.

Given the matenality of the amounts involved.
the related party nature of the transactions, and
the judgment involved in  asscssing  the
imparrment and recoverability, we considered
this a key audit matter.

Our nudll procedures included, among others:
Reviewing the financial health of the
subsidiaries by examining  their
audited/unaudited financial statements
and cash flow forecasts.

*  Obtaining a schedule of loans advanced
to subsidianes and venfyving balances
with underlying loan agreements.

*  Assessing the terms and conditions of the
loans, including tenure, imterest, and
repavment clauses

= Evaluating the rcasonableness of
management's assessment of
imparrment, including assumptions used
for calculanng expected credit losses.

*  Rewviewing the basis and documentanon
for impairment provision recognised for
the specific subsidiary loan

*  Assgssing comphance with disclosure
reguirements under Ind AS 107, Ind AS
109, Ind AS 36 and Ind AS 24,

* Evaloating the  adeguacy  and
appropriateness of disclosures made in
the Financial statements.

Reference in Financial Statements:

Refer Note 9 and 10 — Investments and Loans 1o

Subsidiaries

' Finonclal Statemants |
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Information other than the standalone financial statements and auditor's report thereon

The Company’'s management and Board of Directors arc responsible for the other imformation. The
other information comprises the information included 1n the Company's annual report, but does not
in¢lude the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The annual report is expected to be
made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information 1s materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtaned in the audit or otherwise appears to be matenally
misstated. 1. based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a matenal misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report the fact. We have nothing to report in this regard

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the standalone financial
statements

The Company’s Board of Dircctors i1s responsible for the matters stated n section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give
a true and fur view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive
mcome. and cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India. including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specificd
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropnate accounting policies: making
Judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate intemal financial controls, that were operating cffectively for ensuning the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records. relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
OF error.

In preparing the financial statements. management is responsible for assessing the Company 's ability
to continug as a going concem. disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company 's financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to abtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from matenal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 1s a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
andit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a matenal misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
ageregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these Financial Statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and mamtan
professional seepticism throughout the audit. We also:

# ldentify and assess the nisks of matenal misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain andit
evidence that 15 sufficient and appropniate to provide a basis for our opinion. The nisk of not
detecting a matenal misstatement resulting from fraud 15 higher than for one resulting from
error. as frand may involve collusion, forgery, mtentional omissions. misrepresentations. or the
overnde of internal control,

e  Obtan an understanding of intermal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(1) of the Companies
Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has
adequate internal financial controls svstem in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls,

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

s (Conclude on the appropriatencss of management s use of the going concem basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a matenial uncerainty exists related to
cvents or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concem. If we conclude that a matenial uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report fo the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However. future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concem.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements. including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underdving transactions and
events in a manner that achicves fair presentation.

Matenality 15 the magnitude of misstatements i the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative matenality and qualitative factors in
(1) planming the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work. and (1) to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings. including any significant deficiencies n
mternal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those changed with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relatonships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence. and where applicable, related
safeguards,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companics (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), 1ssued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act.
2013, we give in the "Annexure A" statemient on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of
the Order. to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that;

1) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

i1) Except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opimion paragraph
above. i our opinton. proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.
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i) The company does not have any branches which has not been audited by us and so
provisions of section 143(8) arc not apphcable to the company.

iv) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash flows dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account

v} Except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opimon paragraph
above, in our opimion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under Seenion 133 of the Act read with Compamies (Indhan
Accounting Standards) Rules, 20135, as amended,;

vi) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 3 Ist March,
2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors. non¢ of the directors is disqualified as on
31st March, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act,

vii) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Roport
in *Amnexure B'. Our report expresses a qualified opinion on the adequacy and operating
gffectivencss of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

viit) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the vear ended March 31, 20235 has been
paid / provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section
197 read with Schedule V to the Act:

1x) With respect 1o the matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanation given to us:

i.  The Company docs not have any pending htigations which would impact s

financial positon;

i, The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were anyv matenal foresecable losses;

m.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protectnon Fund by the Company

v,  a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds (which are matenial cither individually or in the aggregate) have been
advanced or loaned or invested (cither from borrowed funds or share premium or
any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or
entity, including foreign entity (“Intermedianies™), with the understanding. whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entiies identified 1 any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficianies™) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficianies
b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds (which are material either individually or in the ageregate) have been
received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity
(“Funding Parties™), with the understanding. whether recorded m writing or
otherwise. that the Company shall. whether. directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Bencficiaries.
¢) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused
us to behieve that the representations under sub-clause (1) and (1) of Rule 11(¢), as
provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

v.  Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used an
accounting software for maintaining its books of account for the financial year
ended 31 March 2023 which has a feature of recording audit traul (edit log) facility
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and the same has operated throug hout the year for all relevant transactons recorded
in the software. Further, during the course of our andit and hasad on aur test checks
we did not coma across any instance of the audit trail feature beng tampered with.
Farther, the Company has a svstem which ensures that the audst trail 15 preserved
by (e Company as per e statutory reguirements for record retention.

vi.  Smee the Company hay nol declared or pad any dividend dunng the scar, the
guestion of commenting on whether dividend doclared or puad 19 m aceordines
with Sceton 125 of (he Companics Act. 2013 docs nol ansc.

For G Joseph & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Fim Reg. No. 0063108

Sd/-
UDIN; 25233256BMIIBT4819 Raphacl Sharomn
Place @ Trmakolam Partncr

Date : 26.05.2025 233286
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“"Annexure A" 10 The Independent Auditors” Report in ermg ol Section 143{11} ol The
Companies Act, 2003

ab

h}

)

d)

el

Accordmeg w the mfommabtion and cxplanabions grven Lo us and based on our cxannnation of the
records ol the Company, we note thar the Company hag not maintained a compighensive MTxd
asscl regster with complele details. mannly mlaimy w the lesaton. guanaty, and wenhficaton of
individual asscts leneo, wi arc ol the opimon that te Company has not manitaned proper
records showing full paticulars. mcluding quantitatrve details and srtuanon of the fixed assets.

The Company has mamtamed proper records showang full parnculars of intangible assets.

According w he mformaton wid explmation gven le us, Fixed Assels were nol physically
vorified by the Managemant during the year Hienee. diserepancy il any could not be Wdentified
andl deall with m the books of accouns

The tithe deeds of all the immevable properics are held in fhe name ol the Company

The Company has not revalued its Property. Planl and Equipncnt (including Right of Tse ausely)
or intangible assets or both Juring |he vear,

According tothe infomation and explanations given to us and on the hasis of our exanunation of
the records of the company. there are na proccedings initiated or are pending against the Company

for holding aory benami property under the Prohibition of Benam Propemy ITansactions Act. 1988

and roles made hervunder.

Acconding 1o the information and caplanations prinaded 10 us, the physical venfication of the
inventary 1o, the stock of traded coods, stores and sparcs has been conducted an a continuous
hasis. In our opimion and based on information and explanations siven to us. the covermge and
procedure ol such venlication by fhe management s appropriate haying regand to the sixg ol the
Company and the nature of its operations. Discrepancies noteed em such phvsical venfication have
been proporly dealt wath m 1he books of aceount.

The Company has been sanchoned working eapital linuts in gxecas of rupees [ive crares in
aggregate from banks and financial institutions during the vear on the basis of secunty of current
assors of the Company, The guarterly statements liled by the Company with such hanks and
financial instinttions are not in agreements with the books of account of the Company as detailed
bolow:

Nameg ol | Asgrezate | Quaner | Amount Amount Diffzrence | Reasons  [or
the Bank | Working | Ended | disclosed as | as per | (in lakhs) | difference

Caplal per quarterdy | books  of

Limits remarn’ accountiin

Sancliongd statement(in | lalkhs)

{inTakhs)} lakhs)
50K Bank | 330,00 Jun-24 | 216476 22TR .08 (113 32} Primarily dug
(INDIA} to  unhilled
Lamited : = _ FEVEITRG
Eggﬁe:nk 550 0 Sep-24 | 2504 8% 263469 | (3981 | recognised on
Limited FroN BRaml
SAM Pank [ S5000 | Dec2d | 282413 08804 | (263on | Les  along
(INDIA) with
Lirid restalement ol
SOM Dank | 350,00 Mar-25 | 3,278 84 5245490 | 132.94 ECOUDS 0%
(INDIA) ' ' ' per IND AS 8
Lamited
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a)  The Company has oot provided any loans or advances m the nature ol loans. stood guarantee or
provided secunty to anv other entity dunng the yvear, However, loans granted i earlier years to
ils subsidiancs, which are mlcrsst=froe m nature. conlinue o maun oulslanding ot the balance
sheot date,

b)  'These owstanding loans to subsidianes are interest-free. In ouropimion. the absence of an interest
componcit makes the werng and condibons o the outstanding loang prima laeig prejudicial to the
Company’s interest.

¢} The Company has granted Toans fo its subsidiarics with o stipulared schedule of repayvimient, As
thers were no nstalments falling due dunng the current vear, no repayments were required. and
accordinghy there were no delavs or nregulantics o be reported.

d)  According o milormation and pxplanationy given W ug and based on the audit procedurcs
performaed and, i rospeel of loans prnted by (he Company, there s no overdue amount remiuning
outstanding as af the balaneg shoct date 1.6, 2 st March 2023

£) According to information and explanations given to us and based on the audi procedures
pefomcd. ne loany sranled by the Company whach has fallen duwe dunng he v car. has boen
rengwed or extended or Ircgh Toans granted to seule the overdee of pxisting loans given 1o the
samme paricy.

N During the year, the Company has not granted any loans repayable on demand or without
specifying any terms or penod of repavment.

Bascd on the inlormation and explanations provided 1o s and our cxamination of the books ol account,
we report that during the vear. the Company has not granted any loans or provaded guarantees or
scounbes o parbcs covercd under Scetion |83 of the Compomics Act, 2003 Funber. no leans.
guarantees, secunties. or mvestments have been made during the vear to which the provisions of Saction
136 of the Act would apply.

In vur epinon and according W the mformaion md explanations yven lo us, no duposils or amownls
which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of Section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions
of the Adt and the Compamcs (Accoptance of Deposils) Bules, 2014 have boen aceepled by e
Company and hence reporting under classe 3iv) of the Order 12 not applicable to the Company,

The Central Govermment has specilicd mainteoancs of eost records under sub-scetion (1) of scetion 148
of the Act in respect of the products of the Company. We have broadly reviewed the books of account
maintansd by (he Company pursuant lo the Rules made by the Central Goveimmen! for the mantenance
of cost records and are of the opimien that. prima facie, the ywescobead accounts and records have been
made med mannlaimed. Hosvever, wé have not maede 2 detmled sxammapon of the cosl resords with o
vigw to determing whether they ang aceurate and complote

a)  ‘the Company has generallv been reaular in depositing undisputed statatory duss inchading GGoods
and Service Tax. Provident Fund, Emplovees” Stue Insurance. Income Tax, duly of Customs.
(55 and any other stamrory dues applicable to it to the appropriate authorities. No undisputad
amounts pavable m respeet of the aforesmd ducy wore oustamding as al Murch 51 2025 for a
period of more than gis monthe Tron the date they becamo pavable. except for the Following:
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{xiii)

(1)

(b}

Nume of statute Nature of Dues Gross Period to
Amauni which
{in Inkhs) | amount
relates Lo
Foplovees’ Provident Fund & Contribution 1o 322 | 22201
Miscellaneous Provisions Act Provvadent fund
1932
Emplovees’ Provident Fund & Conimbubion w 32T | 22324
Midgeelaneous Provisions Act. Provident (ind
452
Emplovess’ Provadent Fund & { ontnbution w |88 | 202925
Miscellansous Provigons Ack Provadent fomd
1452
Thi Employees' State nsuromcy Conimbubion 1o {L06 | 202324
Act, 1448 Insurance fund
The Employecs' State nguranes Cantribution o (.06 | 20r24-25
Act, 1948 Insurance fund

Rased on our audit procedures and on the basis of information and cxplanations given (o us and
on the basis of our examination of the reconds, thare are no statutory dues referred in subclause
(a} above which have nof been deposited on gecount ol disputes as on 315t March, 2023

Acconding to the infonugtion and caplanation given (o ws, the Company has nod surrendered or diselosed
any irnsenion. previoushy wnrceorded mthe bowks of account, i the lax aescssments under the Income
Tax Aet, 1961, as income during the vear, Accordingly, reporting wider ¢lavse 3(viii) of the order dogs
nat arise

il

b)

¢}

4)

)

Bascd on owur awdil procedumnes and on the: basis of mfurmanen and explanations @iven vy and
on the basis of our examination of the records, we are of the opinion that the Company hags not
defanlicd m (he repaviment of loaus or other burrowings or m e repayment of merest thaeon
to the lenders and heoee seporfing onder clause 3ixh of the Onder i2 not apphcable 1o the

Lampany.

On the basis of inlormation and eaplanations given 1 us and on the basis ol our eaantinahion ol
the recards. the Company has not been declaresd as wiltul defanlter by anv bank or financial
msittubon or cther lendor.

O the basis of inlormation and eaplanations ghven w us and on the basis ol our exanunabion ol
the records, Lema loans. 1 anv, were applied for the purpose for which (he lomns were obtlained

On an overall cxamination of the finaoeial statemsits of the Cormpany . funds mascd vn short-lcm
basis have. prima facie, not been used dunng the year for long-tem purpases by the Company.

According to the mformation and cxplanutons given o wy and on an overall examinalion of the
linancial gmtements of the Company, we report that the Company has nof taken any lunds [rom
any entity or parson on account of or to meet the ohlisations of its subsidianes as defined under
the Companies Act, 2015, Accordingly . elause 3(ix)e) of the Onder 1w not gpplicable.



xn)

{adi}

(X1}

{niv)

(xv)

fxvi)

Hersla Ayurveds LTD

£ According to the mfermation and explanations given to us and procedares parformed by ns. we
report thal the Company hay nol ratyed leany dunng tie year on e pledee of sceuntices hcld m
its subsidiaries as defined under the Compames Act, 2013, Accordinghy, clause 3(r)(f) of the
Oxder 13 nol apphcabls,

a)  The Company Tias nof raised any mongy v way of imitial poblic offer and through debt
mstruments by way of further public offer during the vear

by ‘The Company has net made any praferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
purlly conviruble debontures dunne (he vear under review

i)  Based on the audn procedures performed and the information and axplanation given to us. we
roport thal no frawd on or by the Company hay been noticed or seported dunmy the year, nor have
wi boon inlonied of such ¢ase by the manaaement,

b)  Noeporl under seelion 143¢12) of Companies Act 2003 read with rule 15 of Companics (Audit
and Audiftors) Rules, 20014 has been 1iled by the auditors with the Central Goyvemment

¢} During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, canied out in
accordance with the gencrally accepied awditing practioes w1 India, and according 1o the
mformation and explanations given to us. the Company has not recerved any whistle-blower
comphlnmiy during the vear.

The Company ig not a Nidhi Company and therclore, the proyisions ol clause 3 (xii) of the Ovder are
not apphicable to the Company.

In our opimon. the Company 15 10 comphiance wath Seotion 177 and 183 of the Compamics Acl. where
applicable. for all transacnons with the related parties and the details of related party mansactions have
buen dhsclosed m (he financial statemonts ¢le s required by the applicable sccounling stmdards.

a)  Agcording to the information and cxplanations given to ug, the company has an internal audit
systent commensurate with the size and natiure of its business.

h) We have considered the intemal audit repons of the company 1ssued dunng the period April
20124 1o March 2025, i the course of our audht

Accordmyg @ the informaton and cxplinabion given o us dunmy th voar, the Compans las not ciered
into any non-cash transactions with s dircctors or persong connected with its dircctore, Accordingly,
the reporting requirement of clause {xv} of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company

a)  The Company is not required 16 be registered under section 45-1A of the Resarve Bank of India
Acl. 1934 (2 of 193) and thercfore, the provasions of clavse 3 (xvi)ta) of the Onder is nol
applicablc o the Compans

b)  On the basis of examimation of reeords and sccording o the mformation and caplamalion given
10 us by the Company, the Company liag not conducted non-banking Moaneial / housing linance
activities dunng the vear. Accordhngly. the reporting requirement of clause xvi(h) of paragraph 3
of the Order 18 not applicable w the Company

c)  Inouropinion and according to the information and explanation grven 1o us, the Company is nat
a Cone Invesmment Company {CIC) as defimad m the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of
India. Aceardingly, the reporting reguirement ol clause wwi(e) of parggraph 3 of the Onder is not
apphicable 1o the Company.
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(avii)

{xviin)

[ain)

fxx)

LIRIN:

Place | Ernakolam

Dale

di  According to the information and explanations provided by the manasement of the Company. the
Company docs nol have mny CICs as part of the Group. We have not, however, separately
evaluated whethar the mfarmation providad to us 15 accurate and completa.

Thie Company las incurred cash losses amounting to I 740 60 lakhg i the current wear. In the
immediately preceding financial vear. the Company: had not incumed any cash losses.

During the vear, there has been no resignation of the stamtory anditors pursuant o the provisions of
Scehon 140(2) of the Compamas Act 2(H 3.

According to the nilormation and cxplavations given 1o ug and on the basiz ol the lnangial rabos, agenig
and expected dates of realization of financial assets and pavment of financial liabilities. other
mformalion accompanying he fmanaal slalcmeats, our knowledge of the Bowad of Dircetors and
management plans and hased on our examinatn of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing
hay come W our atlention, which causey us 1o believe that any matenal unerlanly oxisty as on the date
ol the awdit report that company is not capable of meeting its Liabilitics casting at the date ol balance
shicl as mnd when they fall due watun a penod of one vear from the balancs sheet dale. We, howower,
stafc that this iz not an assurance as o the lutwee viability of the company We lwither statc that our
reparting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we nesther give any puarantes nor
any assurnce thal all halmlines falling due within s penod of one vear from he balance sheet date, wall
get discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

Bascd on Lhe audit procedures perfomcd and the imformabon and cxplinalion given w us, we roporl
that the Company has no liability to maintain fund aecording to the pravisions ol seetion 135 of
Compames Act . 2013,

For G Juseph & Asyocintes
Chartercd Accountants
Fom Beg. Mo 063105

Sd/-
Raphael Sharon
Pariner

= W T1TVRE
26.05.2025 M. No: 233286
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"Annexure B" to The Independent Auditor's Report of Even Date on The Standalone Financial
Statements of Kerala Ayurveda Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Kerala Avurveda Limited (“the
Company™) as of 31st March, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the
Company for the vear ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management 1s responsible for establishing and maintaming internal financial controls
based on the intemal control over financial reporting enteria established by the Company considenng the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Interal Finaneial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India These
responsibilities include the design. implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were opemting effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company s policies. the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records. and the timely preparation of
rehiable financial information, as required under the Compamies Act, 2013,

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility 18 o express an opimon on the Company's intemal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013,
to the extent apphicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal
Financial Controls and, both issucd by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate intemal financial controls over financial reporting
was established and mamtained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaming an understanding of miemal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the sk that a matenal weakness exists, and testing and
gvaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed nsk. The
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procedures selected depend on the anditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the nisks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtamed is sufficient and appropnate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to these Fiancial
Statements

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company s internal financial controls with reference to these Financial Statements 1s a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company ‘s intemal financial controls with reference to these Financial Statements includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the mantenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
faurly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable

assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting pnnciples, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authonsations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthonsed
acquisition. use, or disposition of the company s assets that could have a matenal effect on the financial
statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent imitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of callusion or improper management overnide of controls, matenal misstatements duc to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the intemal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the nsk that the intemal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
comphance with the policies or procedures may detenorte.

Qualified opinion

Based on the information and explanations given to us and our audit, eenain arcas in the Company's
internal financial controls over financial reporting require improvement as at 31st March, 20235 In our
view, these deficiencies, individually or in aggregate, could potentially result in a material misstatement
of the financial statements if not addressed,

a.  The Company’s intemal controls over the reconciliation of statutory dues ledgers — including Goods
and Services Tax. Provident Fund. Emplovees™ State Insurance. Protessional Tax. Labour Welfare
Fund, and Tax Deducted at Source — with the corresponding records and statutory returns require
strengthening. Inadequate reconciliation in these arcas may result in inaccuracies i the amounts of
such habilities as reflected in the financial statements.

b.  The Company’'s intemnal controls over the physical venficaton of fixed assets, along with related
assel management controls and standard operating procedures, require strengtheming to be
commensurate with the size and nature of its operations.

¢ The Company’s internal controls for monitoring, recording. and reconciling related party transactions
requite strengthening. Formal standard operating procedures should be established to ensure that
such transactions arc identified, documented, and reconciled accurately, in compliance with
apphicable statutory and disclosure requirements,

A "matenial weakness’ is a deficiéncy, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal financial control over
financial reporting, such that there 1s a reasonable possibility that a matenal musstatement of the
company’s annual or ntenm financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a tmely basis.
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In our opmion considering nature of business, size of operation and organisational structure of the entity,
except for the effects/possible effects of the matenal weaknesses descnbed above on the achievement of
the objectives of the control enitenia, the Company has maintained, in all matenial respects, adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating cffectively as of March 31, 2025

We have considered the matenal weaknesses identified and reponted above in determuning the nature,
timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the 31st March, 2025 financial statements of the
Company. and these matenal weaknesses do not affect our opinion on the financial statements of the
Company, other than to the extent of the matters desenbed in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph
above in the Report on the Audit of Standalone Financial Statements.

For G Joseph & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 0063105

Sd/-
Raphael Sh
UDIN; 25233286BMIIBT4819 aph aromn

Place ' Emakulam Partner
Date : 26.05.2025 M. No:233286
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_— As at March 31, As at April 01
Particulars Note 025 024 2023
(¥ i lakhs)
L ASSETS
(1) NON-CURRENT ASSETS
{a) Property. plant and equipment 4 221993 1.883.13 1,880,582
(h) Right of use assets 5 128,18 | 7.4 213.64
(e} Capatal work-in-progress ] Qi34 - -
() Intangible a=sels T T97.20 72573 T72.44
{e) Intangible ussets under development 8 - - -
{1} Financial assets
(i) Investments 1) 912,97 G213 .63 91317
{ii} Loans 1M1} - 2,706.74 2.517.719
(1) hher financial assets 111} 173.30 17266 16138
(o) Deferred tax assets (net) 12 510082 50926 473.00
{h) Income tax assets (net) 13 | 8. 0499 T.33
(1) Other non-ourrent asscts [ &1} a7 047 SLINN]
Total non-current assetls 4.861.70 T143.54 6,989.58
(2) CURRENT ASSETS
{a) Inventorics 15 L0218 QRK.72 Gdd .33
ik} Financial assels
(1) Trade receivables 16 2313.73 L4801 1,055.29
(i Cash and cush equivalents 17 6,14 16459 24 173 88
(1) Loans Likit) 3,009 85 - -
(v ) Oiher financtal asscts LI{ii) 159,54 17800 121.71
() her current assets L4{1i) Blo.l6 18208 K538
() Assels classified as held for sale 1% (LR - -
Total current assets TAO2T.20 4.478.95 2,080.59
TOTAL 11.888.940 11.622.49 9,070,17
. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1 EQUITY
() Equity share capital 19 1,203,235 1.203.25 1,055.57
{h) Other equity 20 13047 2.074.30 (373.01)
Tutal equity 251272 3.277.55 481.66
LIABILITIES
(2) NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
{a) Financial liabilitics
(i) Borrowings 214i) HO0.OU R00.00 1,799.79
{ii} Lease liabilitics 22{1) 111.5% 145,00 17841
{i11) Ciher financial habilites 2301} 16,73 36,36 3450
i) Provisions 240 517.34 469,29 42947
Total non-current Habilities 1,245.68 1, 470.85 344207



i3} CURRENT LIABILITIES
{a) Financial liabalines
(i) Borrowings
{il} Leasge liabilities
(ili) Trade payables
A) Total putstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises

B total outstanding dues of creditors
other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises.

{u1) Ovher financial Labilitics
{h) Provisions
(o) Cther ourrent liabilities
Total current liabilithes

TOTAL

Material acconnting policy information

2

Hersa Ayurveds LTD

2100y
22010

23(ii)
24ii)
26

481104 5,379.10 356834
3141 3341 3746
3522 [10.51 R

487,95 S10.17 497.29
935,33 208.92 248,04
134,35 141,40 132,61
L6932 470.58 57164
813050 6,874.09 5.146.34
11.888.90 11.622.49 9.070.17

The accompanying Notes form an integral part of the financial statements

Per our report attached

For €z, Joseph & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Begn, No, D3NS

Raphacl Sharon
Partner

M.No. 233286

[ate: 2oth May 2023
Place: Athuni

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
of Kerala Avorveda Limited

Sd/-

D Anil Kumar

[hrector

DIN: (226353

Sd/-
Vivek Sundar
CEC

Sd/-

KT George
CFC

Sdi-
Utkarsh Singh
hrector

1IN 9244596

Sd/-
Privanka Gangwar
Company Secretary
Mem No. - FI12378
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KERALA AYURVEDA LIMITED

1CEN

L2423 L 2 PLOO0GEI2)

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

Year ended March 31

Particulars Mol
' 2025 2024
{4 am Jakhs)
INCOME
T Revepue from operations 27 T. 268,92 0,803,63
I Cher nooime 24 517.13 066
I Tedal income (1 + 1} T.786.05 710431
EXPENSES
Cugl of materials conswmed 22 1,857 99 20304
Purchase of gslock-in-trade £l a2 2Rk A6
Changes i myventories of fnshed goods and stock-in-trade 31 {2913 {33186
Ermmplioyes benefits expense iz 3.551.57 202331
Finanee costs 33 3|.5% 539.75
Dreprecistion and amortisstion expense 34 21507 15745
(Other expenses a5 285220 243256
[V Total expenses PI34.18 7.120.99
—— ———
Y Profit! (lessh before exceptional items and tox (111-1V} 11.345.13) [ Eirtaid)
Wl Exceptional items -
VI Profit! (lossp before tax (V- V1) (134813} R ]
W Tax expenss 33
(i} Current tax
= Related to current vear 6,27
- Belated to prior yeors 27459 -
{1y Deferred tax |83 (2%,27)
X Profit! ilossh for the yvear after tax (VII-VILG :lnﬁ-TT,‘!HI 5&
X OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
A e thant will et b veclussified fo profis or loss
Remeasurement g/ { foss) on defined benetin plan {13110} (3244
i) fncvnee tax relaving to dtewns the aboee 14] LR
TOTAL OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 19,70} {24, 44}
Xl TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD (IX+X) {1.3E7.68) (14.12)
X1l Earnings per equity share: T
Basic and diluted EPS (11.45) [LE
Momenal valee of cquity shnrce () 1000 (XN

Material accounting palicy information

[

The accomponying Nates form an integral part of the financial statements

Per our report attached to Balance Shect

For €. Joseph & Associates
Charered Accountants
Firm Regn, Mo, U0ni 108

Raphacl Sharon
Firm Regn. No, 0063 105

[Date: 26th May 2025
Place: Athani

S d.l'r'

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

of Kerala Ayurveda Limited

Irr. Anil Kumar

Drecior

EHM: Dii226353

Sd/-

Sdi-

Vivek Sunidar KT Gedrge

CEQ

CFO

==
Utkarsh Singh
Direcior

DM Siddann

Sd/-
Privanka Guugwar
Company Secretary
Mem Mo, - FI2378



KERALA AYURVEDA LIMITED
(CIN: L24233KLI992PLCINGE92)

Hersa Ayurveds LTD

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

Particulars

Year ended March 31,

2025 2024

A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net profit/ (luss) before tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss

Adjustments for;

Depreciation and amortisation expenses

Fair value adjustments

Exchange differences

Finance costs

Interest income and other non-cash income

ESOP expense

Allowance for expected eredit loss

Provision for gratuity, leave encashment and bonus
Operating profMt before working capital changes
Adinsiments for {increasel decrease in operating asses
Invenlories

Trade receivables

Orher financial assets

Other assets

Adiustments for merease) (docrease) in operating Nabilfities
Trade payables

Other financial liabalities

Other current liabilities

Provisions

Cash generated from operations

Income tax

MNet cash flow from operating activities

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchiase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assels
Acquisition of investments

Increase! {decrease) in loin 1o subsidianies

Interest income and other non-cash income

Proceeds on sale of property, plant and equipment

MNet cash used in investing activities

(% in dakist

(1.348.13) ( 16.6%)
215.07 15743
.68 {1.4%8)
(185.85) (14.36)
391.59 539,75
(331.96) (284.87)
622 84 .
174,94 139,62
T8.26 67.27
{3X2.51) 586.73
(32.96) (344.39)
(R28.87) {471.76)
159,19 (66, 15)
(433.15) {37.46)
(97.51) 22.530
aRG.al (17.11)
1.222.62 (10106}
{(70.37) {(31.10
223.m (479.80)
4.51 (49,73}
217.51 {529.53)
(6R1.92) (70.45)
(000 {000y

- 0,00

3344 16,42
.87 i1
(647.56) (53.87)
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C  CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Interest paid

Increase/{decrease) in borrowing
Proceeds from issue of equity shares
Increase/{decrease) in lease liabilities
Net eash used in financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Opening balance of cash and cash equivalents
Closing balance of cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises of
a) Balance with banks
I curtent account
Dreposits with maturity of less than 3 months
) Cheques, drafls on hand
¢) Cash on hand

MNotes are an integral part of the financial statements

{247.35) {404.93)
{912.30) (323 86)
- 2.815.01

(33.4]1) (2744
{1.193.06) 2058, Th
(1.613.11) 1.475.37
1,649,25 173.8%
36.14 1,649.25
29,54 242.18

¥ 1.400.00

f.60) 7.06
36.14 1.649.24

Per our report attached to Balance Sheet

For G. Joseph & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firmi Regn. No. D063 105

Sd/-
Raphael Sharon Dr. Anil Kumar
Partner Diirector
M.No. 233286 DIN: D0226353

Sdf-
Vivek Sundar
Date: 2oth May 2025 CEQ
Place: Athani

For and on behall of Board of Directors
of Kerala Avarveda Limited

Sdi-
KT George
CFO

Sd/-
Utkarsh Singh
[Dhrector

DIN: 9244896

Sdi-
Privanka Gangwar
Company Secretary
Mem Nao. - FI2378



KERALA AYURVEDA LIMITED
(CIN: L24233KL1992PL 06592

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

AL EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Hersa Ayurveds LTD

i i fakfis)

ST,

[_Financial Stenemants |

Balance as at April 1,| Changes in equity share| Balance as at Murch 31,
2024 capital during the year 2025
[ . M13.25 - 1,203.25
1,203.25 - 1,203.25
Balance as at April 1.| Changes in eguity share| Balance as at March 31,
2023| capital during the year 024
1,055,57 147 GR 1,203,25
1 155.57 147.68 1,203.25
B. OTHER EQUITY (& i fakiis)
Reserves and Surplos
e Total other
Particulars Securities: | Capital Guneral based Hetained ohilti
premium | oreserve TESETVE payment | earnings i
TESErVE
Baolanee as at April 1. 2024 381248 4542 17.9% - (R4L.44)) 303444
Adjustments for prior period items - - - - {9ad,14) [ELNEY
Restated balance as at April 1, 2024 381248 45.42 17.0% - (1LR01.58)  2.074.30
Premium on msue of equity shares
Profit o {loss) for the year - - - (137708} (1.377.9%)
ESOP granted durimg the vear - 1254 - 62284
Romessurement gain! (loss) on detfimed benefit pluns - - - - {8,710 {9,707
Balance as at March 31, 2025 3.812.4% 45,42 17.9% 62284 {3, 189.24) 1,30% 46
Reserves and Surplus
Share
. Total otk
P'articulars Seeurities | Capital General based Retained “ﬂn “?h.mr
premivm | reserve reserve paymentl | earnings 2
TESErve
Balanee as at April 1, 2023 1.145.15 4541 17.9% - (B10.85) 397.70
Adjustments for prior peried items - - - - {971.61) 1971.61)
Restated balance as at April 1, 2023 1,145.15 4542 17.08 - {1,782 .46} (573913
Premium on issue of equity shires 266733 = = = . 2.667.33
Profit or {loss) for the year - - - - 532 532
Remeasurement gam! (loss ) on defimed benefit plans - - - - {34.44) (24 44)
Balance as at MMarch 31, 2024 351248 4541 17.9% B {1 B300.58) 207430
Motes are an integral part of the financial statements
Per our report attached to Balance Sheet
For G. Joseph & Associates For and on behalf of Board of Divectors
Chartered Accountants of Kerals Avorveds Limited
Firm Regn. No. 0063105
Sd/- Sd-
Raphael Sharon Dir. Anil Kumar Utkarsh Singh
Partnier [¥irector [irector

LN, 233286

Date: 26th May 2025
Place: Athanmi

DIN: Q0226353

Sd/-
Vivek Sundar
{ED

Sd/-

KT George

CFO

DN 9244596

Sd/-

Privanka Gangwar
Comipany Secrefary
Mem No. - F1Z378
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Particulars

As at March 31,

2025 2024

INVESTMENTS

(i) Mon-current

fevestment in subsidiaries - meastaved af cost

16,6500 equity shares of 210 ¢ach in Avorvedagram Heritage Wellness Centre Pt Lid
100 Common stock of no par value in Nuatraveda Ine{formerly known a5 Ayudng)

100 Common stock of no par value m Ayu Natural Medicmes Chnic PS5, USA

10 Common stock of no par value in Avurvedie Academy Ine., USA

817 Common stock of USD | par value in CMS Katra Holdimgs LLC, USA

6,201 Shares of face value | Sing § in Nutravada Pte Lud, Singzpore

Less: Allowance for impairment loss on subsidiaries

ther investmenis - quoted investments - measared at FVTPL
2500 eqguity shares of 22 each fully paid up in Canara Bank Ltd.

Chther investmenis - urigieadfed investmenis - imeavired af cost
14 Equity Shares of ¥10,004 each in Confederation for Ayurvedic Renaisance Keralam Pyi Lid

LOANS

i} Non-current
Unsecared, Considered good
Loan to subsidiares (net of credit loss allowance)

i) Current
Loan 1o subsidianes

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
i) Mon-current
Term deposits with banks
Security deposits

i) Current
Security deposits
Other advances
Interest recervable
Others

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (NET)
Deferred tx assets
Deferred tax liahilities

% In Lakhs)

54287 642,87
0.06 0.06
215.16 215.16
272.43 27243
0.35 0.35
282 2.82
(215.57) (215.57)
223 2.90
2.63 263
922.97 923.65
: 2,706.74
- 2,706.74

300985

300085 -
- 16.75
I 73.30 155.91
173.30 172.66
(.50 =
5.15 18.01
- 55,28
1 3.84% 104,71
19.54 178.00
S5R39 590,42
(74.56) (#1.16)

S1HL82 504,26




Hersa Ayurveds LTD

{A) The balance of deferred tax assets comprises temporary differences attributable to:

ST,

Recognised

. Agat 01 Recopnised As ai 31
I April, 2024 | 11 PEE:: “T1 inOCI | March 2025
PPE and intangible assets 7224 (144.38) (72.13)
Right of Use Assets (44.44) 11.11 = (33.33)
Instruments at FVTPL ((h68) nis - (0.50)
Security deposits 1,70 (0.36) - L35
Inventories w04 (540 - -
Prowision for gratuity 135.04 17.61 34 15600
Lease liability 46,39 (19.14) . 2725
Carried fordwarded losses and unaborbed depreciation . - - -
MAT credit entitlement (RIREE] 49 4| - 230,74
ESOP to employees - 161.94 161.94
Trade receivables -ECL 34,04 .41 - 19.45
Deferred Tax Assets (net) 509,20 {1.85) 341 510.82
— As at 01 :‘;:f;i*;f Recopnised | As at 31
April, 2023 Lo in OCI Murch 2024
PPE and intanpible assets 6209 10.15 1224
Right of Use Assets (55.55) 111 - (44.44)
Instruments at FVTPL (01,301 (0.3 - (U.6%)
Security deposits .02 i0.32) 1.70
Inventories B4 04 - - 5404
FProvision for gratuiy 12961 (2.57) #.00 13504
Lease Hability 53.53 (T.14) . 4639
Carried fordwarded losses and unaborbed depreciation - - - -
MAT eredin entitlement 174,066 027 - | 80,43
Trade receivahles- ECL 22.90 i114 31404
Deferred Tax Assets (net) 47300 28.27 R0 09,26
(B} Reconcilation of tax expense and the accounting profit mmultiplied by domestic tax rate applicable in india
Sr. Mo, Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
(A Profit/{loss} Before Tax {1,348,13) [ 16.68)
B} Indian Statutory Corporate Tax Rate 26% 204
{Cy Tax on accounting profit (350.51) {4.34)
Dy Tax on expense nol tax deductible - .94
Tax effect on non-taxable income - (1.63)
Tax related to earlier periods 27,99 -
Tax effect on various other items 3152.36 {1 7.0
i E) Tax Expense recognised during the year 20,84 (22010
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As at March 31,
25 24
o dn Lakhs)

Particulars

13 INCOME TAX ASSETS (NET)

Advance tax and tax deducted: collected at source [ &49 i7.26
Less: Curront tax habifities - {627
Met current tax assets/ (liabilities) 18.49 50.99

14 OTHER ASSETS
i) Non-current

Cosidered good
Sales tax deposits 047 .47
047 .47
i) Current
Considered pood
Prepaid expenses 874 1582
Advance for purchases 305.16 912
Advance 1 employees 2022 16.03
GST input tax oredin receivahle | 48,55 33,01
Other Advances L1005 -
Other courent assels RENTH 13,61
616,16 182.95
15 INVENTORIES
Fimished Goods 367,22 2897
Gioixds in transil - 4.01
Furnace 0il 300 0,91
Packing Matenal 0.2l B3.71
Faw Material 11780 11743
Stores & Spares 095 2.07
Waork in Progress 246.50 25].62
1.021.68 088,72
16 TRADE RECEIVABLES
i) Current
Unsecured, Considered good
Trade recetvables 2.465.51 L1093
Less: Allowanee for doubtful trade receivables (151.7%) (130,92)

2.313.73 1.480.01




(ii) Trade Receivable Ageing Schedule (from the doe date of payment):

Harsla Ayunveds LTD

(¥ I Lakhs)

Particulurs

Less than
& Months

1 -2 Year

More than
3 Years

Total

As at 31xt March, 2025
Comstdered God
Sigmnificant increase in
credit sk
Constdered Doubitul

Disputed:

Considered Good
Siginificant mcrease m
credin risk

Considered Doubtful

1.651.54
0.28
1.53

4495
4,76

25.17

RTRT

R

1.313.73
13.65
138.1%

=

Gross Carrving Amount

1,653.35

TO.4%

254.97

2.465.51

Loss Allvwance

1.81

2093

a9.491

151.78

Woeighted Average Loss
Rate (in %)

01 1%%

42.23%,

26.89%

f.16%

As at March 31, 2024
Undisputed:
Considered Good
Siginificant increase in
credil risk
Constdered Doubiful
Disputed:
Considered God
Sipmificant increase m
credn risk
Considered Poubttul

108936
146
Bl

13617
379
T1.69

57.14

[9.83

1,4%0.01
735
123.57

Coross Carrving Amount

1,099,9%

211.95

T6.97

1.610.93

Loss Allowance

.62

73,78

19.83

130.92

Woeighted Average Loss
Rate (in %)

1%%

3650

26%

£

Notes:

I, As ar 31 March 2025, the Company's trade recetvables include dues from ils subsidisries smounting 1o 3 1,057.23 lakhs, which
constitute o substantial portion of the total receivables. A major portion of these receivables has been cutstanding for u persod longer than
one vear. The delavs in collection are primanily due (o temporary cash flow constraints within the subsidiarics, and that the amounts are
fully recoverable. Consequently, no provision for expected credit loss has been recognized in the financial statements for these receivahles,

2. The Company does not charge interest on wade receivables,
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Ax al March 21,
Particulars
2015 024
{ii) Allowance for doubiful debis {2 i Lakhs)
Opening balance | 300,92 R0
Add: Allowance durimg the vear 2LEO 4286
Closing halance 151.74% 130092
17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Balance with banks
[n current account 29.54 24718
[Peposits with moturity of less than 3 months - 140000
Cash on land [iReL] 706

15 ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE
Lanid classificd as held for sale

36.14 1.649.24

LR -

10,10 =




Karsla Ayurveds LTD r Corporete Ovariew J [ Financlol statemants |
et it el e re =i e e il

As at March 31,
225 2024
(% i fakhs)

Particulars

19 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised Capital
1L50.00.000 (Previous wear © 150000000} equity shares of 10~ cach | 500,00 I 50000
Total 1,501, 00 1,50Hh.0b

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up

[,20,32.451 {Previous year ; [,20,32,451) equity shares of T1/- cach 1.203.25 1.203.25
tully paid-up
Total 1,203.25 1,203,215

a)  Reeonciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting

period.
Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Number of g Nuamber of 3
Fguity Shares shares Cin Jakdis shares Ein-tnkhs

At the beginning of the year 12032451 | 20325 | 15,55.670 1.055.57
Tssued during the year - - 14,76, 781 147,68
At the end of the year 1,20.32.451 L0325 1,20,32.45] 1,203,215

b} The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of 210/ per share. Each holder of equity
shares is entitled to one vote per share. The company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. No dividend
has been proposed in the current vear, In the event of liguidstion of the Company, the holders of equity shares
will be entitled 10 recerve remaining pssets of the Company afler distribution ol all preferential amounts: The
distribution will be in propoction fo the number of equity shares held by the shareholders,

¢) Shares held by holding company and its subsidiaries and associates

As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 224
Number of Number of
o T in lakhs T in lakhs
Equity Shares shares shares
Holding Company
Katra Holdings Lid, the holding company 6 93 435 53.97% 4,93 435 33.07%
04,923,435 53.97% 64,923,435 53.97%
d) Details of sharehelders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
As at
March 31, 2028 March 31, 2024
A Numbaer of Number of
i T in lakhs T in lakhs
shares sharis
Katra Holdings Lid. the holding company 64,93 435 5397 (4,93 435 53.97%
Porinju Velivath G235 000 5.18% 6. 23.000 5.18%
6493435 53,977, 64,93,435 53.97%
ej  Dischosure of Sharcholding of Promoters
As at 3lst March, 2025
Mo of Shures at Chanze durin Mo of Shires at v of Total % change
5o Promater name the heginning of £ £ the end of the i during the
! the year shares
the year ! YeRr vear
I K Holdings Lud 54,943,435 . pdUIARE SRNT I
2 buatea Phyvtoschenm (Endiin) Privids 555004 - 555000 E X (1%
Ltd
TiAR,435 - TihABAIS S4.58% -
Ax at 31st March. 2024
Mo of Shares at 2 . Mo of Shires at , % changze
=0 Promoter name the beginning of Chaage during the end of the - ,“f Roal during the
the year Shares
the yenr ! YeRe vear
1 Eatra Holdings Lol T R R . fd 3455 53.9T7% 1%
2 Kaatra Phytowhen (India) Private 555,000 . 5,55 00 4.61% [
Ltd

T ANA435 - Tir 48,435 SHAREY -
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Particul As at March 31,
artiicupiars 2025 2024
(% fn Lakhsd
2 OTHER EQUITY
Securities Premiun
Opening balance JAal2A8 1.145.15
Change during the year - 2,667.33
Closing balange JH12.48 3.812.48
Capital Reserve
Opening halance 4542 4542
Change during the vear - -
Closing balance 45.42 45.42
General Reserve
Opening balance 1798 17.98
Chunge during the vear - -
Closing balance 17.98 17.98
Share Based Pavment Reserve
Opening balunce - -
Change during the year 622.86 -
Closing balance 621.86 -
Retained Earnings
Opening balance (841 44y (B10.85)
Correction of prior peried errors as per Ind AS 8 (960, 15) (971.61)
Profit! Loss Tor the year (1.377.98) 5.52
Remeasurement gain/loss) on detined benefit obligations (9,70 {2444
{3.189.27) (1.801.58)
1,309.47 2.074.30
21 BORROWINGS
i) Non- current
Secured
Term loan from banks SV NREN] B0
G000 B0ML00




Hersa Ayurveds LTD

23

i) Current
Secured - Repayable on demand

Working capital demand loan 53579 B09.56
Unvecured- Repayabie on demand
Loan amount payahle o related parties 4,075,125 4.369.03
Current maturities of long-term borrowings 200,400 LS
4.311.04 5,379.10
Secured Long Term Burruwings (¥ In Lakhis)
Namie of Lstder Nature of Security Rate of Monthly Mo of

Inlerest [nstalliments Installment

SBM BANK (INDIA) 2nd charge on all cwrrent assets and 2nd

0.25%
LIMITED charge on mortgage on land ] o

Working Capital Loan

The Company has filed guarterly returns or statements with the banks relating to the sanctioned working capital
facilities,which are in agreement with the books of account other than these as set out below (in 2):

Amount as per

A e ki imcloged as . .
EEreare wur o Quarter omolmt difclgied a\. bopoks of Butterence Reasons for
Nume of the bank capital limits per quarterly return/ : . :
i Ended i ; accountiim {1 lakhs) difference
sanctioned (in lakhs) statement{in lakhs) fakhs)
5
ﬁiﬁli?ﬁl‘:ﬂ'ﬂ‘n 550,00 Jun-24 2. 164,76 2,278.08 (1332} Primarily due o
unbilled revenus
SBM BANK : coenised
550.00 Sep-24 2,594 88 2,634 59 {39,8]) recogmsedon
{INDIA) LIMITED provisional basis
SBM BANEK ) #long with
5 s
INDIA) LIMITED 350.00 Dee-24 2,824.13 L08R (26391} N
SEM BANK BECOUNTS 28 per
{INDIA} LIMITED 550.00 Mar-25 337884 324590 132,04 ND AS R
LEASE LIABILITIES
(i) Non-current
Lease habilines 111.59 145,00
111.59 145.00
(i) Corrent
Lease liabilines 3141 33141
{Refer Nojewdd) 3341 3341
OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
i) Non-current
Security Deposit 7.00 13.00
Rent Deposit 9.75 43.56

16.75 56.56
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i) Current
Payables o emplovees 116.53 147.21
Rent payable 19,34 18,50
Other expenses payvable 127.05 33094
Deposit for franchisee from custoniers 27374 -
Dieposit for project health services 400,00 :
Oithers 465 527
935.33 208.92
24 PROVISIONS
i) Non-current
Towards Gratuity 517.34 464929
517.34 469.29
it} Current
Towards Bonus 5147 54,88
Towurds Compensated absences 16.64
Towards Gratuity B8R BY.BR
134.35 161.40
25 TRADE PAYABLES
i) Current
Towards micre, small and medium enterprises 35.22 11051
Towards others 487,95 310.17
513.17 6268
Trade Payable Ageing Schedule (from the due date of payment):
Particulars Eer than 1-2 years 23 More than 3 vears Unbilled Not due Total
I vear YEars i
As at March 31, 2025
Disputed:
MSME - - - - - - -
Oithers - - - - - - -
Others:
MSME 3522 - - . - - 35.22
Ohthers 45754 1.01 - G 5 - 4R7.G5
523.16 .01 = A = - 523.17
As at March 31, 2024
Disputed:
WSME = - - - = - =
Others - - - - - - -
Others:
MSME L1121 - - - - - 111.21
Orthers 440.27 19,18 5.61 44.41 - - S09.47
551.48 19.18 541 44.41 = - 620,68
4 As at March 31,
Particulars 3025 2024
26 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Fayables tewards statutory dues and others Ri).E0 9.89
Advance [rom custemers THE.40 370,69
Adbvance receved for land held for sale 814,00 -

1,693.20 470,58
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Hersa Ayurveds LTD

PARTICULARS

For the year ended March 31,

2015 2024

REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Sale of products
Sple of gervices
Orher operating Income
Less ; Indirect taxes

OTHER INCOME
Interest income
- From bank deposits
- Others
Exchange gain on restatement (net)
Giain on financial instrument measured at FVTPL

COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED
A. Raw materials

Opening stock of materials

Add:- Purchases

Lessi- Clostng stock of materials

fA)
B. Packing materials
Cipening stock of materials
Add:- Purchases
Less:- Closing stock of materials
fR)

Cost of Materials Consumed (A) + (B)

PURCHASE OF STOCK-IN-TRADE
Purchases of medicines

CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED
GOODS AND STOCK- IN- TRADE

Inventories af the end of the vear:

Finished goods
Work-in-progress

Inventories at the beginning of the vear:
Finished goods
Work-im-progress

Net (increase) [ decrease in stock

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
Salaries and wages (Refer Note#42(11)
Contribution to provident and other statutory fund
Stafl welfare expenses
ESOP benefit expenses (Refer Notef42(2))

FINANCE COSTS
Interest on bormowings
Interest on lease habilites
Other borrowing costs

(% in Lakhs)

6,501.71 612548
1,2§2.51 [, 15862
BOLHS -
(526,15) {510.45)
7.268.92 h. 803.65
33,44 [6.42
298,47 2oRk.40
185,85 14.36

(0,68} 1.48
517.13 30.66
117.43 675.37

1,509.17 1.677.33
(117.80) (117.43)
150580 | 625.27

83,71 119,11
351.69 36957
(86.21) (83.71)
349149 404,97

1.857.99 2.030.24
294 849 206%.56
294,89 269.50
F67.22 532.97
246,50 251.62
B13.72 T84.59
532.97 249 20
251.62 203.53
TH4.59 452.73
(29.13) {331.86)

242415 1.683.41
[19.940 5021
38446 250.4%9
022 R6 £

3.,551.57 2.023.31
22856 K268

| 8,79 22.26
14424 [34.81

391.59 539.75
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For the vear ended March 31,

PARTICULARS
2025 2024
iZ in Lakhs)
34 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE
On property, plant and equipment 117.39 7,99
On right of use pssets 42.73 42,74
On intangible assels 54.95 46.71
215.07 15743
35 OTHER EXPENSES
Power and fuel 13326 155.22
Electricity expenses 37,53 56,62
Repairs and mainlenance- buildings .04 4.91
Repuirs and mainlenance- machinery - 2111
Repairs and maintenance- others 48,86 29.24
Job work costs 134.54 283.37
Cther manufacturing expenses 9322 47.16
Insurance 1.36 1{r.39
Rates and taxes 15.21 12.13
Bent expenses 349 .98 258.72
Travelling and conveyance 57.76 T6.67
Printing and stationery 26,04 2845
Postage and telephone B30 14,51
Secretarial expenses 23.17 72.52
Administrative expenses 35.73 157.55
Allowance for expected credit loss on subsidiary loan 154.16 96.77
Freight expenses 1%].1% 145958
Legal and Professional charges G027 T5.46
Payment to auditors (Refer Note#35) 1.50 .00
Treatment expenses 15543 141.73
Director's sitting fiees 7.74 11.50
Research and development expenses 12.58 1525
Advertisement and sales promotion expenscs 839.39 153.40
Travelling expenses of sales staff 22842 206.22
Commission and discount - 40.20
Other selling and distribution cost 120.91 2593
Miscellaneous expenses 100440 .57
2,852.20 2,432,560
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Notes forming part of the financial statements For the year ended 31 March, 2025

Note 36: Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

Contingent Liabilities
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt
Income Tax Matters (Refer Notes (1) to (iv) below)
Customs Duty (Refer note {v) below)
Commercial Matters

Bank Guarantee

Commitments

{a) Capital commitments (Total value)
Less: Capital advance
Taotal

(bICther commitments

Note 37: Earnings per share

Basic - Earning per share has been computed as under:
Profit/{loss) for the year attributable o the owners of the company
Weighted average number of equity shares sutstanding during the year!
period

Face value per share

Earnings per share - Basie

Diluted - Earning per share has been computed as under;
Profit/(loss) tor the year attributable to the owners of the company
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year!
period

Face value per share

Earnings per share - Diluted

Note 38: Remuneration paid to auditors

Payments to the auditors comprises (net of service tax input credit, where

applicable):

As audiors - Statutory audit & Tax Audit
For company law matters

For management services

Reimbursement of expenses

Total

T in s

As at 31 March, 2025 As at 31 March, 2024

As at 31 March, 2025 As oat 31 March, 2024

For the year ended 31 For the vear ended 31

March, 2025 March, 2024

(1,377.98) 3.32

120,32 TR 10

100D 10,00

(11.45) 0.05

(1.377.98) 3.32

12545 108100

1{kiHD 10,00

(10.98) 005

For the year ended 31
March, 2024

For the year ended 31
March, 2025

.50 4.30

T.50 5.05




kerala |

> ayurvida

KERALA AYURVEDA LIMITED

Notes forming part of the financial statements For the year ended 31 March, 2025

Mote 39: Related party disclosurds

() Names of related partics and nature of relationship®:

([} Parent Company:

{11} Subsidiorees:

(T Feey Management Personnel and their relatives

(I} Enterprises in which KMP or their relatives are having

control or sgnificant influence;

Katra Holdings Lud

Avurvedagrain Hetitape Wellness Center P Lid
Avurvedio Academy Inc, [TSA
Suveds Inc (Nutraveda Inep, USA

D, K. Anilkumar { Whole-time Director)
Mir, Wivek Sunder (Chief Executive Officen)
Mr. Gieorge k. T, (Chicf Financial Officer)
Mrs. Ivotht Gulecha (Company Secretary)

All Season Herbs Pyt Lid
Aarshaveda Wellness Private Limited
KAKE Foundation

Katra Phytochem India Pyt Led

Katra Holding Pyt Lud

Mason & Summers Leisure Pyt Lid

Related partics have been identified Iy the management and relied upon by the aiditors.

*Related partics with whom the company has transactions durmg the penod

{b) Transactions with related parties:

Sale of goods or services
- Sovurvedagram Hertage Wellness Center P Lid
« Suveda Inc (Nutraveda Incy, USA
- Anrshoveds Wellness Private Limited

- KARE Foundation

Purchase of poods or services
« All Season Herbs Pyt Lid
- Ayurvedagram Heritage Wellness Center P Lid
- Katra Phytochem Tndea Pve [ad
- Muason & Summers Leisure Pyt Lid

Services given or availed
» Aourvedic Academy Ing, USA

Advance given
< Avurvedagram Heniege Wellness Center P Lid
- Suwveda Inc (Nutraveda Inc), USA

- Aourvedic Academy Ine, LiSA

Zin lacs

For the vear ended 31 For the vear ended 31

March, 2025 March, 2024
22525 T4
9118 101,23
1.7
.24 039
665 1044
| 74846 -
2x1.23 1158
T1.57
445,10 -
- 23
L
[ 5430 a2



Advance repaid
- Ayurvedagram Heritage Wellness Center P Lid

Borrowings availed
- Katra Holding Pyvr Ltd

- Katra Phytochem India Pvt Lid
- Ayarvedapram Heritage Wellness Center P Lud

Borrawings repaid
- Katra Holding Pvt Lid

Interest paid
- Katra Holding vt Ltd
- Katra Phytochem India Pyt Lid

Issue ol shares
- Katra Phyvtochem India Pyt Lid

{ch Closing Balances :

Trade receivables
- Ayurvedagram Hertage Wellness Center P Lid
- suveds Inc (Nulraveda Incp, USA
- Aarshavedn Wellness Private Limited
= Ayurvedic Academy Inc, LTSA

Trade payables
= All Beason Herbs Pyt Lid
- Katru Phytochem Incio Pyt Lid

Advance Given
- Avorvedic Acwdemy Ine, [ISA

Loan reccivables
- Buvedn Inc (Nutraveda loc), USA
= Ayurvedic Acedemy Inc, LISA
- CMS Katra Holdings LLC, T7SA
- Mutraveda Pre Ltd, Singapore

Borrowings
- Katra Holding Pyt Lid
- Katra Phyviochent India Pyt Lid

 Aurveds LTD

Carporeie OvErdsw I

454,20

100,00
[ 50,411
H{HLHD

§3.49

{_F_mnrl-:lul Sttemants

310171

115.75
LERRH

33.50

B5.19

fxted 1

Tin lacs

As at 31 March, 2025 As ai 31 March, 2024

453,30
.55
601,54

[ 84,50

201226
9R7.59
1,530.03
{hLa4

295400
L099 T

285.57
1.14
12672

(22

LA

L101.1%
620,33
17446

41

303900
1,325.00
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{d) Remuneration to Kev Managemeni Personnel 106,53 T6HA4%
2 in lacs
For the year ended 31 For ihe year ended 31
Particulars March, 2025 March, 2024
{a} Short-lerm emplovee benefits 106,53 24.99

() Post-emploviment benefits
{o} Termination benefits 5 z

(d) Other long-term emploves benetits - =
iel Share based pryments - -
Tutal 10653 2499

Mote 4l Segment Reporting

Operabng segments ane feported 0o manner consistent with the mternal seporting provided o the Chael Opetating Decizion Maker
(N

The board of ditectors of the Company has bees identified as CODM, CODM evaluates the Company’s pecformance, allocates resourees
hased on analysis of vanous performance indicotors of the segments s disclosed helow and takes sirategic decisionsOperating segments
gre repotted ina manner cotsstent with the mternal reponting provided 1o the chiel operating decizion-maker, (CODN).

Primary segment;

Operuting segments are defined as components of an enterprise for which diserete finuncial information s evailuble that s evalusted
regularly by the cluel operating declision maker, in deciding how to allocate resources and sssessing performance. The Company hos only
one reportable business sepment e, Full-spectrum Ayorvedio wellness’,

Secondary segments (By geegraphy):

fin lacs

Particulars For the vear ended 31 March, 2025
Brormestic Drutside Total
Revenue from location of customers 7. 104, %4 | fred, (8 7.26%.97
Carrving amount of segment pon-current asseis * 125461 - F25401
Zim lacs

Particulars For the vesr ended 31 March, 2024
Bomestic Outxide Totzl
Revenue from lecation of customers G.670.43 12720 6, 803,63
Carrying amount of sepment pon-current gsses ® 78024 - 2.7R0:24

Mo single customer contributes more thun 10% or more of the Company's total revenoe for the year ended March 31 2025 and 31 March,
2024,

* Mon-curment asscts exclude financial assels ond deferved tax assets.
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KERALA AYURVEDA LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial stastements For the year ended 31 March, 2025

MNute 41: Financial Risk Management and Capital Management

The Companys financial risk mansgement ts-on mtegrl part of how o plin and execwte 15 business strategy. The Company's financial sk
renagerrien! policy is set by the Board, The Company”s business sctivitics expose it o a variety of fmancial risks, nnmely liquidity msk, market risks
andt credit Tk, The key nsks and mitigating actions are also placed before the Board of Directors of the Company. The Company's risk managenvent
policies are established w Wentily and onnlyse the risks faced by the Company, to set spproprste msk lmits pond contmols and to monior risks wd
adberence 1o lomis, Bisk mansgement policies amd sysiems ore reviewed regulasly o reflect changes in morket comditions and the Company's
activitics.

Market rigk is the risk of Joss of future camings, foir valoes or fulure cash flows that may result from an sdverse clsnge o the pace of a Gnancial
Instrument, The value of a fnancial instroment miy change a3 @ resnlt of chamges in the mietest rates, Toresgn curmetey exchange mies, syuity prices
angd ether markel changes thot affeen markel nsk sensitive instruments. Market risk is atinbutable o all morket risk sensitive financial instrmments
inseuding investments and depositz, receivables, pavablis wed boans.

The Company manages the risk through the Finanee depurtment that [‘lr-h'.'idﬁ- azsurance that the Comgany’s financial sk activities are governed by
appripriate pobicied ansd procedires wind thil Gnanci] miks are identified, mensured anid monaged maccordamee with e Cormgann’s policies and risk
objectives. The Finance department activities are designed to:

-protect the Company's fimaneial resulis and positron from financi| risks
-muinstain merket riske within acceptable parnmeters, while opiimiging remrss;: and

sprotet the Company s lmancial ivesiments, while miusimi=ing reterms

The Fitance depurtment provides fusding for the Company”s operations, I addition to gmidelines and - expogure Tositz, o svsteny of susorites amd
extensive ndependent reporting covers all major arees of sctivity,

1A MANAGEMENT OF LIQUIDITY RISk

Liguadity mek 12 the sk that the Company wall face in megting itz obligatrons associated with its financaal habilities, Cotapany's approach o
nsnaging lquldity 18 to ensore thot it will have sufficeent funds {0 meet its habilities when doe without incuming unecceptable losses A matenal and
spstuimed ahorfall in cash fow could undermine the Company™s eredit rating and impair investor confidence.

The Company maintained a cauttous funding stratepy, with o posttove cash balance for major part of the vear ended 31 Muorch, 2025 and throughont
the period ended 31 March, 2024, This was the resuli of exisiting business: model of the Company amd lunding armangement ITom the investing
partners.

The Company’s board of divectors regulurly monitors the volhng forecasts o ensure it hag sofficient ciesh on an onsgoing busis o mest operional
needs. Any short term surplus cash generated by the operating entitics, over and above the amount reguired for working capiiel management and other
wperational requingments,; & retnined as cash wnd cash equivalents (o the extent reguired) and any excess is Invested by liguid bl fondsfixed
deposits while ensunmg sufficient hgmdity (o mest iz Gabilibes

Exposure to liguidity risk

The follswing are the contractuzl maturtes of financial babiiees m the reporting dote. The amesomms are gross and undiscounted. and inclode
eatimuted interest payments ond exchude the impact of netting agreements,

i terns of other e s

T in lacs

As ut 31 March, 2025 e 2c Beyond 12 Tatal
monihs months

Trade Payable 52317 - 523.17
Other Fuaneaal Tasbalivy (Currenst snd Mon-Current ) 93533 16.75 520
Shaort-Term Burmowings 33379 = 33579
Long-Term Bormowings 4,275.25 t{a0 4.875.25
Lesge Lishilities 3341 111589 145 4
Total 0,302,595 TIK34 T.031.29
As at 31 March, 2024 o2 SO e Total
Trads Pavable 620, % - (2068
Ciher Fimaneial Liability (Curremt amd Non-Currenh 210K 92 A0.5R 2635 48
Shari=Term Bamowings 507659 - £ 1759
Lang-Term Borrowinges 20051 BO0.0O0 (NI
Lease Ligbiities 3341 14500 17541

Total 624211 1,001 56 T.243.67
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(B} MANAGEMENT OF CREDIT RISK

Credit risk is the risk of fnancial [oss o the Company if o customer ar counter-pany fails 1o meet its contractuad obligations.

Trade receivables:

The Company's expesure o credin risk 15 influeneed mainly by the individual charactensties of cach customer, Credin nsk 1s menaged through eredit
approvals, establishimg eredit fimits and contmuoushy monitoring the credit worthiness oF customess 1o which the Company grants credit teems in the
normal course of business,

Urither financial assels:

The Company maintaing expesune in cash and cash equivalents, term deposits with banks, Loans, Security deposits amd other financial guets. The
Compeny has concentrated its mam setivities with a limited number of counter-pamics (hank ) which have secure credit reings, o reduce thes risk.
Tndividual nsk Himits are set for each counter-party based on financial position, eredit iating and past experience. Credit limits snd concentration of
exposures ire getively monitored by the Company's Finance department

(O MANAGEMENT OF MARKET RISK

The Company’s size and OpETAIIOTS result im it l-m:ingr expozed o the 1'u||u-wmg_ nuarkel risks that arise from its use of financial instnoments;

s Foreign currency risk;

= price risk: and

The above risks nwy affect the Company™s income and expenses, or the value of ity financial instruments. The objective of the Company's
mmanpgement of markel visk s e msiniain this risk within accepable parameters, while eptimiising retuens, The Company’s exposure 1o, and
i prekkenl o, these risks is explamed below

(T} Foreign Currency Risk:
The Company 15 exposed to foreigm exchange risk arising from vanous currency expesures on aceount of sale and procurement of goods and services,
primarily with respect to LIS Daoller

The Company's munagement tegulor review the cumency psk. However of this stage the Company had oot ebtered into any forvard exchange
contraets or other mmungements o vover (s nsk as the Ask s oot nustenal.

Unhedged foreign corrency exposure;

Particulars of unhedged foreign currency exposares s af the reparting date:

Asat 31 Asat 3l
Muavch, 20025 March, 2024
Particulars Amount in Amaunt in
Usn 5D

(im laes} {in lmes}
Tradis Pavables -

Capital Creditors

Advance Ciiven 2.4
Laozns {including interest receivabled F5.06 4059
Teadie Reveivibles 12.35 3401

Foreipn Currency Rigk Sensitivity

A change of 1% in foregn curvesey would have following impact on profin before ¥ in lacs
As at 31 March, 2025 As at 31 March, 2024
1% Inereasé 1% Decrease 1% Inerease 1% Decrease
United States Dollar 5781 [5T.R1Y 44 5 {450

Increase / (decrease | in Loss 57.81 (ST.R1) 44,96 {44.95)
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Imterest rate risk is the risk thar the fair value or future cash fows of & fnancial mstrument will fuctuate because of changes in market imerest rites,
The Cotmpaiy’s exposiie to market fisk for changes in lnterest wates relates o variable fute borrowings from [nsncial institutions. The Compony's
fizged rate borrowings from are carried at amortised cost and ane not subject 10 inferest tafe Hisk since neither the camving amount sor the future cash
e will MToctuate becavse of o changs i marke! mberest mules.

im lacs
Asat 3l As a3l
Particulars March, 2025 March, 2024
Fixed rate borrowings S401.04 6,179, L0
Yanable rate boarowings - -
Tatal Borrewings S411.04 6,179.10

{1} Pricing Risk:
There 12 no matenal impact of pricing osk on the finonceal starements and the operations of the Company.

Finuncial Instrument by category

The farr vialues of the Toancsl assets and habilities are meladed ot the smount @t which the metnnment could be exchanged m o current thnssetion
between willing partics. The carrying amount Finsnaal Assels and Liabilities 15 a reasonahle approxmation of fair value.

The following methods and pasumptions were wsed to catimate the fair values:

I Falr value of irde recétvables, sash, loans, oiher fGnencial sssefs, irade payobies and eilier finsncial Tibilities, approxinue their carrying mmounis
largely due to short Term maturities of thess instruments,

2, Funmcial anstrumsents with Gxad and varisble interest mles ace evaluated by the Compuny based on parsmeters such o8 interest rates and isdivedual
credit worthiness of the counierparly. Based on this evaluation. allowenees are taken to account for expected losses ol these receivables. Accordinaly,
fair value of such instroments & not matenally different from their camrving amounis.

The fair valocs of security deposits were caleulated based on cash fows discoumed vsing o corrent lendimg rate. They are classified as level 3 fur
values in the fair value hierarchy duee to the melusion of unebservable inputs including counter party credit nak.

Categorizntion of financial asseis and labilities

Tin loes
As ad 3 March, 2025
et Mon-Current Current Tatal
Financial Assets measured at amortised east
Imvestment Q2075 - G20TS
Trade recenvables - 231373 231173
Cash amd cash equivalents - 6,14 16,14
Livams - 3 MRS 3,19 K5
Chhiers financial assets | 73.30 19,54 192 84
Ohther bank halances > L o
Finuncial Assets measured ol Fair value throwsh profii or loss
Imvestments 222 - 2,12
1409627 537926 6AT553
Financial Liabilig i
Trade payahles - 523,17 530,17
Bomrowings [RCIRL A HT104 5A471,04
Lease liablities 111,39 1341 145,00
Oiher hinancial liabiliies 16.75 91533 4208

TiR 34 6, 302.95 T.031.29
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As at 31 March, I024

eeie Non-Current Current Tatal
Financial Assets mensured at amartised cost
Invesiment 9275 - UMKT3
I'rade receivabled - 48001 1A%
Cash and cash eguivilents - I i 24 164024
Loons 2,774 - 2,706,774
Orther financinl assets 1535491 178,40 33391
Other bank balunees 1675 - L6735
Financial Asvety messured ol Fair valoe thiraugh peofit or logs
Investments 290 - 2. H)
3,803.05 330725 T.00.30
Financial Lighilitivs al amortised cost
Trle paynhlas - G200 6% LG8
Borrowings EATRILH 537910 O, 0749, 1)
[ease habelitics 145 1 3341 178,41
Chher financial labilitses S 54 20892 2h5 48
1LeE.56 6,242.11 7.243.67

(D) CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

Fer the purpese of the Company's capital management, capiial includes tssued equity capital, and ol other equity reserves atinbutable to the equity
Bolders of the Company, The primary shjsctive of the Company’s capital manggement is fo maximize the shareholder value

The Company manages g capital steueiire and makes adjustments Ao hght of changes noeconomnie vonditions, business strategies aml fture
cattiiments, To maintain or adjusi the capital struciure, the Company may adjust ihe dividesd payinent (o shereholders, return capital e
shurcholders or issue new shuares, The Company monitors capital using o gearing ratie. which is net debt divided by total capital ples net debt The

Company includes withon net debt, borrowinges less cash and cash cguivakents.

Tin lacy

Particulars Asoat 31 As at 31
March, 2025 March, 2024

Barrowngs SA11M 6,079, 10
Less: Cash and Cash Equivalent 36,14 1549, 24
Net debt (A} 574,90 4.529 %6
Equity Share Capitai 1,203.25 1,203.25
Oiher Equiry 1300.47 2074530
Total caplial (B} 251272 327758
Capiial and ner delbi () TH87.61 T.R0T 41
Geearing Ratin {A/C) 68 "% L1

In order to achieyve ths overall obpectives the Company's capilal manasgement, smingst olher thatgs, aims o msinion myvestor, creditor and markel

conlidence and 1o sustain (utire development of the husiness,
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KERALA AYURVEDA LIMITED
Motes forming part of the financial statements For the year ended 31 March, 2025

Mate 42: Employee benefits

42.1

In secordance with Ind AS - |4 Employee Benafits, specified under Sectiaon 132 of the Compamies Act, 2013 the following disclosures are made:

The Company recogmised 31990 lacs (previous year: 38971 locs) for Providest Fund contributions in the Statement of Profit and Loss, The
contributions payable to these plans by the Company are ol rates specified i the miles of the schemes.

Defined benefit plans:

The Company has an funded gratuity plan for gualifyving emplovees. The benefit payable is caleolated as per the Payment of Gratwity Act, 1972 The
benelt vests wpon completion of Bve years of cominueus semace snd once vested, it 35 pavable o employess on relirement or oo fernunstion of
eanployment, In case of demtly while in service, the gramity is payable irespective of vesting,

Actunrinl gmng and Insses in respect of defined benefit plans are recognised in the financial statements through other comprebensive income.

Interest risk
A deerease in the bomd miterest mte will increase the plon by,

Longevity risk
The present valug of defined benefin plan liabiliny ia caleulnted by refenence 1o the hest estimate of the mosmality of plan paicipants Both during ad
alfer their employment, An merease in the e expectaney of the plan perticipants will increase the plan’s habilice.

Salary risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability 1= caleulaied by referénce 1o the future salaries of plan parficipanis. As soch, an increase in ihe
salary of the plan participants will increase the plan's lability,

The following table set out the unfunded status of the defined benefit schemes ond the amount recognised i Onancial statements,

Movement in defined begefits obligutions

Tim lacs
Asat 31 March,  Asat 31 March,
Particulars s 2024

Opening defined benefit lizbility / (asset) (A) 559,17 49847
Defined benefin Lubaiiey! ( Assel) sssumed (hrough Business Combimsteon (B .
Current service cost 41.24 3271
Past service cost .
Interest on net defined benetit lsbality | (asset) 3702 3450
Total expense recopnised in profit or loss () 78,26 67.27
Amasunt recognized in OC] - Re-messurements during the
perisd due b
Actuanial lossAGuin} arising from chenge in financil assumplions 18,41 #0603
Actuarial losgd Gaind ariging from change in demograplic assumgtions - -
Aciuanal loss/i Coint ansing on account of experience adjustment 15.500 1213
Foraagn Currency Tranalanon DifTerence - -
Totul ameunt recognized in other eomprehensive income (1) 1311 n.Th
Trunsters B
Benefits Paid (F) (58,10 (3735
Clusing defined benelit liability (A+B4C+HDHE+F) 591.25 559,17

Movement in Fair value plan of assets

Agat 31 Mareh,  Asat 31 March,

Farticulars
- 2025 2024
Opening fair value of plan asseis (A) - .
Fair Value of Plan assets acguired through Business Combination (B} -
Eiplover codtiibiitions . -

Interest on plah dssets - -

Total expense recopnised in profit or loss (C) = =
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Amanut recognized in (O] - Re-measurements during the
period due to
Actual return on plan assets less mterest on plan assets =

Total amount recogniced in sther comprehensive income (Iy - -
Transters (E)

Bene s Paid (Fy - -

Closing fair valoe of plan assets { A+BHCHDE) z =

The principal assumptions osed for the purposes of the actuarial valuations are as follows,

{A) India

EHseount rite 6 7% 7,20
Salary escalation FAR Y B
(B Ohutside India

Discount mile MA NA
Saliy escalation HA NA

The discount tate is based on the prevailing markel vields of Government - securities o5 al the boakence sheet dote for the estinmsted term of the
oblygations, The estmate of fulure salary incresses considered, takes o aecount the inflaton, seniority, promotion, merements and other relevani
factors such as supply and demand in the employment misrkeis.

T in lacs
Asat 31 March,  Asai 31 March,
Farticnlars 2028 1024

Present value of lunded defined benefin ebligation Sul.25 5417
Fuir value of plan nssets - -
Net Asset / (Riability p arising from defioed benefit obligation 391.25 554,17
Effect of asset cethng
Net Defined Benefit Asset | (Lishility)y recognised 591.25 55917

Sensitivity Analysic

Ciratumty 1= a lump sum pian and the cost of providing these benefits 15 typrcally less sensitive o small changes in demographic assumptions. The key
actuanzl assumptions to which the benefit obligation results are particularly sensitive to ane discount rate and fomre salary escalaton rate. The
follpwing tables summarizes the impeet on the reporied defined benefit obligation at the end of the reportimg pened snsing on sccount of on increase
or decren=e in the reparted assumption by 30 basis points. These sensitivitios kave been caleunlsled to show the movement in defined benelit ohligation
i izclation and assumng there are no- other changes in market conditions wt the sccounting date. There huve been no changes: from the previous
pertods . the methods and sssumptions used in preparing the sensitivity annlyvses,

Tin faes
As at 31 March. 2025 As at 31 March, 2024
Farticalars ecrease Increase Decrease Increase
Change in rete of discounting {delia efTect of +/- .5%) 335% -5 6% 3.250 -1 A
Change in rute of saliry inesease {delin e flect of +/- 0.5%) =3 0E% el i S304% 3.19%
Expected muturity anulysis of the delined benelit plans in future years T in lacs
As ot 31 March,  As at 31 March,
SAriedan 2028 2024
For lst vear (next annual reparting perrod) T3 YRR
Between 2 16 5 years 30312 260,74
Between &6 109 vears t.17 2238.7%
For Lth yvear and bevond 432.55 391,90
Total expected payments 1.005.74 971.25

Weighted average duration of the delined benelit plan:

Asat 31 March,  Asaf 31 March,

2025 2024
Weighted average duration of the defined benefii plun {in vears) 651 .28
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42.3 Emplovee Stock Option Plan

KAL Emplovee Stock Option Plan 2023 ("ESOP 20237 has been approved by the shareholders of the Company
through special resolution passed as on Annual general mecting held at 20th December, 2023, for grant agoregating
f,66,6H) Employees stock option ("ESOPs/Option{s)”) of the Company. The ESOP 2023 covers 3 grants of options to
the specified employees covered under ESOP 2023, with a vesting period of | year and exercise period of 3 yeurs.

Grant Option 1

Particulars Year ended Mar 25
MNumber WAEP({INR)
(1) outstanding at the beginning of the period; - -
(11} granted durmg the period; 4,93 963 49 349 630
i11i) forfeited during the period: - -
(1v) exercised during the period; . -
ivh expired during the perod, - -
ivi) outstanding ot the end of the period; and 403,063 4930 530
ivi1) exercizable at the end of the period. - -
CGirant Option 2
Particulars Year ended Mar 25

Mumber WAEP (INR)
(1) outstanding at the beginning of the perod; - -
(i1} granted during the period; I, 10,9490 11, G
(1it) forfeited during the period; . -
(iv) exercised duning the period; - -
(v expired during the period; - -
ivi) outstanding at the end of the period; and I, 10 540 IR
ivii) exercisable at the end of the period. - -

Grant Option 3
Particulars Year ended Mar 25
Number WAEP (INR)
(i) outstanding at the beginning of the period; - -
{1y granted during the period; 15,445 |94 450
(i) forfeited during the period. - -
(iv) exercised during the period, - -
(v} expired during the period, - -
(wi) outstanding at the end of the period; and 10,445 1,94, 450
ivii) exercisable at the end of the period. - -

Total expense ansing from share based payment transaction for the year is INR 622,86 Lakhs has been charged to
statement ol profit und loss,

The weighted averape remaintng contractual lite for the share options eutstanding as at March 31, 2025 is 3.5 vears

The weighted average fair value of options granted during the year is Rs 285,003
The exercise price for aptions cutstanding at the end of the vear is Rs 10,
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The following tables list the inputs to the models used for the ESOP plan for the year ended March 31, 2025:

Grant Option 1

Muodel used: Black-Scholes Option
Pricing Muodel.

Drividend yield (o)

Expected volatility (%)

Risk-free interest rate (%)

Expected life of share options

Grant Option 2

Muodel used: Black-Scholes Option
Pricing Model.

Dividend vield (%)

Expected volatility (%)

Risk—firee interest rate (%)

Expected |ife of share options

Grant Option 3

Model used: Black-Scholes Option
Pricing Model,

Diividend yield (%)

Expected volatility (%)

Risk—{rec interest rate (%)

Expected life of share oplions

Year ended
Mar 25
152
51.26%
6,930,
35

Year ended
Mar 25
(e
510,931,
6, G
1.5

Year ended
Mar 25
%
S1.50%
6, R
1.5



Harsla Ayunveds LTD Carporete Ovanidew _J ,[_[-nnn-:l::l Sm:emanTE__J

KERALA AYURVEDA LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements For the year ended 31 March, 2025

Note 43: Disclosures required under Ind AS 8 for correction of prior period errors,

In sccordance with Ind AS B Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounling Estimates and Errors, the Company has
retrospectively restated its Balanee Sheet as al March 31, 2024 and April 1, 2023 (beginning of the preceding period) 1o
rectify errors identified during the period.

43.1 Nature of prior period errors
{a) Lease accounting

In most cases, the Company's lease arrangements are cancellable within a short notice period. Az these arrungements are not
enforceable beyond that period. no Right-ol-Use (ROUY) dsset or lease Hability was recognised. However, durdng the period
2022-23, the Company entered into certain agreements contaimng non-cancellable periods, which required lease accounting
in accordance with the applicable standards. This requirement was madvertently overlooked in the previous period and has
now been corrected in the current period. Related security deposits have also been adjusted to their fair value, with the
resulting difference recognised as part of the ROU asset.

{b) Deferred product expenditure and accounting for patents

The Company had previeusly capitalised certain deferred product development expenditures that did not meet the
recogniiion orileria under Ind AS 38, As g result of adopting an imcorrect accounting treatment, these amounts were
capitalised and later written off through the profit and loss account. In the current vear, the accounting weamment has been
corrected, and the amounts have been restated 1o reflect the appropriate treatment. These balances have been written off
retrospectively as a prior period error.

Farther, in relation to patents. the Company had erroncously continued to capitalise borrowing costs even afier the
completion of development activitics. The cxcess amounts 2o capitalised have been written off retrospectively, and the
related amortisation has been recomputed sccordingly.

{c) Inventories

Amounts previously recorded as inventory for a training project were determined o the prior period to be obsolete or no
longer usable. Upon review, these amounts also did not meet the recognition eniteria for classification as inventory under Ind
AS, Consequently, they have been written down retrospectively to reflect their recoverable valoe,

{d)} Loan to Subsidiaries

Foreign exchange restatenient for foreign curreney—denominated loans was not appropriately accounted for in prior periods
in accordance with Ind AS 21, In addition, impairment testing of these loans was not performed during those periods as
required by the applicable standards. These omissions have been corrected retrospectively in the current reporting period.

{¢) Investments

Previously, investments in certain non-pperating entitics were not subjected to impairment testing. These investments have
now been reassessed, and impairment testing has been performed. Based on the results. the mpaired portion has been
writien down, and the carmying smount bas been revised 1o reflect its fair value in accordance with the requirements of Ind
AR T,

{1 Trade Receivables

In prior pedods, foreign exchange revaluation for receivubles denominated in foreign currencies wis not performed, This
omission has been corrected in the current period, with receivables now adjusted 10 reflect the appropriate foreign exchange
restatement, In addition, the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) provision, which had nor been recognised earlier, has heen
reassessed and recorded retrospectively.
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() Deferred Tax Assets (Net)

The deferred tax asset, which had been under-recognised in prior periods. has been re-evaluated, and necessary adjustiments
have been made as prior period errors. Further, the Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) credit entitlement has been reclassified
to deferred tax asset to ensure correct presentation. Additienal deferred tax asset has also been recognised based on the

corrected computation,

43.2 Impact of correction of error in material items in Balance sheet

% 1n lakhs
April 1, 2023 Reported balance  oooMEmRDl oo tuted balance
adjustment

Assels
Property, plant and equipment I.BR0.82 - 158082
Right of Use Asscts - 213.64 213.64
Intangible assets 115105 (378.61) 77244
Investments (non-coarmrent) I,136.358 (21441 92217
Loans (non-curtent) 233869 179,10 2,517,740
Oher financial assets (non-current) 456.53 {204.95) I6l.38
Dreferred tax asscts (net) ER.97 384,03 473.00
Income tax assets (net) 2ML21 (212.68) T.53
Other non-current assets - 40,61 40,641
Inventories 467,54 (323.21) 644,33
Trade recetvables 1,207 .35 {132.06) 1,055.249
Cash and cash eguivalents 172.06 1.22 17388
Other financial assets (current) - 121.71 121.71
Orther current assets 24098 ( 16d.60) R5.38
Equity and Liabilities
Equity share capital 1,06k55,.57 (.00 1,0535.57
Onher equity 197.70 (971.61) (573.91)
Borrowings {non-current) 4.892.03 (2.092.24) 2.799.74
Lease liabilities { non-current) - 178.41 178.41
Other financial liabilities {non-current) - 34.50 34.50
Provisions (non-current) 42947 - 479 47
Other non-current liabilities 34.50 (34.501) =
Borrowimgs {current) [.405 7% 2,162.5% 356836
Trade payables SOE. 1 . SOE.1E
Leasse liabilities { current) - 27.46 27.46
Other financial habilities {current) - 248 09 248 00
Provisions (current) 103,12 20 4G 132.61
Other current liahilities 954018 {18244 571.64
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March 31, 2024 Reportol ilanee: CIMEmEnt o eitid Wabaice
adjustment

Assels
Property, plant and equipment 188314 (.01 [ HE3.13
Right of Lise Assets - .91 170.9]
Intangible assets 142,20 (416.47) 725,73
Investments {non-current) 1,136,358 (212,93 42365
Loans (non-current) 2.502.40 204.34 270674
Other financial assets (non-current) 492,51 (315.85) 172.66
Deeflerred tax assets (net) 1917 50, (10 509,26
Income tax assets {net) 23388 (182.89) 50,59
Chther non-current assets - 0.47 0.47
Inveniores 131193 {323.21) URE. 72
Trade reccivables 1.6749,11 f1us 1) L AR0.0]
Cash and cash equivalents 1.647.81 1.43 1.649.24
Chither financial assets {current) - 121.71 121.11
Chther current assets 356,73 (271.35) 8338
Equity and Linbilities -
Equity shave capital 1.203.25 . 1,203.25
Other equity 303445 (960.15) 2.074.30
Borrowings (non-current) 5,164.00 {30400 000
Lease liabilities (non-current) - 14500 14500
Other financial liabilities {non-curmrent) - 56.56 56,36
Provisions (non-current) 46924 - 464,249
Other nen-current labilities 36,36 (36.56) -
Borrowings (current) AlG.00 4.563.02 SATE10
Trade payables 620.68 OE.4 Tionw
Lease Habilities {current) - 334 334
Oriher financial liabilities (current) - 208,92 20892
Provisions (current) 77.7% H231.61 1ol .40
Other current liabilities 96337 {492.74) 70.58
(i} Impact of correction of errors in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Reported amount Restatoment Restated amounts

for the vear 2023- adjustments for the year 2023-

34 24

Revenue from operations T.314.11 (510.46) 6,803,065
Other incomae 642 28424 FH) .06
Cost ol materials consumed 2,030.24 - 2,030.24
Purchase of stock-in-trade 260,56 - 269.56
Changes in inventories of finished goods and stock-in-trade (331.86) ) (331.56)
Employee benefits expense 2.023 31 - 202331
Finance costs IR2.6H 157.07 530 75
Depreciation and amorbisation expense T6.85 80.5% 15743
Other expenses 2.837.01 {404.45) 2.432.56
Tax expenscs 69,80 (91 80} {22.00)
Other comprehensive income 13.54) i20.90) {2444
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KERALA AYURVEDA LIMITED
Naotes forming part of the financial statements For the year ended 31 March, 2025

MNote 44: Disclosure pursoant to Ind AS 20 " Accounting for Government Grant and Disclosure of Government Assistanee”
The Company had not received any Covernment Grand during the vear ended March 31, 2025 (Previous vear - Nil)

Mote 45: Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 1146

Amounts recognised in Balance Sheet

The balance sheet shows the following amounts relating fo leases: T in lacs
Particulars As at 31 March, As at 31
2025 March, 2024
Right-ot-use assets 128,18 170.91
Total 128.1% 170.91
Particolars As at 31 March, Asat 31

2028 Murch, 2024
Lease Liabilites
Crorrent 3341 1141
Mom-current 111.5% L5, 0H)
Total 145.00 178,41
Muovement of Right-of-Use assets
[retuils af carrving amount of right-of-use assets and movement during the period is disclosed under Mote 5,
Movement in Lease Linbilithes Tin laes
Pt As at 31 March, Asoat 31
225 March, 2024
Opemng Balance 178,41 205,87
Addition during Yeue -
Additions through Business Combinations . s
Fimance Cost 18.7% 2124
Deletion - -
Modification .
Exchunge difference - -
Lease Liabiliny Payments (52200 {449.72)
Closing Balance 145010 178,41
Amounts recognised in the statement of profit and loss
The statement of profii or loss shows the following amounts refating to lenses: % in lacs

For the year

For the vear

Particulars ended 31 March,  ended 31
225 March, 2024
Prepreciation charge of nght-of-use assets 4273 42.73
[nterest expense (included in finance costs) 1879 2226
Expense relating to Short-term leases 349,98 23472

Expense relating to Low- value lesses
Crvim on Termination of Lease

The total cash owflow for leases for the period ended 31 March, 2025 was 23341 lucs (Principal portion} and 18,79 lacs (Tnterest

partion).”

The total cash outflow for leases for the period ended 31 March, 2024 was 227.46 lacs (Principal portion) snd 222.26 lacs(Interest

portuon ).
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The undiscounted cash flow payable by the Company is as follews

Tin s

A ai 31 March, Asai 31

Particulars 2025 March, 2024
Mo latier than | yveas 3141 1341
Later than | year and nul later than § years 111:59 145,00
Later thun 5 vears - -
Toinl Lease Paymenis 145.00 17541

Lease Linbility in a Sale and Leasebuck - Amendments to Ind AS 116

The amendment specifies the requirements that o seller-lessee uses n messurng the lease hobility ansing o oosale and: lenseback
tranzaction o engure the seller-lesses does mol recognize any amount of the gain or loss that relates o the right of use agset i retains

The amendment iz effective for annual reporing perods beginning on or aftes Apeil 01, 2024 and muost be applied retrospectively to sale
ond leaseback transsctions entered into after the date of ingtial application of Ind AS 116,

Thie amendment has no impoact on the standalone finoncial statoments.

MNote 46 1 Ratio Analysis

As at 31 March, | As at 31 Mareh,
Particulais 2425 = ]‘.I]III 4 Variance
{a) Current Batio ¢ Curment Assets/Current Lighilities) 0 K 0.65 205
(B Dbt Equity Ratio | Long term boreowings ineluding current maturities 1.94 |26 18.43%
theneof Fguity )
(¢d Diebt Service Coverage Ratio | Earnings bedore Interest and Tax / (Finosace (2.24) {0.55) 06,79
Cost+ Prmoipel Bepavment of Long Term Borrowings & Lesse Liabilities) ]
() Beturmoon Equity Ratio (Profit Afler Taxd Equity) {0.55) G -33B65.36%
{23 Inventory Tumover Ratioo{ Ssles ) Average Inventoriesl AT T.50 «13.78%
{1} Trade Receivable Turmover Ratio (Revenue £ Averase trade receivables) 383 537 -28.00%
(o} Trade Payable Turmover Ratio (Met purchase / Average trade pavables) 35 319 -1.26%
thi et Capital Tumowver Bato (Met sales’ Working capetal) 6 54 (2.54] 131.93%
(11 Met profil Ratio {Proft Afier Tax @ Turnover) (0.19) (.00 224320 20%
{11 Retum on Capital Emploved { Profit afier tax/ (Equity + Long term {TRE 0.AM1 e THE L e
botrowings mcluding current Maturites thereeD)
1k} Return on Investment { Beturn on Investments ¢ Non Current Invesiments) - - {10

Note: Explaination for change in the ratio by more than 25% as compared 10 preceding period 15 145 under

The changes in ratios are due 1o additional sllowsnce for expected credii loss en receivables and loans and reclassification of long-term
barrowings from reloted parties rechassified W the current maturities of long-term borrewings. Cther operating rotios such as inventory
tunrover, trnde payables twmaover ete, are unaffected.

Nite 47 1 Additional disclosures ns per Schedule I to the Companies Act, 2003

a. [retands of Loans or Advances in the pature of Ioens ave granted (o promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties, that are repavable
on demand or without specilving any teoms of penod of repayment

As at March 31, 2025 T im laes

Ammount of lean or advanee in the Percentage to the total loans and
nature of lonn outstanding advances in the nature of loans

Type of Borrower

Prrovmuter - -
Drrector - -
KM Ps - -
Related Porties 4,541.51 100%
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As at March 31, 2024 T im lacs
Amount of loan or advance in the Percentage (o the total loans and

Type of Borrower mature of loan outstanding advances in the nature of loans

Promoter - -

Director - -

KM Ps 2 =

Reluted Parties 4,054,085 [ M Y

v, The company has not raded or mvested m Crpto cumrency or Virtual Comeney duning the period (provioms year - Mil)

c. The company has nat received any funds from any persan/entities, for the purpose of directly or indirectly lending investing! providimg
puamntes) secunty to a another person’ entity. by or on belwdl of the person/ entity from whoem svch amount 5 receved during the
period (previows year - Mil}

d, The cempany has net advinced! loanéd! invested funds to any person’ entity for the purpose of directly or indirectly lending investing
providimg puarantee’ security o third persons eptity, by or on behalf of the company in contraveniton of the Aci

£, The company docs not have any borrowings which are not utilised for the purposes specificd

The Company has taken loans from banks' Finoncial Institutions (FIb on the basis of security of current assets like inventores, The
periodic retums or statements of current assats filed by the Company with banks or finaneial institutions are in agreement with the books

ol aocounts,

Mude 48 : Disclosure pursuant te section 186 of the Companies Act, 2003
The details of loons, puarantees and investments under Section 136 of the Companzes Act, 2003 read with the Companes { Mestings of
Board und its Powers) Rules, 2014 are a5 follows:

[¥etails of Loans given by the Company during the vear are as follows;

tin lacs
Ind AS
; adjustments
Name ot he oty ity NI Lommesoen Lo Repment g st
Exchange
differvnce)
Aovurvedic Acadeny Inc Wk 15 - G4 URT 5%
CMS Katra Holding LLC 1,376 86 - - 153416 1,531.02
NUTRAVEDA PTE LTD» 041 = (03 044
Suveda Ine 181863 203.43 2022.26
Tuotal 4,084,005 - 457,16 4,541.31
€ in lacs
Ind AS
2 ud justments
i o S iy At o) 01 _a:flzlmn .11:;::: EIE:‘::M ISTL':“.'ETUM ST & M :‘:r:t il]rzd
- Exchange
difference)
Avurvedic Acadeny [ne A2a2 - - 6211 REE.LS
CMS Katra Holding LLC 1.280.54 - 9632 1, 376.86
RUTRAVEDA PTE LTD .38 - a3 .41
Suveda Ine 160 3% - - [27.24 181463
Total 379833 - - I85.71 408405

Name of Entity

Purpose of utilization of loan
given to the entities

Rate of Interest

Repavment Terms

Asurvedic Academy Ine Working capital 7.0 On demand
CMS Katra Holding LLC Working capital 7.00% Oin demand
NUTRAVEDA PTE LTD Working capital 7.00% On demand
Suvedit Tne Waorking capitul 700 On denand
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B Corporate Gurantes given by the Company in respeet of loans as at 31 March, 2025 during the vear are as follovws:

2 inlacs
As at 31 March, Asat 31
Particula
rijcolar 2025 March, 2024
Mil -

Naote 49 : Disclosure on Corporate Social Responsibility

The Company s not reguired 1o comply with the provisions refating to Corporate Sociel Responsibality dunng the period {previous vear:

Nil)
For the vear For the year
Details of CSR expenditure (In case of an Indian Company): voded 31 March, ended 31
2025 March, 2024
Arnount spent during the year
() Construction [ acquisition of any asset Nil il
tit) On purpose other than above
Particulars Paid Provided® Total

Far the year ended March 31, 2025
For the vear ended March 31, 2024

¥ The reconciliation of Provision made for CSR Expenses is as under

As at 31 March, Asat 31
228 Mlarch, 2024

Opening Provision
Add: Pravision made during the period
Less: Ameunt patd during the period

Hil Mil

Cloaing Provision

(ther Information

As at 31 March, Asut 31
225 March, 2024

Shortiall at the end of the Period
Total of previous vear shortfall

Mil Mil

Mobes:
{1} Reasons of Shortfall, if any
(i) Nature of CSE- Activitivs

(i) Detpils of Helated party transactions in relation 1o ©8T Expenses:

Note 50: Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Mediom Enterprises Development Act, 20006:

{1} The amount due to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined in the “The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2006" hes heen determined to the extent such panies have been identified on the basis of information collected by the Management,

(11 The Disclosure relating Micro and Sniall Enterprises are a5 under:

T in lacs
Asat 31 March, Axat 31
2025 March, 2024
(1} The principal amount rensaiming unpaid o supplier 3522 116,51

{11} Interest on (i} shove

(i) Pavment made to suppliers {nclusive of interest as per MSMED Act, 20060 hevond

appointed day during the vea

Div) Amouni of imterest due and pavable on delaved payments

{v) Amount of further interest remaining due and pasable for the earlier vears

(w1} Amount of Interest payable renuming unpaid
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MNaote 51: Disclosures required under schedule [T (applicable to Indian Companies)

2. The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right-oi-Use Assets)/Intangible Assets during the vear
{previons year - Nil)

The company 15 pot holding benami property under the Benamt Transactions {Prohibition) Act, 1988 (43 of 1958)

¢, The company is not wilful defauliers under guidelines an wilful defauliers issued by the Reserve Bank of Tndia

i, The company has no relationship and transactions with strock oftf companies

s

]

Tihe company hay mot made sny deloy in registration of Charges during the period,
The company has complied with the number of luyers preseribed under section 2(87) of the companies Act 2013

30 |

g, The company has not entered in scheme of arrangement under section 230 10 237 of Companies Act 2013 during the perod
b There are ne transactions not recorded in the books of accounts, which are diselosed during the Income tax assessnient/search/survey

Mote 522 Impact on Code on Social Security, 2020
The Indian Parlisment has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 wheeh would impact the contributions by the Company towards
Providem Fund and Gratuity. The Ministry of Labeur and Emplovinent has released drafl rules for the Code on Social Security, 2020 on
13 Movember, 2020, and has invited sugpesttons from stekeholders which are under sotive consideration by the Ministry, The Company
will assess the impact and its evaluation onee the subect rules are notified and will give appropoate impact e its finaneial statements
the period in which, the Code becomes effective and the related rules to determine the financial impact are published.

Nute 53 ; Reclassification note
Previows period”s figures have been re-grouped / re-classified, to the extent necessary, W conform to current period's classifications (in
addition 1o restatement dome as per Mote na, 433 All the numbers have been rounded off 1o nearest lacs,

As per our audit report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For G, Joseph & Associales KERALA AYURVEDA LIMITED
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn, Mo, 0063108

Raphael Sharon Dr. Anil Kumar Utkarsh Singh

Partner Direvtor Mhrector

M.MNo. 233286 DiIN: DO226353 DN B244594
Vivek Sundar KT George Priyanks Gangwar

Date: 26th May 2025 CEQ €FO Company Seeretary

Place: Athani Mem Mo, - F12378
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Members of
Kerala Ayurveda Limited

Report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements
Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Kerala Avarveda Limited
{"the Company™) and its subsidiaries which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at March 31,
2025, and the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income),
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash Hows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, meluding a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated
financial statements’).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to ug, excepl
tor the effects of the matter described in the ‘Basis for Qualified Opinion® section . the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards(Ind AS) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state
of affuirs of the Holding Company as at March 31, 2025, of its consolidated Loss and other
comprehensive income. consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows for the year ended
on that date.

Basis for Qualified opinion

The Company has a bank account with HDFC Bank Limited a balance of Rs. 3.85 lakhs as at 31st
March 2025, which is subject to confirmation and reconciliation. In the absence of sufficient audit
evidence regarding the sccuracy and completeness of this balance, we are unable to determine the
possible adjustments, if any, that may be required in respect of this item.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (*SAs") specified under sub-
section 10 of section 143 of the Act, Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report, We are independent of the Holding Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sulficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis Of Matter
1. We draw attention to Mote 43 to the financial Statements, relating to the restatement of prior
period figures due to errors and omissions identified during the current reporting period, These
restatermnents have been made in accordance with Ind AS 8 — Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors.
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our andit of the consclidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters
described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Restatement of prior period Financial Statements due to material error

Key Aundit Maiter

How the matter was addressed in Audit

During the year, the Company has restated its
comparative financial statements to correct
certain material prior period errors. The
restatements primarily relate to:

Our procedures included, among others:
*  Obraining a detailed understanding of the
nature of the prior period errors and the

Company's restatement process.

#» Evaluating the Company’s internal
documentation and management’s
assessment supporting the restated figures.

# [ncorreet foreign exchange translation
and restatement of balances denominated

in foreign currencies, *  Re-performing management’s caleulations
s [nadequate impairment  assessment of for:
investments and loans extended to certain o Restatement of foreign currency

subsidiaries. and
s Misclassification of certain  financial
assets and liabilities in the earlier periods.

balances and unrealised exchange
rains/losses;

Impairment testing of investments
and inter-company loans based on
recoverability; and

Reclassification and measurement
of financial instruments  under
applicable Ind AS (including Ind
AS 109 and Ind AS 32),

Q

These  restatements  involved  significant
management judgment, retrospective a
adjustments, and reclassification of comparative
financial information, all of which were material
to users of the financial statements. Given the

nature, extent. and complexity of these »  Assessing whether the restated disclosures
restatements and the increased audit effort in the financial statements comply with the
required  to validate the adjustments, we requirements of Ind AS ¥ - Accounting

considered this to be a key audit matter. Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Errors.

o  [Evaluating the appropriateness  and
completeness of the disclosures related to
restated comparatives.

Reference in Financial Statements:
Refer Note 43 - Disclosures required under Ind AS

& far correction of prior period ervors.

Identification and digclosures of Related Parties:

Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in Audit

The Company has significant related party | Our audit procedures included, among others:

transactions, which include sale and purchase of *  Evaluated the design and tested the
goods  and  services, as well as  lending, operating effectiveness of controls over
mvestment, and borrowing transactions with its identification and disclosure of related
subsidiaries, associates, joint ventures, and other party transactions. Identilication and
related parties. disclosure of related parties was a




identitication,
and  inadequate

the risk of incomplete
mappropriate  classification,
disclosure is heightened.

Asgessing compliance with Ind AS 24 — Related
Party Disclosures requires  significant
management judgment, particularly in ensuring
completeness and accuracy of disclosures and
compliance  with  corporate governance
requirements.

Accordingly, related party transactions were
considered a key audit matter.
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Given the pervasive nature of these transactions. |

ST,

significant area of focus and hence 1s
considered a Key Audit Matter.

Obtained a list of related parties from the
Company’s management and traced the
related parties to declarations given by
directors. where applicable. and to Note
39 of the consolidated Ind AS financial

statements.
* Reviewed the minutes of the meetings of
the Board of Directors and Audit

Committee and traced related party
transactions with limits approved by
Audit Committee / Board.

Reviewed the declarations of related
party transactions given to the Board of
Directors and Audit Committee.
Verified the disclosures in  the
consolidated Ind AS financial statements
for compliance with Ind AS 24,
Reference in Financial Statements:
Refer Note 3% —Related Parry Transactions

Testing for impairment of investments and loans advanced to subsidiary Companies:

Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in Audit

The Company has invested in  various
subsidiaries and advanced significant loans to its
such entities, which are outstanding as at the
balance sheet date. These investments and loans
form a substantial portion of the Company's
financial assets.

The assessment of recoverability of loans and the
valuation of these  mmvestments  involves
significant management judgment. This includes
evaluating:

The financial position and cash flow
projections of the subsidiaries,

The purpose and utilisation of the loans,
Probability of  repayment or
restructuring, and

The fair valuation of investments in
accordance with Ind AS requirements.

Given the materiality of the amounts involved,
the related party nature of the transactions, and
the judgment involved in assessing the
impairment and recoverability, we considered
this a key audit matter.

Our awdit procedures mcluded, among others:
Reviewing the financial health of the
subsidiaries by  examining  their
audited/unaudited financial stateiments
and cash flow forecasts.

Obtaining a schedule of loans advanced
to subsidiaries and verifying balances
with underlying loan agreements,
Assessing the terms and conditions of the
loans; including tenure, interest, and
repayment clauses.

Evaluating the reasonableness of
management's assessment of
impairment, including assumptions used
for calculating expected credit losses.
Reviewing the basis and documentation
for impairment provision recognised for
the specific subsidiary loan.

Assessing compliance with disclosure
requirements under Ind AS 107, Ind AS
109, Ind AS 36 and Ind AS 24.
Evaluating  the  adequacy  and
appropriateness of disclosures made in
the financial statements,

Reference in Financial Statements;
Refer Note 9 and 10 — favestments and Loans to
Subsidiaries
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Information other than the consolidated financial statements and auditor’s report thereon

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Director’s report, Management Discussion &
Analysis and Business Responsibility Report but does not include the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
nat express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements. our responsibility is to read the
other information and. in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed and based on work done, we conclude that there is a material
misstalement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the consolidated financial
statements

The Holdhing Company’s Board of Directors 15 responsible for the matters stated in sub-section 5 of
section 143 of the Act with respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, financial performance, total
comprehensive income, consohdated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Holding
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India. including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
sateguarding of the assets of the Holding Company and for preventing and detecting trauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies: making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent: and design, implementation and mamtenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating ¢ffectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud
Or erTar.

In preparing the consolidated tinancial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing
the Holding Company’s ability to continue as 3 going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going coneern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Holding Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do s0. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for oversecing the Holding Company's financial
reporting process,

Aunditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Dur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and 1o issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 15 a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when if
exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
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aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
hasis of these consolidated tinancial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of mternal control,

=  Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company has adeguate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls,

s  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Holding Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinton, Our cenclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Holding Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

s [Ewvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
inclueding the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlving transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

s  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities ar
business activities tor the Holding Company and its associates to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements, We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the audit of the financial information of such entities included in the consolidated
financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion. Cur responsibilities in this regard are further described in the section titled "Other
Matters" in this audit report.

We believe that the audit evidence oblained by us along with the consideration of audit report of the
Subsidiary Company, referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our andit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were af most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matter

We did not audit the financial statements of the subsidiaries included i the consolidated financial
statemerits, whose financial statements reflect total assets of T 8870.49 lakhs as at March 31, 2025, total
revenues of T4901.90 lakhs and net cash flows of T(328.91) lakhs for the vear then ended. as considered
in the consolidated financial statements. These financial statements have been audited by other auditors
whose reports have been furnished to us. and our opinion in so far as it relates to the amounts and
disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.
Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements is not modified in respect of these matters,

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

2, We have sought and obtamed all the imformation and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to the preparation of the
atoresaid consolidated financial statements have been kept by the Holding Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those hooks except for the matters stated in the paragraph 3 below
on the reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies { Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,

¢.  The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account
maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

d. In our opinion. the atoresaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

¢.  On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as
on March 31, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company, none of the
directors 15 disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of sub-
section 2 of section 164 of the Act.

f.  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Holding Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
tAnnexure AL Our report expresses an modified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Holding Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting; and

g. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Holding Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with
the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.
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h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

iii.

V.

There are no pending litigations which would impact the financial position of the Holding
Company and the Subsidiary;

The Holding Company and the Subsidiary did not have any long-term contracts including
derivative contracts for which there were any material foresecable losses:

There were no amounts which were required to be transterred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company or the Subsidiary during the vear ended March
31, 2025,

i. The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggresaie) have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or
any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or
entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

ii. The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief. no
funds (which are material either individoally or in the aggregate) have been
received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity
{"Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

iit.  Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain
any material misstatement.

The Holding Company and the Subsidiary Company has not declared dividend during the
year,

Based on our examination which included test checks and based on the other auditor’s

reports of its subsidiary companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been
audited under the Act, except for the instances mentioned below, the Parent Company and its
subsidiary company, incorporated in India have used accounting software for maintaining their
respective books of account for the vedar ended March 21, 2025, which have a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year

tor all relevant transactions

Further. during the course of our audit, we and the respective other anditors, whose reports have
been furnished to us by the Management of the Parent Company, have not come across any
instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with in respect of the accounting software for
the period for which the audit trail feature was
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operating.
Additionally, audit trail that was enabled and operated for the vear ended March 31, 2024,
has been preserved by the Company and above referred subsidiary
2,

With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s
Report) Order, 2020 (the “Order™/ “CARO") issued by the Central Government in terms of
Section 143(11) of the Aet, to be included in the Auditor’s report, according to the information
and explanations given to us, and based on the CARO report issued by us for the Company and
the CARO report 1ssued for the Subsidiary Company included in the consolidated financial
statements of the Company, to which reporting under CARCY is applicable, we report that there
are no qualifications or adverse remarks in these CAROD repornts.

For G. Joseph & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 0063105

Raphael Sharon
Partner
233286

UDIN; 25233286BMIIBUENOS52

Place: Ernakulam
Date:
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF KERALA AYURVEDA LIMITED

Report on the internal financial controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (*the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Kerala Ayurveda Limited
(‘the Company') as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the Holding Company tor the vear ended on that date.

Management's responsibility for internal financial controls

The Holding Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
{‘the Guidance Note') issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI'). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adeguate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and erors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ responsibility

Onar responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company’s internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing. issued by ICAl and
deemed to be prescribed under section sub-section 10 of section 143 of the Act. to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the ICAL Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to consolidated financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls
opetated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the intermal
financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to consolidated financial statements
and their operating eftfectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to consolidated financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to consohdated financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditors” judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Holding Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting
with reference to consohidated financial statements,
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Meaning of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to consolidated
financial statements

A company’s internal financial controls with reference to these Financial Statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company’s internal financial controls with reference to these Financial Statements includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2} provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
consolidated financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may oceur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the mternal financial
controls over Ninancial reporting to future periods are subject to the nisk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

Qualified Opinion

Based on the information and explanations given to us and our audit, certain areas in the Company’s
internal financial controls over financial reporting require improvement as at 3]st March, 2025, In our
view, these deficiencies, individually or in aggregate. could potentially result in a material misstatement
of the financial statements if not addressed:

4, The Company’s internal controls over the reconciliation of statutory dues ledgers — including Goods
and Services Tax, Provident Fund, Employees™ State Insurance, Professional Tax, Labour Welfare
Fund. and Tax Deducted at Source — with the corresponding records and statutory returns require
strengthening. Inadequate reconeiliation in these areas may result in inaccuracies in the amounts of
such liabilities as reflected in the financial statements,

b. The Company's internal controls over the physical verification of fixed assets. along with related
asset management controls and swandard operating procedures; require strengthening tw be
commensurate with the size and nature of its operations,

¢,  The Company’s internal controls for menitoring. recording, and reconeiling related party transactions
require strengthening. Formal standard operating procedures should be established to ensure that
such transactions are identified, documented, and reconciled accurately. in compliance with
applicable statutory and disclosure reguirements.

A ‘material weakness™ is a deficiency, or a combination of defciencies, in internal fnancial control over
financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the
company's annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.

In our opinion considering nature of business, size of operation and organisational structure of the entity,
except for the effects/possible effects of the material weaknesses described above on the achievement of
the objectives of the contral eriteria, the Company has maintained, in all material respects, adequate
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internal financial controls over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as of March 31, 20235,

For G. Joseph & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 0063105

Sdf-
Raphael Sharen

Partner
233286

UDIN: 25233286BMIIBUS652

Place: Ernakulam
Date: 26052025
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ClIN; L24233K L 1992PLCO06RS2

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2025

Particulars

Mote

As at March 31,

As at April 0]

2125 2024 23
¢ d lakles)
I. ASSETS
(17 NON- CURRENT ASSETS
ia) Property, plunt and equipment 4 2.707.36 239512 2.404 35
th) Right of use assets 5 0706 1721 213,64
() Capital work-in-progress f 923.44 G B GEY.18
id) Intangible assets 7 B26.82 T67.12 §18.22
(e} Intangible sssets under development 8
i} Goodwill TAR. B0 Tak 80 T4R. 80
() Financial assets
(i) Investments L] 485 353 4,05
(i1} Loans L1} 2,332.54 2.005.29 2,040,344
(iii) Other financial assets L) 361.95 394 05 37441
thy Delerred tax assets (met) 12 477,57 472,08 453.72
(1) Income tax assets (net) I3 15,49 S0 T.53
(11 Oher non-current dsscts 41} 047 047 40,61
Totul non-current assets R,799.45 7.697.54 7,.794.95
(27 CURRENT ASSETS
(a) Inventories |5 1,295.461 1.226.78 926,15
(b} Financial assets
(ip Trade receivables i 193017 1, 742.28 131141
(1) Cash and cash equivalents 17 33801 2280092 43510
(i) Loans [0iie) - - -
(1v) Other financial assets I1(11) 19.54 17800 121.71
() Other current asscts Laiin) 48241 194322 [ 18,60
(cly Assets classified as held for sale [ 10,10 - -
Total current assets 4.076.74 5.621.20 291697
TOTAL 12,876,240 13.315.74 10,711.91
I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1 EQUITY
ia) Equity share capital 4 1.:203.25 1,.203.25 1.055.57
(b} Other equity 20 (253,90} 66229 (1.937.18}
i¢) Mon Controlling Interest 339,72 265,71 199,29
Total equiry 1,289.08 2.131.25 (682,32}
LIABILITIES
(2) NOMN- CURRENT LIABILITIES
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Botrowings 2101} 1,786,12 2.048.70 4,0159.56
(1) Lease liabilities 22(1) 435 83 14500 17841
{ini) Other financial labilities 2301} 16,75 S6.56 34,50
i) Provisions 2401) 53003 S(H.63 45633
Total non-vurrent liabilities 178963 1.750.89 4.729.00
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(3} CURRENT LIABILITIES
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 21t 4.811.04 5,379,010 1,568,960
(i) Lease Hobilities 221} 3341 33.41 2746
(i) Trade payables
A) Total outstinding dues of micra

. : 3522 110.51 10688
enterprises and small enterprises
B total owtstanding dues of
creditors other than micro 25 S44.26 574.44 717.29
enterprises and small enterprizes,

(it} Other financial liabilities 23(n} 33533 208.92 248,09
(bp Provisions 24} 276,91 29814 197,28
(¢ Other current liabilities il 2:561.32 I E32 08 1.805,26
Total curvent liabilities #.797.50 #.436.60 6,665.22
TOTAL 12.876.20 13.318.74 10,711.91

Il

Muaterial sccounting policy information

The accompanying Nates form an integral part of the financial statements

Per our report attached

For G. Joseph & Associates For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountanis of Kerala Avurveda Limited
Firm Begn. No. 0063 105

Raphael Sharon Dir. Anil Knmar Utkarsh Singh
Partner Director Director
M N, 233286 [N (226353 MM 9244894

Vivek Sundar KT George  Privanka Gangwar
Drate: 26th May 2025 CEOQ CFO Company Secretary
Place: Athani Mem Mo, - FIZ3T78
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KERALA AYURVEDA LIMITED
CIN: LI4223KL1992PLOOGRSS2

CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

Particulars

Mote

Year ended March 31

EIIZ‘S 024
(& dn lakha)
INCOME
| Revenne from operations ) 1203335 10,315,101
I Other income 28 LE1.6H 305
I Total income (F+ 1) 12,215.03 1,345,106
EXPENSES
Cogl of materials consumed 26 1.836.07 210317
Purchase of stock-im=trade 30 304,23 420077
Changes in inventories of finished goods and stock-in-trade 3l [ELFEL! (334,75}
Employvie benefits expense 32 541741 343227
Finance costy 33 £k.467 R
Drepreciation dnd amortisalion oxpenss 34 49750 214,13
Oither expenses 33 4,830,035 3. 840048
IV Total expenses 13.438.602 10.27%.58
Voo Profity (loss) before exceptional items and tax (111-1V) 11,223.59) 65,58
Y1 Exceptional items - -
VI Profit/ (loss) before max (V- Y1) {1,223 59 65,50
VIIT Tax expense
{1} Current fax
- Related to curmrent vear 122,00 13].97
- Related o prior years 52.40 -
{in) Deforred mx {2.08) {100,306}
IX  Profit! (loss) for the year after tax (VII-VII) iliﬂﬁ.'ﬁm [Sﬁ,ﬂa
X OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
A (8 Beewes chat will pot be reclassiffed to profiv or loss
Remeasitement g (loss b on defined beneht plin {1311} {32.44)
fiip fneome rax refating to items the above 341 5000
i) Fremes that may be veclassifivd to profic or foss
Currency tronshtation ditferences {3039 FLEC
TOTAL OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME LR 54.56
Xl TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD (IX+X) {1.464.99) i L.46)
I, Non Cantrollmg Imterest 7401 Gl 42
X Equity holders of the parent {1,539 00) (6T 88}



XII Earnings per equity share:

Basic and diluted EPS
Mommnal value of equity share (3}

Material accounting policy information

The accompanying Notes form an integral part of the financial statements
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¥7
(11,0d1) (051}
AL L0
2

Per our repert attached to Balance Sheel

For G. Joseph & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn. No, 0063105

Raphael Sharon
Partner
M. No. 233286

Drate: 2oth May 20235
Place: Athani

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
of Kerala Ayvwrveda Limited

. Anil Kumar
[Hirector
THMM: 226353

Vivek Sundar KT Gearge
CEQ CFQ

Utkarsh Singh
Director

DIN: 9244856

Privanka Gangwar
Company Secretary
Mlem Mo, - FIZ378
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KERALA AYURVEDA LIMITED
CIN: L24233KL1992PLCIN06592

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

Year ended March 31,

Particulars
2025 2024

(i laklis)

A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net profit' (loss) before tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss (1,223.59) 05,58
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amorisation cxpenses 4497.50 21413
Farr value sdjustments 0,68 (1AR)
Exchange differences (1IR3 85) (14.36)
Finance vosts 408 .67 G350
[nterest income and other non-cash income 1.49 (14213
ESOP expense 062146 -
Allowanee for expected credit loss 20.83 4286
Provision for gratwiry, leave cncashment and bonus B4 73.51
Operating profit before working capital changes 218.05 969.54
Adiuztments for fincreasel’ decvease @ operafing asses

[nventoncs (6H.83) (300.64)
Trade receivables (20E.72) (473.7H
Onher linoneial assets 190,56 {75.93)
Other assets [299.530) (34.47)
Adfustments for increase! (decrease) in operating liafilites

Trade payables {105.46) (133.23)
Other financial Habiliies 286.60 (17,113
Other current lsbilities 729.24 26, 83
Provisions {6 1) 47 i
Cash generated from operations HER.05 8.6
[meome ax (204.74) (104.41)
Met cash Mow from operating activities 4583.31 {96.15)

B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchaze of property, plant amd equiptment and intangible assets (1.332.532) {108.23)
Acguisition of investments - -
[nerease {decrcase) n loan to subsidiarnes {14]1.41) 49,51
Interest income wnd other non-cash income (3.49) 14.21
Proceeds on sale of property, plant and eguipment 087 016

Net cash used in investing activities i1.476.85) 145.36)



Hersa Ayurveds LTD

C  CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

[nterest paid {48.67) (603 50)
[ncrease/{decrease) in borrowing {B30.63) {200.72)
Proceeds from msue of cquity shanes 281501
[mcrease/{decrease in bease linbilitics 29083 (27.46)
Met cash used in financing activities (948.45) 1.983.33
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (1.942.02) 1.541.53
Opening balance of cash and cash cquivalents 2.280.93 439,10

3391 225093

Closing bulance of cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises of
a) Balance with banks

In eurrent aceount 32570 227158
Depasits with maturity of less than 3 months
b} Cheques, drafts on hand 0.1k5 741
&) Cash on hand 1347 223
3389 2.2580.92
Notes are an integral part of the financial statements
Per our report attached to Balance Sheet
For G. Joseph & Associates For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants of Kerala Avurveda Limited
Firm Regn. MNo. 0063105
Raphael Sharon Dir. Anil Kumar Utkarsh Singh
Partner Drirector Director
M.No, 233286 DIN: M0226353 DIN: 9244896
Vivek Sundar KT George Privanka Gangwar
Date: 26eh May 2025 CEQ CFO Company Secretary

Plaga: Athani Mem Mo, - F12378
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KERALA AYURYEDA LIMITED
(CI%: L24XI3K L1 992PLCR06592)

STATEMENT QF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

AEQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

(% i ekl
Changes in equity | Balance ny
Balance ws ap April 1, 2024 shaire capital wt Murch
during the year A1, 2025
1,205 25 1.203.25
1,203.25 - 1,203,235
Changes In cquity | Balanee as
Balamece s ar April L 1023 share capital at March
during the year 3L, 2024
105557 147 0k 1. 203.25
1.055.57 147,68 1.205.25
B OTHER EQUITY FF i detdihind
Particulnrs g “'-‘*I*'""“ e S“rl'"‘.“‘ Tatalpthie
Securitles prembom Capital Gremeral S.I:III ¢ hased FOTR Ruta!nrd equity
TEELTVE reserve | pnyment reservi CHrmings
Halamce as ot April 1, 2024 FHIL 4K 4542 17.9% = {LA61.TR) 101300
Aadpustieits for prsor pereod dlens 221020 (LATI03Y (13501
Hestated balance as at April 1, 2024 JHIZ48 4542 17.04 - 220.12 (24371 G6L.29
Prerniimm on ssie of equiny shires -
Profit or loss for the year {539 LAG69.96) {1.529.35)
LSO granted duning the yveor h22Eh (22 w6
Remeasurement gmn/ {fosst on defised
benetil plans {9, T {970
| Balanee as at March 31, 2025 4542 17.9% w21 Rh 161.73 (i, 91437) {253.90}
i i Reserves and Su‘rplus Tistal otler
Seenvitiei ptaminn Capital General Share based FOTR Retimed vty
FEREPYE reserve | pavement reserve eErnings
Balance as at April 1, 2023 1145158 A45.42 17.94 {70653 (497,98}
Addjusnmieads for prior period items 14212 (L3831 {1430 09)
Restated balanee as ar April 1, 2023 1,145.15 45.42 17.9% - 142.12 13,257 54 (1.937.17)
Premium on issue of eguity shares RT3 2A6T.33
Profit or loss for the vear T9.00 (12243 {43.43)
Remeuzurement gain {loss) on defined
Benelit plans (2444} (2444
Balamce as ar March 51, 2024 3 H1Z48 d5.42 17,98 - 12102 {3.434.71) hh2.29

MNotes are an integral part of the financinl statements

Fer our report attached to Balance Sheet

For G Joseph & Associaics
Chartered Acoountants
Firm Repn. No, 006305

For upd on behall of RBoard of Directors

of Keraln Avurveds Limited

Raphael Sharon I3, Anil Kumur Uikarsh Singh
Puriner Drircctor Drirector
M.Ma. 233286 DM (226353 [EM: 9244850
Vivek Sundar KT George Privanka Gangwar

Drate: 26th biay 2025
Place: Adhans

CEQ

CFO Company Secretary

Mem Mo, - FI237H
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Hersla Ayurveds LTD
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Particulars

Asat March 21,
2025 1024

INVESTMENTS

(i} Non-current

hher investments - quoted fnvesiments - measured at FYTPL
2500 equuty shares of 22 each fully pad up in Canara Bank Lid.

Ehher Ervestimtenes = mnigioted TRvesimeny - measiored of cost
14 Exquity Shares of T10,000 each in Confederntion for Ayurvedis Renaisance Keralwm Pyve Lud

LOANS

i) Non-turrent
Unsecured, Considersd goed
Loan to subsidisries {net of credit loss allowance)

i} Current
Loan to subsidisrics

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
i) Non-current
Term deposits with banks
Secunty deposiis

diy Current
Security deposits
Orher ndvances

Interest receivable

Oithers

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (NET)
[reterred tax asscts
Deterred tax lralities

{TIn Lakhs)

112 290
263 263
4.85 5.53

2,332.54 20H15,29

2,332.54 2.005.29

I6.75
3] 95 37730
161.95 39405

(.30 -
x13 1801
5528
1384 104,71
19,54 178.00

S0H2 00142
(33.25) (118.35)
477.57 472.08




{A) The balanee of deferved tax assets comprises temporary differences atteibutable to:

Particulars Avat 8l ;‘::EE:’:: Récousied I:;:::ili
L
April, 2024 X in OC1 325
PPE and itungihle asscts 2429 (14107 - {11677
Richt of Tse Assels [ehef ) 11.11 - 133.33)
Instruments at FVTPL e 018 - (0,513
Security deposits it {1,530 - |.35
Inventories Ed.04 (B4, 04} . .
Provision for gruturty 143,23 I8.17 341 16451
Frov for PL encashment 258 (.01 - .64
Lease habilmy 46349 {1914} - 27.25
Curmied Tordwarded losses and unahorbed deptecustion - - - -
MAT credit entitlement 180.93 44 81 230,74
ESOP 1o emplovees 16194 - 16194
Trade receivibles -ECL 14.04 .41 - Iu4s
Delerred Tax Assels (net) 47208 208 341 47787
_ Asgrog | Reovwmised | o o gniceq| ATt
Particolars April. 2023 | Profit or in OCI March
By Loss 2024
PPE and intangihle assets 13.5% 10.72 - 24,29
Right of Use Assets {55.55) 11.11 (4d.44)
[nstruments at FVITL {1151} (39 - {lLak)
Security deposits 202 (032} - [.70
Inventlories 404 - - 82404
Provision for gratuiry 13742 (2,10} H.00 14323
Prov for PL encashment 1.58 - 2.5%
Lease linhiliny 53.53 (7141 - 40.3¢
Camed fordwarded losses and unahorbed |’J:I:EI-F1‘.‘1,:[}IIJIEII! - - - -
MAT credil enttlement 174,66 27 - 18003
Trade receivables- ECL 22.90 11.14 3404
Deterred Tax Assets (net) 434.87 19.21 8.0k 47208
{B) Reconcilation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by domestic tax rate applicable in india
sr. Mo, Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
1A Profiviloss) Betore Tax {1,223 50 H5. 58
(B} Indizn Statutery Corporate Tox Rate 26%% 0%
() Tax on sceountimg profif (318.13) I7.005
{3 Tax on expense not tax deductible - (TS
Tax effect on non-taxable income - xS
Etteet on deferred i due to change i ingome tax rae -
Losses on which deferred tax is not recognised -
Tmpatet due o differential lax tates in respective countries - -
Carry Forward Lusses of earlier vears -
Reversal of DTA of earlier permod -
Tax refated W earlier periods 5240 -
Tax effect on various other ftems 434,05 10522
{ E) Fax: Expense recognised dunng the year 17231 2160




Warsda Ayurveds LTD Carporate Ousrdew | &.nanIQIStn:emantsJ

Asat March 31,
s 2024

Particulars

(% o Lakfisl
13 INCOME TAX ASSETS (NET)

Advance tax and twy deducted! collected ar source 1840 5726
Less: Current tax liabilities {6.27)
Met current tax assets! (liabilities) 18,49 099

14 OTHER ASSETS
i} Non-current

Considered gond
Sales tax deposits 047 047
0.47 .47

i) Current

Considered good
Prepad expenacs #.74 X582
Advanee for purchases 12301 ELTN]
Addvance to employvess 48,73 |7 86
GET input tux credil recervable 148,09 a5.01
Others 4230 I %03

Orthier Advances L1US
48241 193.22
15 INNENTORIES

Finished Goods #4115 THT.03
Cioods m transil z 4.01
Furnace il 300 (.91
Pacimg Material #6220 371
Faw Material 117,80t (1743
Stores & Spares {85 207
Work in Progress 246,50 15].62

I%WFS,-&] IIZIﬁ,TH

16 TRADE RECEIVABLES
i) Current
Unsecured, Considered good
Trade receivables 93017 1. 742 28
Less: Allowunce for doubtful trsde receivables

1.930.17 1.742.28




(i) Trade Receivable Apeing Schedule (from the due date of payment):  in lokhs

Harasla Ayurveds LTD .fr-nnr'-:lcll Stn:emanTE__J

Particulars Lesthas eMomthe-- oo 0 2 3Veary, Morsthan o Not dug Total
6 Months 1 Year 3 Years

A al 316t March, 2025

Considered Cioad Bdh45 20604 In44 5447 TRETT 1.930.17
Sigmifleant increase in
credil risk

Considered Poubiful -

Disputed: -
Considered Good -
Sigmmifiemnt merease in
credit risk
Conzidersd Doubtful

£l C i
Gross Carrying Amount 846.45 206.04 16,44 5447 78677 - 000 1,930.17

Loss Allowance -

Weighted Average Loss
Rate (in %) L RTTIRA NI RT3 LRI .00 %% 0.00%: 0,005 0,00 %,

As at March 31, 2024

Undisputed:

Considerad Good T81.26 132.24 1M 07 1743 Th5.28 1.742.18
Siginificant imcrease in
creilil risk
Considered Droubtiul &

Disputed: =
Comsidered Good =
Siginificant imorease
credit nsk
Considered Doubiful -

Gross Carrying Amount

THLIG 132.24 10607 17.43 TO5.28 - 1.742.28

Loss Allowance

Woeiphted Average Loss
Rate (in %) A% W %% 0% 1% 1'% L 0




Note:

{1} The Compuny does nat charge mterest on trade receivables.

Particul As at March 31,
articulars 2025 224
{ii} Allowance for doubtful debis 7T dn Lakeies)
Openimg balance
Add: Allowanees danng the vear -
Closing balance - -
17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Balance with banks
In current sccount 08,78 #2694
Deposits with matunty of [2s2 than 3 months - 1 AMLOD
Credit Card Collection Due 16,87 5175
Cash on hand 13.17 2.23

33891 1.180.92

18 ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE
Land classified as held for sale 10,10 -
Tl 10 -




A at March 31,

Particulars
2025 2024
(% n lakhs)
19 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised Capital
1, 50,00,000 (Previous year ; 1.50,00,000) equity shares of 310/~ each 150000 1, 30008
Total 150000 1504000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up
1, 20132451 (Previous year ;. [L20032 451 ) equity shares of 210/~ each |.203.25 1.203.25
Fully paid-up
Total 1,203.25 1,203.25
Foot notes :
a) Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting
As al
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Number of . Number of . }
Equity Shares shares <inJakts shares S Takhis
Al the beginning of the year 1,20,32,451 120325 105,535,670 1,055.57
Issued during the year - - 14.76,781 147.64
Al the end of the vear 1,20.32 451 1,203.25  1,20,32.451 1,203.25
b} The Company has only one class of equily shares having a par vilue of T1- per share. Each holder of equity
shares is entitled to one vote per share. The company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. No
dividend has been proposed in the current vear, In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of
equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assels of the Company aller distribution of all preferential
amounts, The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.
¢) Shares held by holding company and its subsidiaries and associates
As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
MNumber of Mumber of
Equity Shares ilinrey Tin lakhs shinren T in lakhs
Holding Company
Katra Holdings Ltd, the holding company 64,93 435 53.97% 64,03 435 53.07%
64,93,435 33.97% 04,93.435 53.97%
d) Details of shareholders holding more than 3% shares in the Company
As al
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Number of o i takhs POl o i takhs
Names shares shares
Katra Holdings Lid, the holding company 6493435 53.97% 64.93.435 53.97%
Porinju Velivath 6,23,000 5.18% £.23,000 F.1R%:

©4,93,435 53.07% 64,093,435 53.97%

Karsla Ayurveds LTD I’ Corporete Ovariew J [ Financlol statemants |
et it el e re =i e e il



¢} Disclosure of Sharcholding of Promoters

As al 31st March, 2025

= - - ry
) Mo urbhul_'es at Change during Mo of Shares at % of Total o J.Ehange
SN0 Promoter name the beginning of the end of the i during the
the year Shares -
the year VA year
I Kutra Holdings Lid 4,03 435 - fd B3, 435 S3.87% (%
2 Foatra Phyvtochem { [ndia) Private 5,55 ({10 - 5,55 (WM} 4.61% 0%
Lid
Ti.48.435 - Tih48.435 SH.SH% -
As at Alst March, 2024
N 5 ) 5 '."
‘ o of Lhal":s at Change during No of Shares at 5% of Total o f.jhangr
5.Ma Promoter name the beginning of the end of the during the
the vear Shares
the vesr vear year
1 Keatra Holdings Lid 04,545,435 - ol 3435 33.97% (i
2 [atra Phyvtochem { India) Private 5.55 ({1} - 5,55 (HHI 4601 % 0%
[
Tih48.435 - T0.48.435 SRR =
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Hersa Ayurveds LTD

r Corporete Dvervisw J .:-r-ﬂur'-:ielﬂb:l';ememsd_]

As at March 31,

Particulars
2025 2024
i€ dn Lakfs)
OTHER EQUITY
Securities Premiun
Opening balunce 3.812.48 1.145.15
Change during the year 2.667.33
Closing balanee 3.812.48 381248
Capital reserve
Opening balance 4542 4542
Change during the year
Closing balance 45.42 45.42
General Reserve
Crpeming balance | 7.9% 17.98
Change during the year
Closing balange 17.98 17.98
General Reserve ESOP
Opening balance - -
Change during the year 42286
Closing balance 02286 -
Retained earnings
Opening halance (3.0]3.66) (3424497
Correction of prior period errors as per Ind AS B b6 27794
Profit/ Loss for the vear (1,395.90) {56.02)
Bemeasurement gaind/(loss) on defined benefit obligations (9. 70) (24.44)
Closing Balance (463310 {3,227 .50
Allocation to NCI Agram (281.22) (207.21)
FCTR
Opening halance 22112 142:12
Correction of prior period errors as per Ind AS ¥
Frofit for the year (59.39) T9.00
Remeasurement gain/(loss ) on defined benefit obligations
Closing Balance 161.73 221.12
(253.90) 662.29
BORROWINGS
iy Non- current
Secured
Term loan [rom Banks BL4.50 1,057.32
Term loan from vihers @762 991.37
1,786.12 1,048.70




12

i) Current
Secured - Repayable on demand

Working capital demand loan 535.79 B9 56
Unsecured- Repayvable on demand
Loan amount payable to related parties 407525 436903
Current maturities of long-term borrowings AV TRYE 200.51
4.811.04 5.379.10
Secured Lnng Term Bo rrowings & In Lakhs)
Name of Lender Nature of Sceurity Ratyal Monthly Noof
Inferest Installments Imstallrment

2od charge on all current assets and 2nd
charge on mortgage on land

SBM BANK (INDIA) LIMITED 0.25% 17 il

Warking Capital Loan
The Company has filed quarterly returns or statements with the banks relating to the sanctioned working capital
facilities, which are in agreement with the beaks of account other than those as set out below (in ¥}

Aggregale working Amount disclosed as Amimt as
, TR Cduarter o per books of  Difference {in Reasons for
MName of the bank capital limits per quarterly return/ ; i
; Ended ; account(in lakhs) ditference
sanctioned (in lakhs) statement{in lakhs)
lakhs)
i 550,00 Jun-24 216476 227808 (113.32) Primarily due to
¢ a3 unbilled revenue
SBM BANK . recopnised an
550.00 Sep-24 7.594 88 2,634,569 {39.81) &
(INDIA) LIMITED i provisional basis
SHM BANK : along with
250,00 - 2,824, ) A
(INDIA) LIMITED 3 Dec-24 A2403 308804 (263.91) Cobtaterhant ar
SAM BANK agoounts as per
5 al- .2 . 2.- =}
(INDIA) LIMITED 550,00 Mar-25 337884 3245490 132,94 IND AS 8
LEASE LIABILITIES
(i) Non-current
Lease labilities 435.83 1450
435.83 145.00
{i) Current
Leasze liabilitjes 3341 3341
33.41 33.41

{Refer Notetidn)
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23 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
i) Non-current

Security Deposit T 13,00
Rent Deposit 075 43.56
16.75 56.56
i) Current

Payables to employecs 1133 147.21
Rent payable 19,36 18,50
Other expenses payable 127.05 3394

Deposil for franchisee from custamers 273.74
Others 4.65 9.27
535.33 208492

24 PROVISIONS
i) Non=current

Towards Granunty 517.34 469,249
Towards Employee benefits 33.59 3134
550.93 500.63
ii) Current
Towards Bonus 5147 5438
Tewards Compensated absences - 1664
Towards Gratuity E4.00 q91.08
Towards Expenses 1692 20,39
Towards tax 124,45 115.15
176.91 198.14
15 TRADE PAYABLES
iy Current
a) Towards micro, small and medium enterprises 3522 11051
b} Towards others 54426 574.44
57948 684.95
Trade Payable Aging Schedule {from the due date of payment);
Particulars AR D b B3 e than 3years  Unbilled Not due Total
year VEArs  years
As al March 31, 2025
Disputed:
MSME -
Others -
Others:
MSME 3522 3522
Others 525.85 1.30 0.45 1666 54426

561.07 1.30 1145 16.66 - - 57948




As at March 31, 2024

Disputed:
MSME -
Others -
Others:
MEME 110.5] 11051
Others 48865 19.74 14,63 a141 574.44
599.16 19.74  14.63 51.42 - - 684,95
Particulars Asatharch 3,
2025 2024
6 OTHER CURRENT LIABRILITIES
Payables towards statutory dues and others 202.63 18547
Advance from customers 1,336.51 1.,520.31
Employes dues payvable 16,44 1464
Advance for Land H14.00 -
Oither Pavables 1.74 LAl

2.561.32 1.832.09




27

28

29

3

&l |

For the year ended March 31

PARTICULARS 2025 5024
(¥t Lakhs)
REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Sale of products 7.151.70 662101
Sale of services 5.291.33 4,168.81
Other operating Income 116.46 35,74
[Less : Indirect taxes (526.15) (510.45)
12,033.35 10,315.11
OTHER INCOME
Interest income
- From bank deposits 33.49 16.42
- Others (36.98) (Z2.21)
Exchange gain on restatement (net) | B5_H5 14.36
Crain on financial instrument measared at FVTPL {0.68) 148
181.68 305
COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED
A. Raw materials
Opening stock of materials 12390 F0.16
Add:- Purchases 1.503.31 1,751.94
Lessi- Closing stock ol materials {130.32) {123.90)
fA) 1 58688 1,688,240
B. Packing materials
Cipening stock of materials 8371 119,11
Add- Purchases 351.69 369,57
Lessi- Closing stock of materials iBn.21) (83.71)
(B 34414 404.97
Cost of Materials Consumed (A} + (B) 1,936.07 2,103.17
PURCHASE OF STOCK-IN-TRADE
Purchazes of medicmes 364.23 420.77
364.23 420.77
CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED
GOODS AND STOCK- IN- TRADE
Anventorics at the end of the year:
Finished goods SR5.73 54930
Woark-in-progress 24650 251.62
832.23 200,92
Inveniories at the beginning of the year:
Finished goods 54931 262.63
Work-1n-progress 25162 203.53
800,92 466,16
Net {increase) | decrease in stock {31.31) (334.75)




32 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
Salaries and wages (Refer Notedd3(1))
Contribution to provident fund
Ciratuity
Staft welfare expenses
ESOP henefit expenses { Refer Motesd3(2))

33 FINANCE COSTS
Interest on borrowings
Interest on lease liahilities
Oither borrowing costs

4,258.1% 3.056.50
133.37 103.26
5.20 6.24
407.80 266.27
62286 ;
542741 3.432.27
245,64 441.22
18.79 22.26
144.24 140,02
408.67 603.50




For the year ended March 31

PARTICULARS 2025 2024
(¢ in Lakfu)
34 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE
On property, plant and equipment 172.74 11028
On right of use assets 26268 42,73
On intangible assets 62,08 6].12
497.50 214.13
35 OTHER EXPENSES

Power and luel 156.59 178.27
Electricity expenses 37.53 5662
Repairs and maintenance- buildings 51.17 50.05
Repairs and mainienance- machinery - 21.11
Repairs and maintenance- others RIS 42,97
Job work costs 134,54 283,37
Other manufbcluring expenses 03,22 47.16
Insurance 7.36 10.39
Rates and taxes 53.44 44 26
Rent expenses 34998 258,72
Travelling and conveyance 5K.31 77.95
Printing and stationery 26,04 2845
Postage and welephone 15.73 20.31
Secretarial expenses 23.17 72.52
Administrative expenses 1.337.40 1.175.85
Freight expenses 19714 149,58
Legal and Professional charges LT8R 7546
Pavment to auditors (Refer Note#38) 7.50 4,00
Treatment expenses 231.86 206,79
Director's sitting fees 7.74 11.50
Research and development expenses 1258 [5.25
Advertisement und sales promotion expenses L1893 22813
Travelling expenses of sales staff 228,42 206,22
Commission and discount - 40.20
Other selling and distobution cost 666,05 475.77
Miscellaneous cxpenses 100440 50.57

4.836.05 3.840.48

Harsla Ayunveds LTD r Carporete Ovandew _J .fr-nnr'-:lcllﬂtn:emanTE__FJ



KERALA AYURVEDA LIMITED

MNotes Torming part of the financial statements For the year ended 31 March, 2025

Note 36: Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

Contingent Liahilities

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt
Income Tax Matters { Refer Notes (1) 1o (iv) below)
Customs Duty (Refer note (v) helow)

Commercial Matters

Bank Guaranice

Commitments

{a) Capital commitments { Total value)
Less: Capital advance
Total

(B Other commitments

Note 37: Earnings per share

Basic - Earning per share has been computed as under:
Profit/{loss) for the year attributable to the owners of the company

Welghted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
year! period

Face value per share

Earnings per share - Basic

Diluted - Earning per share has been computed as under:
Profit/(loss) for the year atinibutable to the owners of the company

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding durng the
vear’ period

Face value per share

Earnings per share - Diluted

Note 38: Remuneration paid to auditors

Payments 1o the auditors comprises (net of service fax input
credit, where applicable):

As anditors - Statutory audit & Tax Audil

For company law matters

For management services

Reimbursement of expenses

Total

Tin lacs

As at 31 March, 2025

As at 31 March, 2024

As at 31 March. 2025

As at 31 March, 2024

For the year ended 31

For the year ended 31

March, 2025 March, 2024

(1.395.90) {56.02)

120.32 10910

10,00 10.00
{11.60) (0.51)
{1.395.90) {56.02)

12545 109,10

10,00 10010
{11.13) (0.51)

For the year ended 31
March, 2025

For the vear ended 31
March, 2024

7.50

7.50




KERALA AYURVEDA LIMITED

MNotes forming part of the financial statements For the year ended 31 March, 2025

MNote 39: Related party disclosures

{a) Names of related parties and nature of relationship™®:

(I} Parent Company:

(1) Kev Management Personnel and ther relatives

(1T} Enterprises in which KMP or their relatives are

having conirol or significant influence;

Katra Holdings Ltd

Dr. K. Anilkumar { Whole-time Director)

Mr. Vivek Sunder (Chiel Execulive Officer)
Mr, George K. T. (Chief Financial Officer)
Mrs. Jvothi Gulecha (Company Secretary)

All Seazon Herbs Pt Lid
Aarshaveda Wellness Private Limited
KARE Foundation

Katra Phviochem India Pvt Lid

Katra Holding Pvt Lid

Mason & Summers Leisure Pvt Ltd

Related parties have been wdentified by the management and relied upon by the auditors,
*Related parties with whom the company has transactions during the period

{b) Transactions with related parties:

Sale of goods or services
- Aarshaveda Wellness Private Limited
- KARE Foundation
- Katra Phytochem India Pvi Lid
- Katra Holding Pyt Lid

Purchase of goods or services
- All Season Herbs Pyt Lid
- katra Phytochem India Pvi Lid
- Mason & Summers Leisure Pyt Lid

Borrowings availed
- Katra Holding Pvt Ltd
- Katra Phytochem India Pvi Lid

Borrowings repaid
- Katra Holding Pt Lid

Interest paid
- Katra Holding Pvt Lid
- Katra Phyvtochem India Pat Ltd

Issue of shares
- Katra Phytochem India Pyt Lid

Tin lacs

For the year ended For the yvear ended
31 March. 2025 31 March. 2024

1.70
0.29
90.20
41.15

36.65
221.23
7157

300,00
150,00

H3.49

(1.39
2543

1252

L9 .44
11.5%

115,75
248 G

53.50

B5.19

(94,92



(c) Closing Balances :

Tin lacs

As at 31 March,

As at 31 March,

2025 2024
Trade receivables
- Aarshaveda Wellness Private Limited .55 1.14
Trade payables
- All Season Herbs Pyt Litd 7.23 622
- Kaatra Phytochem India Pvt Ltd 75.33 B.ol
Borrowings
- Katra Holding Pvt Lid 295400 3 039,00
- Katra Phytochem India Pvt Ltd 1.099.76 1,325.00
{d) Remuneration to Key Management Personnel 106.53 Tid8
Zin lacs
— For the year ended For the year ended
31 March, 2025 31 Muarch, 2024
ia} Short-term employee benefits 1655 24.99
ib) Post-employment benefits - -
{c} Termination benefits - -
(o) Cither long-term emploves benefits - -
(e} Share based payments - -
Total 106.53 24.99

Note 40: Segment Reporting

Operaling segmenls are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating
Decision Maker (CODM),

The board of directors of the Company has been dennfied as CODM. CODM evaluates the Company's performance,
allocates resources based on analysis of various performance indicators of the segme'nts as disclosed below and takes
strategic decisions. Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker, (CODM),

Primary segment:

Operating segments are defined as components ol an enterprise for which discrete financial information is available
that 15 cvaluated regularly by the chief operating decision maker, in deeiding how to allocate resources and assessing
performance. The Company has only one reportable business segmient 1.¢, ‘Full-spectrum Ayvurvedic wellness',

Secondary segments (By zeography):

Tin lacs
Particulars For the vear ended 31 March, 2025
Domestic Outside Total
Revenue from location of customers 837813 365522 12.03335
Carrying amount of segment non-current assets * 5,622.54 - 5,622.54
T in lacs
Particulars For the year ended 31 March, 2024
Domestic Cutside Taotal
Revenue from location of customers 7.770.97 2.544 14 1031511
E‘aJTyinE amount of segment non-current assets ¥ 3,333.62 - },331.62

Mo single customer contributes more than 10% or more of the Company’s total revenue for the year ended March 31,
2025 and 31 March, 2024,
* Non-current assets exclude financial assets and deferred tax assets.
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KERALA AYURVEDA LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financiasl statements For the vear ended 31 March, 2025

Note 42: Financial Risk Management and Capital Managemeni
Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company's financial risk maenagement i3 an ntegral pant of how to plan and execute s busingss strategy. The Company's
financial nsk manegement policy s set by the Bosed, The Compuny's business activities expose it 10 & varety of financial nsks,
ey liguidity risk, inorket risks and eredit nsk. The key isks and mitigating actions ore also placed belore the Board of Dhrectors of
the Company, The Company’s nsk mansgentent policice are established w identify and analyse the risks Faced by the Company, 1o =et
appropriste risk limis and controls and to monitor nsks and adherence to Timits, Risk management policies and systems ane reviewed
reeularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities,

Murket risk is the nisk of loss of future camings, fair values or foture cash Tows that may resalt from an adverse change m the pnce of
& financial instroment. The valoe of a finoncial instrument may change s 2 resolt of changes in the inlerest rates, forelgn currency
exchange rates, equity prices and other market changes that affeet market risk sensstive instruments, Market visk is anributable to all
market risk sensitive fintncial instruments meluding investments and deposits, recevables, pavablies gnd loans,

The Company manages the risk through the Finance department that provides assurunce that the Company’s financial risk sctivities sre
governad by gppropriate policies and procedures ond that financial msks are identifed, mensured and managed in accordance with the
Company's policies and risk objectives. The Finence deperiment activities are designed o:

-protect the Company's financial results and position from financial risks
-maintuim market sks within acceptable parameters, while optimising returns; and
sprotect the Company's fnancial mvestments, while maximising retums.

The Finance depariment provides funding for the Company's operstions. In addition to guidelines and exposure limits, o system of
authorities and extenswve mdependent reporting covers all major aress of sctivity.

NAGEMENT OF LICGUIDITY RIS

Ligquidity risk is the risk that the Company will face in meeting 118 obligations assoviated with s Onancial Dabilities. Company’s
spproach o managing lquidity is 1o ensure that ot will have sufficient funds 10 meet s liabilities when due without meourring
unaceeploble losses. A material and sustuned shorfall i our cesh Mow could wndermine the Company's credit rating sod impair
investor confidence,

The Company mamtained o cautions lunding strateey, with o posilive cash balance for major part of the year ended 31 March, 2025
and throughout the period ended 31 March, 2024, This was the resull of exisiting business model of the Company and furiding
arrangement from the mvesting pariners.

The Company's board of directors regulardy moniters the rolling forecasts 0 ensure i has sufficient cash on an on-going basis (o meet
opcrational needs. Anv short lerm surplus cash generated by the operating entities, over and ahave the smoumt required for working
LH‘pI!Hl manapement and other uP;mtmml requirements, 15 retained as cash and cash equivalents (to :lm.. extent reguired) and any

LT I L e e L | . SEICSSY [ | SRS S Pea B B

F:pnsurc to liquidity risk

The following are the contractual maturities of finsncial labilities ot the reporting date: The amounts are gross and undiscounted. and
i lude estimated intercst payments and exclude the impact of netting agreements.
Muaturity patterns.of other financial liabilifies

2 in lacs
As at 31 March, 2025 Upto 12 miontlis Doy ond 12 Total
manths
Trads Payahle 75948 - 37948
Oifver Financial Labality {Current and Non-Current) 53533 16,75 55208
Short-Tenm Borrowings 535.79 B 535,79
Long-Term Borrowings 4,275.25 1, 786,12 H061,37
Lease Linbilities 13.41 43583 469,24
Tatal 5954916 2.238.70 B, 197,946
As it 31 March, 2024 Upts W nioiitns 2 omd 12 Total
minnths
Trade Payahle TIE 36 - 718,360
Oiher Financial Liabality {Current and Non-Current) ST 56,560 26548
Short-Term Boorowings FATRE0 - 5,178.549
Long-Tenm Borrowings 200.51 204870 224021
Lease Liahilities 13.41 145 (M} 178,41
Tutal £,339.79 2. 250.26 B.500.04




(Bl MANAGEMENT OF CREDIT RISK
Credir risk is the risk of financial loss 1o the Company 103 Customer of counter-pany Gails o meel its contraciial ohligations,

Trade receivables:

The Company's exposure o ercdin risk 13 influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. Credit nsk 5 managed
through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuowsly monitering the credil worthiness of customers o which the
Company grants credit terms i the normal course of husiness.

(Oiher Mnancisl asseis:

The Company mamtains exposure in cash and cosh equivalents, term deposits with banks, Loans, Secunity deposits and olher financial
asgets, The Compiny has concentrated s main activities with & fimited nomber of counter-partics (banky which have secure eredit
ratings, o reduce ths viske Indvvadoal osk lonits are st for cach counter-party based on financial position, credil cating. and past
expenicnee, Credit [tmits and concentration of expesures are actively monitored by the Company's Fimance departmaent,

(C) MANAGEMENT OF MARKET RISK

The Company's size and operations result in it being exposed o the following market risks that snse from 5 use of financial
InSErme nis:

* Farcign currency risk;

» prive risk, and

The shove msks may affect the Company’s ancome and expenses, gr the valie of s financial instroments. The objective of the
Company™s management of merket risk is to maintain thiz risk within gcoeptable prrameters, while optimising retums. The Company’s
exposure o, and mansgement of, these ngks is explained below.

i1} Foreign Currency Risk:
The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk ansng from varows currency exposures on aceount of sale and procurement of
goods and services, primarily with respeet to US Ballor

The Compenyv's management regular review the corrency sk, However at this stige the Company has not entered into eny forwand
exchange contracts or other aresngements wo cover this risk g5 the msk 15 not material



(1) Interest Rate Risk;

Interest rate risk is the nsk that the fair valoe or futore cash Dows of 2 fnanciil instroment will fuctuate because of changes in moarkei
interest eates, The Company’s exposere to market risk for changes in interest rates relates (o variable rate borrowings from finsneisl
institutions. The Company's fixed rate borrowings from are carried . at anwetised costoand are not subyect to interest rate sk since
neither the carrying amount nor the future cash Oow will fluchiate becawse of & change in market mierest rates

2 in lnes
As at 31 As af 31
Particulars March, 2025 March. 2024
Fixed rate borrowings 63T 16 742780
Varigble rate barrowings
Total Borrowings 059716 TAZTR

(T11) Pricing Risk:
There s nomatenal impact of pricmy n=k on the fnancial satements and the operations of the Company

Financial Instrument by catezory

The fair values of the Gnancial assels and labilines are included al the amount ot which the msirument could be exchanged in 2
current transaction between willing perties. The carrying amount Financial Assets and Laabilities 15 o reasoneble approvimation of foir
vaioe,

The following methods and assumpiions were used to estimato the fair values:

1, Fair value of trade receivables, cash, loans, other financial assets, trade payables and other finaneial labilites, spproximate their
carrying amounts larpely due to short term maturities of these instruments.

2, Finsncial instriments with fixed and vanable interest rates are evaluated by the Company based on parameters such as inleres! rates
and individual credit warthiness of the counterparty, Based on this evalustion, allowances ore taken o aceounl for expected losses of
these receivables: Accordingly, far value of such mstruments s not matenally different from thetr carrving smounts,

The fair values of secunty deposita were caleulated based on cash flows discounted wsing a current lending rate. They are classificd as
level 3 far values in the fair value hierarchy doe to the inclusion of unobservable nputs mcluding eounter party credi misk,

Categorization of financial assets and liabilities

in lacs
Particulars As at 31 March, 2025
Non-Current Current Tatal
Financial Assets measured st amortised cost
[vestment LR - 163
Trade receivables . 1.930.17 1.930.17
Cash and cash equivalents - 3391 33891
Loans 2,332.54 - 233254
Chihers hinancial ossets 3al.95 1%.54 35149
Other bank balances - = -
Financial Assets messured at Fair valoe through profit
or loss
Investments 222 - 222
2.699.35 2.288.62 4.987.97
Financial Liabilities at amortised cost
Trade payahles 37445 57948
Borrowings I, 780.12 481104 0,397 16
Lusse liabilities 435.83 33.41 465924
Ohther finaneial liabilities 1675 53533 S520%

2.I3R.70 5.959.26 E 19796







Particulars

As al 31 March, 2024

Financial Assels measured ol amortised cost
Imvestment

Trade receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Loans

Oher financial assets

Orther bank balances

inancial Assels measored at Fair value thr

Investmcenis

Financial Liabilitics at amortised cos
Trade payables
Borrowings
Lease liakilities
Oiher financial labilities

Non-Current Current Total
263 - 263
- 1,742 28 1, 742.28
- 2.280.92 FAR0L2
2.(HK5.29 - 200520
377.30 175,00 555,30
16.75 - 16.75
240 - 2.50
140487 4,201.20 B, 60607
- HR4.95 6#4.55
2048, 70 3300 TALT 80
145.04) 1141 17841
56.56 20892 26543
2.250,26 6,306,358 £.550.63

(D) CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital ineludes issued equity capital, and all other equity reserves attributable

tor the equity holders of the Company, The primary objective of the Company's capital mamagement 18 1o maximize the sharcholder

value,

The Campany manages its capital strocture ond mukes adjustments in light of chunges in cconomic conditions, business strategies and

future commitments, To maintain or adjust the capital structuare, the Company may ud_iu_-il the dividend payiment (o ghareholders, return

capital 1o shareholders o ssue new shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio. which 15 net debn divided by total

capital plus net debt. The Company includes wathin net debt, bocrowings less cash and cash equivalents,

T in lacs
. As at 31 As at 31
Particula
Artlentars March, 2025 March, 2024
Dorrowinges 6597 10 TAXTE
Less; Cash ond Cash Equivalent Fanul 228092
MNet debt (A) 6,258.25 S.146.47
Egquity Share Capital 1.203.25 120325
Oither Equity -253%.040 G2 20
Total capital (B) B49.35 1.865.54
Capital and net debt (C) T.207.60 701241
Gearing Ratio (A/T) BTed T3%%

In order to schieve this overall objective, the Company's capital management, amongst ather things, aims to mamtan investor, creditor

and market confidence and to sustain future development of the husiness.



KERALA AYURVEDA LIMITED
Mates forming part of the financial statements For the vear ended 31 March, 2025

Note 43: Employee benefits

43.1

43.2

In sccordomee with Ind A% - 1% Emplovee Benmefits. specified under Section 133 of the Companics Act, 2003 the
following disclosures are made:

The Company recopnssed T133 37 lacs (previows year: 103,26 lacsh for Provident Fund contributions i the Statement of
Profit and Loss, The contribulions peayable 1o these plans by the Company are ol rales specified o the roles of the
schoimes.

Defined Ivenelit plans:

The Company has an funded gratuty plan for qualifying employecs. The benefit pavable is calenloted as per the Payment
of Gramity Act, 1972, The henelit vests upon completion of five years of continuous service mnd once vested, it 1s payabic
to emplovees on reticement or on termimation of empleviment. In case of death while in service. the gratmiy is pavable
irrespective of vesting,

Actuarial pains ond fosses in respect of defined benefit plans are recognised in the fnuncial srtements theough other
comprehensive meoimne

Interest risk

A decrense m the bond inferest e will increase the plan linbility.,

Lomgevity risk

The present value of defined besefit plan liabaity is caleulated by reference o the best estimaie of the mortalicy of plan
purticipants both during smd after their emplovment. An increase i the life expectaney of the plan participents will
inerease the plan’s habalivy

Salary risk

Thie present valee of the defined benefit plan Hability is calouluted by reference to the futue salaries of plan participants
A suech, inanerease in the salary of the plan participant= will increase the plan's labiling.

The following tible set out the unfunded status of the defined henefit schemes and the amount recogmised in fingncial
statements

Movement in defined benelits ohlizations

T in lacs
Farkicilars Asat 3 As at 31 March,
March, 2025 2024

Opening defined benefit liability / (asset) (A) 34171 529.53
Drefined benefint Lighilivy! { Asset) assumed through Business Combination (B .
Current service cosi A 50 3560
Past service cost -
Intorest on net defimed benefit Habality £ (asset) 3932 36,73
Total expense recognised in profit or loss {C7) HIHH 7233
Amnount recognized in (0C] - Re-measurements during
the perind doe to
Actuarial lossi Gain) ariging from change i Anincal sssomplions 248 054
Actuarial loss/{Gain arising from chonge in denographic agsumpions - -
Actuanal loss{Ciam) ansing on aeceunt of experience adustment {7.7%) 21.83
Foreign Cumrency Translation Diflerence - -
Total amonnt recognized in ofher comprehensive income {1 12,08 31.37
Transfers (E}
Bunefits Paid {F) {62.26) (4151
Closing defined benefit liability (A+B+CHDHEHF) H26.03 591.71

Maovement in fair value plan of assets

As a3 As at 31 March.,

okl March, 2025 2024
Opening air value of plan assels (4) - -
Fair Value of Plan assers acquired through Business Combination ¢ B) - -

Emplover contributions - G
Interest om plan assets - -

Total expense recognised in profit or loss {C) = 4




Amount recognized in OCH - Re-measurements during
the period due to
Actunl return on plan assets less interest on plan assets - -

Total amount recognized in other comprehensive income (D) = *
Transfers {E)
Benefits Paid (F} - =

Clozing fair ¥alue of plan asseis (A+B+C+HE) - -

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations are as follows,

(A} India
[Mscount mte 6,70 7.20%
Salary escalation ERL BRI

{B) Qrutside India
Iscount rate NA MA
Sulary escslation MNA Na

The discount rate iz based on the prevailing market yields of Government securities as at the balance sheer date for the
estimated term of the obligations, The estimate of future salary increpses considered, takes into account the inMation,
seniority, promotion, increments and ether relevant factors such as supply and demand in the empleyment markets,

in kacs
Asat 31 As at 31 March
Particula )
Arhen March, 2025 2024
Present value of funded defined benefit ohligation 020,03 ST
Fair valuc of plan asscts - -
MNet Asset / (liability) arising from defined benefit obligation 61603 591.71
Effect ol asset ceiling
Met Defined Benefit Asset ! (Liability) recopnised 626,03 591.71
Sensitivity Analysis

Gratuity 15 & lump sum plan and the cost of providing these benefits s typically less sensitive to small changes m
demographic assumptions. The key actuaral assumphions to which the benefit ohlipation results are parbeularly sensitive
tor are discount rate and future salary escalation rate. The followang tables summarizes the impact on the reported defined
kenefit obligation at the end of the reporting period arising on aceount of an ingrease or decrease in the reported
assumplion by 30 basis points. These sensitivites have been caleulated o show the movement in defined benefil
pbiigation in isolation and assuming there are no other changes in market conditions at the accounting date. There have
been no changes from the previous periods in the methods and sssumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analyses,

Tim lacs
As at 31 March, 2025 As at 31 March, 2024
Particulars
Decrease Increase Decrease Increase
Change m rate of discounting (delta effect of == 0.5%) 3.35% S [ 3. 23% SER
Chamge in rate of salary increase (delta effect of +/- (.5%) =3, 08% 3.23% 30445 3.19%
Expected maturity analysis of the defined benefit plans in future years Tin lacs
Particulsrs Asar 31 Az at 31 March,
March, 2025 2024
For bst year (next annual reporting period) 75,08 G108
Between 2 to 5 years 311.81 2649 3K
Between 6 to 9 years 1282 23437
For 10th vear and beyond 408 37 460.75
Totnl expected payments 1,088.08 1.055.61

Weighted average duration of the defined benefit plan:

As al 31 Ay at 31 March,
March. 2025 024

Weighted average duration of the defined benefit plan (in years) 51 028



433 Emplovee Stock Option Plan

KAL Employee Stock Option Plan 2023 (“ESOP 20237} has been approved by the shareholders of the
Company through special resolution passed as on Annual general meeting held al 20th December, 2023, for
grant aggregating 6,606,640 Employees stock option (“ESOPs/Option(s)") of the Company. The ESOP 2023
covers 3 grants of options to the specilied employees covered under ESOP 2023, with a vesting period of |

vear and exercise period of 5 years,

Grant Opfion |
Particulars

{1} outstanding at the beginning of the period:
(1) granted during the period;

(iii) forfeited during the period:

{iv) exercised during the period;

{v) expired during the period;

{vi) outstanding ar the end of the period; and
{vii) exercisable af the end of the period.

Grant Option 2
Particulars

(1) outstanding at the beginning of the period;
(i) granted during the period;

{111} torfeited during the period;

{1v) exercised during the period:

{v) expired during the period;

(vi) outstanding at the end of the period; and
{vii) exercisable at the end of the period,

Grant Option 3
Particulars

(1) outstanding at the beginning of the period;
{(11) granted during the period;

(iii) forfeited during the penod:

(iv) exercised during the period:

{v) expired during the period;

{vi) oulstanding at the end of the period; and
{vii) exercisable at the end of the period.

Year ended Mar 25
Numbet WAEP (Rs.)

4.93.963 49,39 630

4,93.961 49,39 630

Year ended Mar 25
MNumber WAEM (Rs.)

I, 10,990 11,0%.900
[, 111,990 11,05 .900

Year ended Mar 25
MNumber WAERPF (Rs.)
19,445 1,94 450

19,445 1,94.450

Total expense arising from share based payment transaction for the year is Bs 622 86 Lakhs ) has been charged

to statement of profit and loss,

The weighted average remaining contractual life for the share options outstanding as at March 31, 2025 15 3.5

VEATS



The weighted average fair value of options granted during the year is Rs 288.003

The exercise price for options outstanding at the end of the year 1s Rs 10,

The following tables list the inputs to the models used for the ESOP plans for the year ended March 31, 2023

Grant Option 1

Model used: Black-Scholes Option
Pricing Model.

Dividend vield (%)

Expected volatility (%)

Risk—free interest rate (%)

Expected life of share options

Grant Option 2

Model used: Black-Scholes Option
Pricing Model.

Dividend wield (%)

Expected volatility (%0)

Risk—{ree mterest rate (%)

Expected life of share options

Grant Option 3

Model used: Black-Scholes Option
Pricing Model.

Dividend vield (%)

Expected volatility (%)

Risk—{ree mterest rame (%)

Expected life of share options

Year ended
Mar 25
0%
51.26%
6.93%
3.5

Year ended
Mar 25
%%
50.93%
A"
35

Year ended
Mar 25
0%
51.50%
6.68%
3.5



KERALA AYURVEDA LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements For the year ended 31 March. 2025

Note 44: Disclosures reguired under Ind AS 8 for correction of prior period errors.

In -accordance with Ind AS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Ermors, the Company
has rerrospectively restated its Balance Sheet as at March 21, 2024 and April 1, 2023 (beginning of the
preceding period) to rectify errors identified during the period.

44.1 Nature of prior period errors
{a) Lease accounting

In most of the cases, the Company is having cancellable leases and since the lease 15 not enforceable, the
Company had not recognised Right of Use (ROLI) Asset and Lease Liability on these agreements, However,
there were 5 agreements company had entered into on April 1, 2023 which were having non-cancellable period
which warrants lease accounting, However, the Company had inadvertently ommitted the said fact and the this
error is teetified in the current period. Related security deposit was also adjusted 1o reflect its fair value and
difference is included in the ROU Assel,

{b) Deferred product expenditure and aecounting for patents

The Company had a deferred product expenditure which were not eligible 1o be capitalized as per Ind AS 38,
Such balances were writlen off restrospectively ax a prior period error, In addition, while accounting for patents,
the Company had errenously continued the capitalization of borrowing cost in relation to the patents even after
development activities are completed. Such excess capitalized amount were written off retrospectively and the
amortization is recomputed therealier.

(¢} Inventories
Amounts previously recognized as inventory in relation to o training project were identified as obsolets of no
longer usable in the prior period and have therefore been written down retrospectively,

(d) Loan to Subsidiaries

Foreign exchange restatement for foreign currency-denominated loans was not appropriately accounted for in
priot periods in accordance with Ind AS 21, Additionally, impatrment testing of these loans wis not performed
in those pertods. These omissions have been rectified retrospectively in the current reporting period.

(¢) Investments

The investment in 4 non-operating entity was reassessed, and impairment testing was carried out, The impaired
portien of the investment has been written down, and the carrying value has heen revizsed based on fair valuanon
in accordance with Ind AS 104,

(1) Trade Receivahles

Recervables have been adjusted w rellect approprate foreien exchange revaluation. Additionally, the Expected
Credit Loss (ECL) provision, which was not recognised o carlier periods. has been reassessed and accounted
for retrospectively.

(g) Deferred Tax Assets (Net)

Deferred tax asset previously under-recognized has been re-evaluated and adjustments were made as prior
perind errors, Further, the MAT credit entitlement has been reclassified o deferred tax asset to reflect the
correct classification, Additional deferred tax asset was recognized, based on corrected computation,



{(h)Foreign Currency Translation reserve (FCTR)
Restatement for foreign subsidiaries and computation of FCTR was not appropriately accounted for in prior
periods in accordance with Ind AS 21 and Ind AS 110, These Corrections have been rectified retrospectively in
the current reporting period, The FOTR balance is caleulated based on the data availiable and recoganized

aceordinghy,

44.2 Impact of correction of error in material items in Balance sheet

< in lakhs
April 1, 2023 Reported balance Rts.tnh:ment Restated balance
adjustment
Azsets
Property, plant and equipment 2.399.15 5.20 2,404 35
Right of Use Assets - 213.04 213.64
Intangible assets 1,217.86 (309 64) g18.22
Investments (non-current) 291 1.14 405
Loans {non-current) 1.775.27 265.17 2,040.44
Other financial assels {non-current) 668 37 {294 96 37441
Deferred tax assets (net) 660 IR4.03 453,72
[meame tax assels (net) 22021 (212.65) 7.53
Oither non-current assets - 40,61 4061
lnvenlories [.244%.36 (32321 026,15
Trade receivahles |, 29612 13.29 1,311.41
Cash and cash equivalents 437.89 .21 439,10
Chlver financial assets {current) - 121.71 121.7]
Oher current assels 34.2.058 {423 .45) 1158.60
Equity and Liabilities
Equity share capital |.055.57 (100K 1,053.57
Cither equiry {497.98) (1,439.20) (1.937.18)
Borrowings (non-current) 504160 {982.04) 4.059.56
Lease liabilities {non-current) - 17841 178.41
Other financral labilities (non-current) - 34,50 34.50
Provisions (non-current) 456.53 0.00 456.53
Other non-current labilities 34.50 (34.500 -
Borrowings {current) 2.320.69 124827 3568 960
Trade payables 750.49 67.69 RI4.18
Lease liahilities {current) - 2744 27.46
Ciher financial liabilities (current) - 248,04 248,00
Provisions (current) 142 466 54.62 197.28
Cither current liabilities 2,055, 54 (250.28) 1,505.26
March 31, 2024 Reported balance Ilts,.tati:m-znt Restated balance
adjustment
Assets
Property, plant and equipment 2. 389,69 543 239512
Right of Use Assets - 170.91 17041
Intangible assets 1,204.02 {436.90) 767.12
Investments (non-current) 291 2462 553



Loans {non-current) 1. B09 2R 156,01 2,005 289
Other financial assets (non-current ) T13.92 (31987 194 .05
Defierred lax assets (net) (1E.01) 450 09 47208
Income tax assets (net) 23388 {18280 50.99
Other non-current assels - (47 0.47
Inventories 1, 350,00 (323,22 1,.226.74
Trade receivables [L370.89 142.39 [.742.28
Cash and cash equivalents 227944 | 48 2.280.92
Onther fnancial assets {current) - 175,00 1748.00
(yther current assets 599,34 {40, 12) 19322
Equity and Liabilities -

Equity share capital 1.2013.25 - [.203.25
Other equity 2.013.10 (1.350L81) aixl 2%
Borrowings (non-current) 5.941.09 {3, 892.90 204870
Lease liabilities (non-current) - 145.00) 145,00
Other financial liabilities (non-current) - 56.50 56.56
Provisions {non-current) 3H).63 .00 S00.63
Other non-current liahilities 56,56 (56.56) -
Borrowings (current) Bl6.09 4,563.01 5.379.10
Trade payables TT6.70 (9].84) HEd 95
Lease Nabalities {current) - 3341 3341
Ohther financial habihities (curnent) - 208.92 2R 92
Provisions {current) [92.94 145,210 20814
Other current Labilitics 2,254.61 {422.52) [.B32.09

{ii} Impact of correction of errors in the Staterent of Profit and Loss

Reported amount
Sparie = Restatement

Restated amounis

for the year 2023- adiistimts for the year 2023-
34 24

Revenue from operations 178560 {470.49) 1031511
Other incoms 51.56 (21.51) .05
Cost of materials consumed 210316 0.01 210517
Purchase of stock-in-trade 427.24 (6.47) 420,77
Changes in mventories of finished goods and
stock-in-trade {334.76) (.01 {334.75)
Employee benefits expense 3426.76 551 343227
Finance costs 446,44 15706 60350
Depreciation and amortisalion expense 134,32 79.851 21413
Other expenses 4.335.44 {494.,94) 3.540.48
Tax expenses 21340 (21,80 [ 21.60

Other comprehensive income {3.534) 58.10

34.56




KERALA AYURVEDA LIMITED
Notes forming part of the lnancial statements For the year ended 31 March, 2025

MNote 45: Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 20 "Accounting for Government Grant and Disclosure of Government
Assistance”

The Company had not received any Government Grant during the year ended March 31, 2025 (Previous year - Nil)

Mote 46: Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 116

Amounts recognised in Balance Sheet

The balance sheet shows the ﬁcu[l-:n.'l,'inéI Amonnts rclating o leases: Fin lacs
Bl As at 31 As at 31 March,
March, 2025 2024
Right-of-use assets 39716 170,91
“Total 397.16 170.91
As at 31 As at 31 March,
Particulars March, 2025 2024

Lease Liabilities

{Current 3141 3341
Mon-current 435,83 145,00
Total 469.24 178.41

Movement of Right-of-Use assets

Details of carrying amount of right-of-use assets and movement during the period is disclosed under Note 5.

Movement in Lease Liabilities Tin kacs
Particulars As at 31 As at 31 March,
March, 2025 2024
Opening Balance 17841 205.87
Addition during Year 32424 -
Additions through Business Combinations - -
Finance Cost 15.79 22.26
Deletion - -
Modification - -
Exchange difference - -
Lease Liability Payments (52,200 (49.72)
Closing Balance 469.24 17%.41
Amounts recognised in the statement of profit and loss
The statement of profit or loss shows the following amounts relating to leases: Tin laes
For the year  For the year ended
Particulars ended 31 31 March, 2024
March, 2025
Depreciation charge of right-ofouse assets 262.6% 42.73
Interest expense (included in finance costs) 18,79 22.26
Expense relating to Short-term leases 349,98 258,72

Expense relating to Low- value leases -
Gain on Termination of Lease - -




The total cash outflow for leases for the period ended 31 March, 2025 was 333,41 lacs (Principal portion) and
F18.79 lacs {Interest portion)."

The total cash outflow for kases for the perod ended 31 March, 2024 was 32746 lacs (Principal portion) and
2226 laes(Interest portion),

The undiscounted cash flow payable by the Company 15 as follows:

2 in lacs
parilcaliie Asat 31 As at 31 March.
March, 2025 224
Mot later than | year 3341 3341
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 vears 435,83 145,00
Later than 5 vears - -
Toial Lease Payments 469.24 178.41

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback - Amendments to Ind AS 116

The amendment specifies the requirements thai a seller-lessee uses in measuring the leage lability arising in @ sale
and leaseback transaction 1o ensure the seller-lessee does not recognize any amount of the gain or loss that relates
the right of use assel it retains,

The amendment is effective for annual ceporting periods beginning on or after April 01, 2024 and must be applied
retrospectively to sale and leascback transactions entered into gfter the date of imital application of Ind A8 116,

The amendment has no impact on the Group’s consolidated inancial statements.

Mote 47 : Ratio Analysis

Particul As at 31 As at 31 Variance

b bl March, 2025 | March. 2024
{8) Current Ratio (Current Assets/Currem Liabilities) 046 .67 -30%
b} Debt Equity Ratio { Long term borrowings including 4,70 301 51%
current maturities thereot/Equity)
(c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio [Eamings betore [nterest 211 0.53 295%
and Tax / (Finance Cost + Principal Repayment of Long
Term Borrowings & Lease Liabilities)]
{d) Return on Equity Ratio {Profit After Tax/ Equity) 1.0} (0.03) 40205
e} Inventary Tumover Ratio (Sales / Average Inventories) 5.67 615 B
{f) Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio (Revenue / Average 055 6,70 -Fu
trade recervables)
(g) Trade Payvable Tumover Ratio (Net purchase / Average 300 2.89 Tha
trade pavables)
(hy Wet Capital Turnover Ratio (Net sales! Working capital) (2.55) {3.660) =30%%
(i) Net profil Ratio (Profit After Tax / Tumover) (0.12) (001} H36%
(1} Return on Capital Emploved { Profit after tax / (Equity + (159 {0.01) 2R66%
Long term borrowings including current Maturities thereof)
(k) Retum on Investment { Return on Investments / Mon - - 0%
Current Investments)

Mote: Explamation for change in the ratio by more thand 25% as compardd to preceding peliod 15 a5 under:

The changes in ratios are due to additional allowance for expected eredit loss on receivables and loans and
reclassification of long-term borrowings from related parties reclassified to the current maturities of long-term
borrowings, Other operating ratios such as inventory tunrover, trade payables turmnover ete. are unaffected.

Note 48 : Additional disclosures a5 per Schedule IH to the Companies Act, 2413:

.

The company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency o Virtual Currency during the period {previous year -
Nil)

The company has not received any funds from any persenfentities, for the purpose of directly or indirectly
lending/investing/providing puarantee/sccurity o a another person/entity, by or on behalf of the person/entity from
whom sueh amount 15 received during the period (previous year - Nil)




e, The company has not advanced/loaned/mvested funds o any personfentity (or the purpose of directly or ndirectly
fending/investing/providing guarantee/security to a third person/entity, by or on behall of the company in
contraveniton of the Act,

d, The company does not have any borrowings which are not utilised for the purposes specified,

The Company has taken loans from banks’ Financial Institutions (FI} on the basis of security of current assets like
inventories. The periodic returns or statements of current assets filed by the Company with banks or financial
institutions are in agreement with the books of accounts.

Note 49 ; Disclosure on Corporate Social Responsibility
The Company is not required 1o comply with the provisions relating 1o Corporate Social Responsibility during the
period {previous year: Nil)

For the vear For the vear
ended 31 ended 31 March,
March, 2025 2024

Details of CSR expenditure (In case of an
Indian Company):

Amount spent during the year:
(1) Construction / acquisition of any asset Nil il
(i1} On purpose other than above

* The reconciliation of Provision made for CSE Expenses is as under;

As at 31 Az at 31
March, 2025 March, 2024

Opening Provision
Add: Provision made during the period Nil Nil
Less: Amount paid duning the period

Closing Provision

As at 31 As at 31

Oher Information March, 2025  March.2024

Shortfall at the end of the Period

Total of previous year shortfall Nil Mil
Motes:

(1) Reasons of Shortfall, if any :

(1) Nature of CSR Activities

(1ii) Details of Related party transactions in relation to CST

MNote 50: Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2006:

(1) The amount due o Micro and Small Enterprises as defined in the *The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006™ has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of

intormation collected by the Management,

(1) The Disclosure relating Micro and Small Enterprises are as under:

T in lacs
As at 31 As ai 31 March,
March, 2025 2024
(1) The principal amount remaining unpaid to supplier 3522 L1051

(11} Interest on (1) above - -
{iii} Payvment made to suppliers (inclusive of interest as per MSMED Act,

2006) beyond appointed day during the year - -
{1v) Amount of interest due and payable on delaved pavments - =
(v) Amount of further interest remaining due and payable for the earlier

years - -
{(vi) Amount of Interest payable remaining unpaid - -




Note 51: Disclosures required under schedule 11 (applicable to Indian Companies)

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right-of-Use Assets)Intangible Assets
during the year (previous year - Nil)
The company is not holding benami property under the Benami Transactions { Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 198H)

The company is not wilful defaulters under guidelines on wilful defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank of India

The company has no relationship and transactions with struck off companies
Tthe company has not made any delay in registration of Charges during the period.

The company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under section 2(87) of the companies Act 2013

The company has not entered in scheme of arrangement under section 230 to 237 of Companies Act 2013 during
the periad

There are no transactions not recorded in the books of accounts, which are disclosed during the Income tax
assessment/search/survey

Note 52 ¢ Impact on Code on Social Security, 2020

The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 which would impact the contributions by the
Company towards Provident Fund and Gratuity. The Mimistry of Labour and Employment has released drafi rules
for the Code on Social Security, 2020 on 13 November, 2020, and has invited suggestions from stakeholders which
are under active consideration by the Ministry. The Company will assess the impact and its evaluation once the
subject rules are notified and will give approprigle impact in its financial statements in the period in which, the
Code becomes effective and the related rules to determine the financial impact are published.

Note 53 ¢ Reclassification note

Previous period’s figures have been re-grouped / re-classified, to the extent necessary, to conform to current
pertod’s classifications (in addition to restatement done as per Note no. 44), All the numbers have been rounded off
to nearest lacs.

As per our audit report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For G. Joseph & Associates KERALA AYURVEDA LIMITED
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn. No, 0063115

Dr. Anil Kumar Utkarsh Singh
Raphael Sharon Director Director
Partner DIN; (M226353 DIN: 92445896
M.No. 233286
Date: 26th May 2025 Vivek Sundar KT George Privanka Gangwar
Flace: Athani CEO CFO Company Secretary

Mem No. - F1237%



	intimation integrated AR
	Annual Report- FY 2024-25

		2025-09-04T21:58:02+0530
	Priyanka Gangwar




